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PARENTAL AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1987

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 1987

U.S. SENATE,
SuscoMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, FAMILY,
Drucs AND ALCOHOLISM,
CoMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 9:32 a.m., 1n room
SD-430, Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator Christopher J.
Dodd, (chairman of the subcommittee) presiding.

Present: Senators Dodd, Harkin, Adams, Thurmond, Ccchran,
and Hatch.

Senator Dopp. Good morning. The Subcommittee on Chitdre.s,
Family, Drugs and Alcoholism is conducting its very first hearing
this morning of the 100th Congress.

The subject of this hearing, as you all know, is the Parental and
Medical Leave Act of 1987, which I have introduced along with
my colleague from the Serate, Senator Arlen Specter, from Pennsyl-
vania.

Before I get to my prepared opening statement this morning and
we hear from our witnesses, Senator Specter has been gracious
enough to come by here this morning. With his schedule as busy as
it is, I am going to ask him if he has any opening comments to
make about this legislation, and then we will proceed with the
hearing.

Senator Specter?

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR SPECTER

Senatcr SpecTer. Well, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

I very much appreciate your deferring to me, even in advance of
your opening statement, because I have another commitment at
precisely this time.

I am delighted to be here. I am delighted to join you in cospon-
sering this very important legislation. My principal purpose in
bei..g here this morning is not as your cosponsor, but to introduce
a constituent who will be testifying.

In line with appropriate Senators’ response to constituent re-
quests, I had a request by this constituent to sponsor or cosponsor a
bill on parental and medical leave. And before taking a look at the
substance of the measure, I agreed instantly. And after taking a
look at both the requester and the substance, I was glad that I had.

I am delighted to intrcduce Councilwoman Joan Specter, who has
been the sponsor of a similar measure in the City of Philadelphia
on parental leave. I am confident of her character, her trustworthi-
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ness, her credibility, and the substance of what she will be offering
here by way of testimony this morning.

Senator Dobp. I will be interested to hear if she says the same
things about you. [Laughte-.]

Senator Specter. I am going to be leaving so that I do not run
any risk of hearing any of that.

Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much, Senator.

I am going to call Mrs. Joan Specter to the stand first, if we can.
The reason I am putting you out of order, so everyone knows, is
that you have a council session in Philadelphia, and you have a
train to catch to get back. So we appreciate your being here this
morning to testify.

I should tell all of you that Mrs. Specter is a councilwoman in
the city of Philadelphia. She introduced the municipal parental
leave bill which is, I understand, now the policy of that city. She
also is a small businessperson who employs in excess of 25 people
in her own business, so brings to this issue not only a legislative
experience, but also a business experience.

We are delighted that you are here this morning, and also de-
lighted that you were able to exercise some influence on a col-
league of mine on this issue as well.

Mrs. Specter?

STATEMENT OF JOAN SPECTER, COUNCILWOMAN, CITY OF
PHILADELPHIA, PA, AND OWNER OF “JOAN SPECTER’S DES-
SERTS”

Mrs. Specter. Thank you very much, Senator Dodd. I am very
delighted to be here today.

In 1984, a woman came to my office who was trying to adopt a
child. She said that she had gone to her supervisor to request time
off, and the supervisor told her that she could take her 2 weeks’
vacation time, but that she could not take any more. The woman
informed her supervisor that she needed 6 months because she was
adopting an infant, and that was the requirement of the adoption
agency.

Her supervisor then informed her that that was fine with her,
except that if she took the 6 months off, she could not expect that
her job would be there. So she came to me and she asked me what
could be done.

I went before the Civil Service Commission and suggested to
them tnat they ought to reconsider the appropriateness of what
they were doing in terms of adcption. And, as we began to discuss
the issue, we decided it would k2 more practical to have something
called parental leave in the city of Philadelphia, which would give
both men and women time off for child-rearing—that is, those who
had a child naturally or those who adopted a child.

So in 1984, the regulations of the Civil Service Commission were
changed, and today in the city of Philadelphia we have parental
leave. Men and women can take 6 months’ unpaid time off for
child-rearing.
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The question is, What is the Philadelphia experience? Have
many people taken the time off? Has there been abuse of the
system?

Unfortunately we do not have any statistics, and as a result of
this hearing, I will begin to ask the Civil Service Commission to
collect statistics on that. But I can tell you that every year we have
a Comptroller’s report on absenteeism and other things, and this
has never come up in the Comptroller’s report.

I believe that if there were an abuse of this or if it were exces-
sive, we would certainly see it as part of the Comptroller’s report.
But I will ask the Civil Service Commission to look into it statisti-
cally in the future years.

As a small business owner, I own a manufacturing company, a
company that manufactures pies. I have owned it for nin2 years,
and we employ 25 people, 20 of whom are bakers and 5 of whom
work in the front office.

So the question is, How would it be if one of my bakers or some-
one in the front office asked for 4 months leave? Well, I can tell
you that on any given day, I never have a full complement of
people. There is always someone out, and they are out because of
child care, or alcoholism, or they are sick, or they just did not get
up in the morning. And usually I do not know about it until I call
their home and ask them if they are coming in.

I would suggest that I would like very much to have something
called parental leave all the time, so that they would give me ad-
vance notice that they were not coming in to work. And that is
really what part of this bill does. It at least informs the employer
that someone is going to be requesting at a certain time time off.

Is it difficult when people are out—I just had an experience with
someone who was out on workmen’s compensation for 6 months,
my assistant supervisor on the night shift. He was invaluable, be-
cause he locked up. You need someone who is trustworthy to lock
up, and he was out for six months. Yes, it was very difficult. Did
we hire someone else to replace him? No, we did not. We switched
around the workloads so that we could manage during the period
of time that he was out.

It is not pleasant, and it is not always easy, but you can manage,
and things can work out.

I employ people who earn probably anywhere between $4.50 and
$8.50 an hour, basically, and the bakers, and so by and large those
people cannot afford to take very much time off. What they really
need to know is that if they take the time off legitimately, they can
be assured that they can have their job back. That is the very most
important thing that my employees need to know—that their job is
secure for them. If they know that, then they can more easily take
legitimate time off.

Senator Dopp. Thank you. I appreciate your comments.

Is the bill you adopted in the city of Philadelphia for municipal
employees—and how long has that bill been in force?

Mrs. SPECTER. Senator Dodd, it has been in effect for two years,
and it is for 35,000 municipal employees.

Senator Dopp. I think it would be extremely helpful to this com-
mittee if we could get some data on how much that leave policy
has been used and wh. * the experience of the various agencies in
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the city has been as a result. Is it parental leave or maternity
leave?

Mrs. SpECTER. It is parental leave.

Senator Dobp. So it includes both men and women?

Mrs. SpecTER. Both, and it is 6 months.

Senator Dopp. Well, we would be very interested in getting that
data.

You have adopted your own parental leave policy within your
own business?

Mrs. SpECTER. Yes.

Senator Dopp. And I am sorry, I did not hear you say how long a
period of time it was for.

Mrs. SpecTeR. Well, I offer to my employees as much as we offer
to the city of Philadelphia. I really could not offer less. But by and
large, as I say, Senator Dodd, my employees really could not afford
to take that kind of time off. But they like the idea that there is
stglr:)e sfefz.curity in knowing that they have some time that they could

e off.

Senator Dopbp. And you retain their benefits, of course, during
that period of time they are off, their health care benefits?

Mrs. Specter. My employees do not have health benefits.

Senator Dopp. Well, I thank you for being here this morning. I
am sure the other witnesses will understand your testifying ahead
of them. We would request that information; it would be extremely
helpful to us.

Thank you very much.

Mrs. Specter. Thank you, Senator.

OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATCR DODD

Senator Dobp. Before proceeding to our next group of witnesses,
let me share some thoughts with you as the chairman of this sub-
committee.

I am delighted that this hearing on parental leave is our first
hearing. We have a number of very, very important issues that this
subcommittee will be addressing in this Congress, ranging from
child abuse to special needs adoption to the activities of the Nation-
al Institutes of Drug Abuse and Alcoholism and Alcohol Abuse,
which are up for reauthorization this year.

This morning’s hearing, however, focuses, as you all know, on
legislation which cuts across all of these issues that are so vital to
the future of the 64 million Americans who happen to be children.
That issue, of course, is parenal leave.

In fact, of all the other issues we will be looking at in this year
in this Subcommittee, all relate in one way or another to the con-
cept of parental leave. In this brief statement, I will try and de-
scribe very briefly the legislation before us, what the effects of this
legislation are likely to be, some of the arguments on both sides,
we will be hearing this morning, and the plans of this subcommit-
tee in the coming year on this iscue.

The Parental and Medical Leave Act of 1987, which I reintro-
duced on January 6 along with Senator Specter, would promote the
economic security of families by providing for parental leave upon
the birth, adoption or serious illness of a child and temporary med-
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ical leave when a serious health condition prevents a parent from
working.

Because such leave would be unpaid, I believe that it will not add
to the deficit, nor to the economic burdens carried by employers;
yet it will provide parents with continuing health benefits and a
most important assurance, that of a job when they are ready to
return to work.

In recognition of the special problems often faced by small em-
ployers, businesses with fewer than 15 employees would be exempt-
ed from the provisions of this bill.

I had introduced identical legislation last year and encouraged
my colleagues to give it due consideration during the 99th Con-
gress. But I was unable even to achieve any hearings on this sub-
ject at all. Over the past several years, politicians of both parties,
liberal and conservative, have used the theme of “family” over and
over and over again, in one speech after another, to advance a par-
ticular agenda; pro-family issues, pro-family speeches have become
sort of standard in this country.

Well, my hope is that with this legislation we might finally do
something about families and not just talk about them. So I have
introduced the parental leave bill.

I must also tell you this morning that my intentions and plans
are to take these hearings across the country, to various regions of
the country, so that people who cannot afford to come to Washing-
ton will have an opportunity to talk about this legislation at a re-
gional level.

Let me also tll you some of the things we are going to hear this
morning from various quarters. These will not be any great sur-
prise; we have heard many of these things before. We are going to
hear that unpaid parental leave will cost in excess of $16 billion;
that it is going to add substantially to the Federal deficit because
we will have hundreds or thousands of new Federal employees;
that it will leave us defeated at the hands of our international com-
petitors, and that it will ultimately result in discrimination against
women in the work force.

Other witnesses are going to tell us in stark contrast that unpaid
parental leave will imnprove our chances against competition over-
seas, that it will save us money, and that it will cost the Federal
Government nothing at all.

The arguments about the billior: dollar costs associated with pa-
rental leave have a familiar ring to them. In 1963, the Chamber of
Commerce and the National Association of Manufacturers opposed
the Equal Pay Act by contending it would, and I quote, “fix an
army of Federal bureaucrats on the businessman.” In 1978, the
Chamber testified against the Pregnancy Discrimination Act on the
basis that it would incur monumental costs, reduce the competi-
tiveness of products or services in the marketplace, and cause em-
ployers with a “large proportion of female employees” to drop their
disability plans entirely.

A nice postscript to all of these statements by the Chamber, I
might add, ironiczlly, was made last year with respect tc the Preg-
nancy Discrimination Act—and I quote the Chamber on this—*It is
a fair and appropriate policy which the Chamber supports.”
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Given that, I do not expect the witnesses representing the Cham-
ber today to change their minds that quickly about this legislation,
but I hope that they will at least be willing to consider the concept
and even offer some positive suggestions as to how we might im-
prove the bill.

We are also going to hear from the National Association of
Working V’omen, Nine to Five; the National Council of Jewish
Women; the Yale Bush Center in Child Development and Social
Policy, and others.

And today, Senator Specter and I will be sending a letter to the
General Accounting Office asking for an objective review and anal-
ysis of all possible costs and benefits associated with unpaid paren-
tal leave. Given the fact that we will be getting suggestions from
both sides of no cost or exorbitant cost, it seemed an appropriate
step to take.

It is important that members of this Subcommittee and their
staff all hear the various sides of this story, and not just the argu-
ments of one or two particular interest groups. We must keep in
mind that the most important group affected by this legislation
will not be testifying here this morning, namely, the one out of
three Americans who are children.

The time has come when we can no longer ignore the changing
demographics of our work force and its effects on children and
their families. Today close to half of all mothers with infants under
the age of one work outside the home. That figure has doubled
since 1970 and shows absolutely no signs of abatin%. In fact, 85 per-
cent of all working women outside the home are likely to become
oregnant at some point during their childbearing years. Probably
everyone in this room today knows of at least one new mother or
father who is trying to juggle taking care of a new infant with re-
turning straight back to their jobs outside of the home.

The reasons for this are not very subtle. Men and women are in
the work force out of economic necessity today. Two out of every
three women working outside the home today are either the sole

roviders for their children or have husbands who earn less than
§15,000 a year. And given that two out ¢f every three children are
added to the poverty roles since 1978 have come from families in
which only one pairent is working full-time year-around, it is not
too difficult to see the importance to families of having two wage-
earners.

In short, the wages of both mothers . nd fathers today are critical
to the support of their farnilies. Many members of the Senate will
tell you that the case work coming through his or her office makes
it impossible to ignore the adverse consequences of forcing parents
to choose between their children and their jobs.

For example, all of us should know that children do not fare well
when their parents undergo severe economic stress. Between 1985
and 1986, the death rate from physical child abuse soared by some
30 percent in this country. The experts will tell us that far too
many of these deaths can be linked to unemployment and serious
economic stress—issues which this Full Committee will be looking
at through other subcommittees this year.

But in this Subcommittee, we ought to at least help guarantee
that parents who already have jobs do not lose them because they
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have to spend unpaid time at home upon the birth, adoption or se-
rious illness of a child.

Two years ago I joined with some of my colleagues across the
aisle to address the serious charges of medical neglect in what are
termed “Baby Doe” cases. And we succeeded in laying down proce-
dixres that States must follow in guarding against such medical ne-
glect.

But all the work we did and must review this year in terms of
the child abuse reauthorization statutes make no sense whatsoever
unless we also ensvre that the parents of those “Baby Doe” chil-
dren can stay wiv’ child at the hospital without losing their
jobs during the crit’ . rirst weeks of that infant’s life.

But just as importantly, over the past few years, this Committee
has focused on encouraging the adoption of so-calied “special
neeas” children. They are the children without permanent homes
who have mental, physical or emotional handicaps. They are also
olac~ childrer who are members of sibling or minority growps.

We can do all we want in terms of strengthening the adoption
opportunities programs i this country—and Lord knows, every
member of Congress has talked about trying to improve and make
it easier for these children to be adopted. Yet we know~—we know—
that until we make parental leave a national priority, countless of
these prospective adoptive parents will be unable to take the requi-
site time off from work to adopt in the first place. Agencies rou-
tinely require that parents stay at home for several months with
the ~1optive child in order to qualify for adoption in the first place.

And last but not least, Congress spent a great deal of {ime pass-
ing omnibus legislation last year to combat drug and alcohol abuse.
But until we ensure that workers will be able to take unpaid leave
+o get adequate treatment, we will only be complc g half the task
in that serious problem.

The legislation before us today will at least try to inake sorne
impact on these and many other issues relating to chilc. :n.

In closing, last month the Supreme Court, as many of us know,
made history with the so-called Cal-Fed decision by guaranteeing
the rights of working women with infants. The voman in question
in that case, Lillian Garland, was a receptionisc who was n»t earn-
ing a big salary—not a “yuppie” by any stretch of the imagina ‘on.
She had to take leave from her job as a result of a difficult pr g-
nancy and delivery. She could h...¢ made ends meet so long as she
had a job and she returned to work. The Court backed up that
right for her and for women in other States with maternity disabil-
ity statutes similar to California’s.

But the Senate now has a broader policy question to address with
respect to unpaid parental leave—whether the same job protection
should be extended to mothers for parenting leave and not just for
recovery from preg..ancy, or to fathers, adoptive parents, and other
workers. This hearing is an important first step toward that
answer,

Before I call our first panel of witnesses, let me turn to my good
friend from South Carolina, Senator Thurmond, for any opening
statements he may nave. I am delighted you are here this morning.

‘£ ™
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OPENING STATEMENT OF SENATOR THURMOND

Senator THURMOND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman, I am very pleased to be here at this first hearing
we have had since you have been Chairman of the Subcommittee,
and though we may differ on a great many things, since our philos-
opllly is somewhat different, I expect to cooperate with you wherev-
er I can.

Senator Dopb. I thank you for that.

Senator THUrRMOND. Mr. Chairman, I am looking forward to re-
ceiving testimony today about the parental leave legislation you
have introduced. I have indicated to you in previous discussions
that I have serious reservations about this measure.

Nevertheless I welcome the input we will receive from these wit-
n:;ses, and I intend to listen carefully to all the views expressed
today.

I believe parental leave is a worthy benefit. If a company wishes
to offer this benefit to an employee—and many do—it is to be com-
mended.

However, I am concerned about whether ¢ Federal mandate in
this area fully takes into account the varyinz needs and circum-
stances of employers and employees. Family needs are diverse. One
family may want a parental leave benefit; another may prefer to
choose a different benefit from among the wide range of benefits
now being offered by many companies.

I am concerned that this legislation may impede the trend that is
now developing in the workplace where{y employees are able to

choose from a whole range of benefits and tailor them to meet

their individual needs. This trend is cited in John Naisbitt’s nation-
al bestseller, “Megatrends.” In this book, Naisbitt has outlined 10
major changes taking place in America. It has been called by some
a “road map to the future.” One such area of change is the emerg-
ing new relationship between employees and employers. According
to Naisbitt, p eviously, a large company had to treat all employees
the same because that was the only way to keep track of them.
Now, with the computer to keep track, employees can be treated
differently, with a unique contract for each.

Naisbitt concludes that the technology of the computer allows
businesses to have a distinct and individually tailored arrangement
with each of thousands of employees.

An e.. i yee can now decide to have a certain combination of
salary, pension, health benefits, insurance, flex-time, job sharing,
vacation arrangements, and job objectives.

This wide range of benefits results from the energy, vitality, and
flexibility of the private sector, and shows the ability of American
business to respond to the changing needs of the work force.

Mr Chairman, no country has a higher percentage of women in
its economy than the United States. America has led the Western
industrial nations in economic growth and job creation. Moreover,
it is my understanding that other nations with generous maternity
leave benefits find their women of childbearing age frequently un-
employed or clustered in low-paying jobs. We should not be asked
to look to these other nations as role models when many have stag-
nated economies.
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I am concerned that while the intent of this legislation may be
meritorious, it will have a detrimental impact on those very people
it seeks to help.

Mr. Chairman, as we hear from these witnesses today, I will be
particularly interested in their views about these concerns. While
my schedule may not permit me to stay for the entire hearing, I
look forward to reviewing the testimony presented today.

I might say that I have stacks of letters here from small business
people who are deeply concerned ahout this legislation. I will not
take the time to read them now, but I may place some of them in
the record.

Senator Dopp. If you would like, that would be fine.

Senator THURMOND. I just want to say that this is a matter of
grave concern. Some employers give some benefits, some give other
benefits—and are we going to deny employees the right to choose
the benefits they want, and thrust on them this particular benefit
and deny them other benefits that they might prefer?

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much.

Senator Adams, we welcome you this morning as well. Do you
have any statement you would like to make at the outset?

Senator Apams. Only a very short statement. I am pleased to
join with you, Mr. Chairman, in this effort. As you know, during
the course of the morning we have the nuclear test ban markup, so
I will be in and out, and that is not from lack of interest in this
hearing, which I consider extremely important, but the fact that
we have to be sometimes two places at the same time.

I am very much in support of the concept that you have outlined
and that we are holding hearings on this morning. It is a pleasure
to be here, and I am looking forward to the testimony of the wit-
nesses.

Thank you.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much. I appreciate that.

Senator Cochran, from Mississippi.

Senator CocHrRAN. Good morning. I do not have any statement,
but I just wanted to greet you and compliment you on convening
this hearing. I look forward to hearing the testimony of the wit-
nesses.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. Our first panel of witnesses this morning comes
with very special expertise. These are all working parents, and it is
their atfempts to combine parenting with work outside the home
that we will hear about.

I would ask Barbara Ferguson Kamara to come forward. Barbara
is an adoptive mother. She is the executive director of the Office of
Early Childhood Development in Washington, DC, and she is testi-
fying here in her capacity as the mother of an 11-year-old adopted
daughter.

Joining her at the witness table is Jean Goebel, an adoptive
mother from my home State of Connecticut, Weston, CT. She is the
mother of a 3-year-old boy and a little girl, Jessa, who came all the
way from Poland. She is a former flight attendani who is now look-
ing for work, and she will explain why that is. Many of you may

~-

, 1u




] -

10

have seen Mrs. Goebel on a recent national broadcast about this
very issue, with her new child, Jessa.

And Jim Weeks is a father; he is from the United Mine Workers
of America. He is an employee of that organization and will be tes-
tifying in his capacity as a father, to tell us about his personal ex-
perience about parental leave.

I am delighted to welcome all three of you here this morning.

Mrs. Kamara, we will begin with you if we can. Any statements
you have will be included in their entirety in the record. If you
would like to abbreviate them, or read them, whichever you feel
more comfortable with, we will be delighted to receive them.

Mrs. Kamara?

STATEMENTS OF BARBARA FERGUSON KAMARA, ADOPTIVE
MOTHER, AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, OFFICE OF EARLY
CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT, WASHINGTON, DC; JEAN GOEBEL,
ADOPTIVE MOTHER, WESTON, CT; AND JiM WEEKS, FATHER,
UNITED MINE WORKERS OF AMERICA, WASHINGTON, DC

Mrs. Kamara. Thank you, Chairman Dodd and honorable mem-
bers of the subcommittee.

I am very appreciative of the opportunity to testify before you
today about the critical importance of including leave for adoptive
parents in your paternal and temporary medical leave bill.

I am here to tell you about the fight I had to wage 11 years ago
when my husband and I decided to adopt, and the advocacy I have
engaged in since that time to help other individuals and couples
who are interested in adopting.

First, let me say, Senator, how pleased I am as a child develop-
ment expert with your continued leadership to push both the
public and private sectors to take concrete steps to help families
better care for their children, as well as other dependent family
members. I will talk briefly at the end of my testimony about some
of my current work with the District of Columbia government on
behalf of families, in my official capacity as Executive Director of
the Office of Early Childhood Develop:nent, because we are work-
ing to strengthen our family-oriented personnel policies along some
of the lines spelled out in your bill.

In 1976 when my husband and I decided to adopt, I was at the
time director of the Learning Institute of North Carolina’s Leader-
ship Development Program, an eight-State training centers for
both Head Start Programs across those eight States, and we did
some things with public schools in the State of North Carolina. We
also had a demonstration center for {- to 5-year-old children.

To demonstrate LINC’s commitment to our employees with chil-
dren younger than age three, we developed our own employee
child-care center. So it did not really accur to me that trying to
take time off to spend with my adopted child would really be a
problem. But little did I understand how complicated it would be.

The complications began when the social worker doing the home
study first told me I would have to take a year off in order to be
approved for adoption. I knew that a year was absolutely out of the
question with my position.
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Besides, when I questioned the worker about whether or not she
had children and how much time she had taken off, she indicated
that she did have children—she was a biological parent—and that
The had only taken off six weeks from her work for maternity
eave.

Eventually we convinced the adoption agency that, while I cer-
tainly believed taking some time off once our adopted child was
placed with us was critical and something I wanted to do, I would
not be able to take off the year that they had originally said was
necessary.

In the meantime, my employer was telling me that they did not
allow time off for adopting a child. Only biological parents were eli-
gible for time off. And then I discovered that there was a local
business which did give adoptive parents $500 toward their cost of
adopting a child, so I insisted to my boss that if we held ourselves
out to the community as a model employer which helped employees
with children, we certainly could provide some sort of benefit for
adoptive parents.

Besides, I had accumulated a substantial amount of sick and
annual leave which I was perfectly happy to use. But of course,
taking time off to care for a newly adopted child was not necessary
becguse I was not sick, so my sick leave time was not allowed to be
used.

To summarize my 4-month negotiating ordeal, I ﬁnally was able
to convince my employer in the name of being a ‘“child care
agency” to allow me four months leave of absence. I was able to
use up my vacation time, but the rest I had to take without pay.

As I indicated before, child development is my field of expertise,
so I fe' " very strongly about the importance of taking this minimal
amount of time off to begin the bonding process with my daughter,
who was 2 months old at the time of the adoption.

It seems to me that on some level, parental leave for adoptive
parents may be even a bit more critical than for biological parents
to the extent that adoptive parents do not have the 9 months of the
pregnancy to begin the adjustment and binding biological parents
are privileged to experience.

I would also like to note that my husband was allowed no time
off when our daughter came home, and he had to take annual
leave .or the 2 days we had to travel across the State of North
Carolina to pick her up and bring her back to our home.

I would like to spend more of my time, Senator Dodd, discussing
other problems we experienced with the agency in the process of
adopting which I believe, coupled with employment barriers, serve
as strong disincentives for many black individuals or couples to
even consider adopting. But 1 realize that this is not the focus of
your hearing today. So when you get ready to consider the Adop-
tion Opportunities Act, I would certainly be glad to come back and
talk more with you about those experiences.

The important point I want to focus on today, however, is that
our negative experiences with the adoption process led my husband
and I to become advocates, with our other friends and other inter-
ested parties, to help make changes in the adoption system which
were critical to help more black children waiting for adoptive fami-
lies.
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Because the adoption advocacy we launched into was in my
“spare time” I do not have fancy reports and statistics to give you
on the outcomes of any systematic changes or new adoptive fami-
lies we were able to create. But I can tell you that to this day,
adoption agency practices and lack of parental leave remain as two
very significant barriers for many black individuals and cruples I
know who otherwise might consider adopting at least one of the
more than 36,000 children we know are legally free in the foster
care system and waiting for an adoptive family.

Finally, in my capacity as Executive Director of the Office of
Early Childhood Development for the District of Columbia, the
Mayor has asked that we evaluate flexible work hour and leave
programs for parents who are D.C. Government employees. In addi-
tion, we are trying to develop options to meet the diverse needs of
working families with young children.

In conclusion, I am most appreciative of the opportunity to testi-
fy before you today in support of your parental and temporary
medical leave bill. Now that approximately haif of all mothers with
children under age one are in the work force, and there are still
36,000 children waiting for adoptive families, I believe this pro-
posed legislation represents the minimal first step this country
must take to assure all children a sound early childhuod so that
they may become the next generation of caring parents, advocates,
elected officials, and proud, productive citizens of this great nation.

Thank you.

Senator Dodd. Thank you very much, Ms. Kamara. That was an
excellent statement, and I appreciate it very, very much.

Ms. Goebel, we welcome you to Washington this morning and
real'y appreciate your taking the time to appear.

Ms. GoeBeL. Thank you, Senator Dodd.

As an adoptive parent, I cannot express how important this hear-
ing is to me. When the story of my adopted daughter was picked up
by the news media, I received several phone calls aund countless let-
ters from potential adoptive families who feared the same thing
that happened to me would happen to the », and that was the loss
of a career in order to take cff time to adopt a child.

When I adopted my first son, Will, I had to fight to get the time
off to be with him. When I went through the second adoj..ion, for
Jessa, the time off was denied to me by my company, suice they
said I was “only adopting,” and th<y did not feel this was a conven-
ient time for them, and denied .ne the time off, stating that if I
went, I would be terminated.

We went to Poland a second time, made a secoad date in Poland
to go, as is required in order to adopt a child there My husband
and I discussed the delay because we realized that the cost of the
adoption in addition to the loss of my 14-year career would place
definite financial strains on our family.

When I finally went, it was without the permission of my compa-
ny and since, after setting a second court date in Poland, I did not
feel I could postpone it to a later time. Once again, I did not want
my daughter to be in an orphanage any longer than possible.

As it was, Jessa was a victim of institutional care. She was very
underweight. She had had several viral infections, as well as mal-
nutrition and anemia. At the age of 9 months, Jessa was picked up
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only to be fed and changed. She never had any solid food, and nad
never been put on her stomach to sleep, play or crawl, since her
diz;lpers were tied to her by a huge knot in the middle of her stom-
ach.

I brought "ier home, and during the entire 12-hour flight, she
screamed and cried. She did not even realize that I was her new
mother. The doctors called this ‘‘stranger anxiety.”

I was, as you can imagine, a nervous wreck, because Jessa was
very, very close to the Chernobyl nuclear accident. Consequently,
when I got her home she was subject to many, many nuclear tests
as well as neurological tests, because my doctors felt that even
though she was nine months old, she was at a 4-month level. Luck-
ily, all the tests came back normal.

My anger about this heightened. I had spoken to the Labor De-
partment, the EEOC and the Attorney General’s Office. I learned
that since I was “only adopting” and not giving birth, that I fell
within the legal cracks. Technically, I was not a mother, because
my way of giving birth could wait.

Basically, the laws state that as an adoptive mother, you are not
recognizedv as a mother, since I was not physically disabled due to
giving birth-never mind the fact that I was close to emotional inca-
pacitation due to worry about my daughter and her proximity to
the nuclear disaster.

I thought that once she had a week or two at her new home, she
would stop her hysterical, unending crying. This was not the case.
For 2 months, Jessa cried every waking moment. I had to force-feed
her in order for her not to be hospitalized for failure to thrive.

After 2 months, Jessa appeared to calm down while simulta-
neously, my older adopted son, Will, was diagnosed as learring dis-
abled. I had been so busy with Jessa, I had not been able to give
Will as much attention as he needed.

As you can see, there was a tremendous amount of emotional
stress; also, financially, the cost of the adoption, plus the loss of my
14-year career at a salary of $35,000 annually, became a big strain
to our family.

Two months later, I be%an to search for a new career path. How-
ever, I found that I was being considered for jobs between $12,000
and $15,000 per year. As a two-income family for 10 years, the loss
of my income was a devastation. After all this, I felt that I had
been put in a deep hole of depression. I had one adopted son with
learning disabilities and a newly adopted daughter who shunned
my desire to love her.

Slowly the children’s problems began to reverse. Both Jessa and
Will are loving children. Although I did not find a new career path
to help pay for the family expenses, we somehow maintained a
level of financial stability. Things began to be looking up.

After all the emotional and financial stress the family went
through, 5 months after Jessa joined my family, my husband filed
for divorce, after 11 years of marriage, leaving me with my 13-
month-old daughter Jessa, at the time, and Will, who was 2%. To
date, I am still unemployed and have no prospects for any career
path at this time.

However, I am optimistic that surely something will come along.
Things have got to get better. I count my blessings every day, and
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their names are Will and Jessa, who are loving, beautiful and
healthy children.

I would like to, if possible, make a brief statement from the Con-
necticut Adoptive Families Group.

Senator Dobp. Surely.

Ms. GoeseL. Many of us buve lost wages, benefits, even jobs as a
result of lack of legislative protection of our rights as parents. The
essential need for any parent to have time to care for and bond
with their new child has largely been ignored in parental leave
laws. An initial period of uninterrupted time together is of para-
mount importance. The first few months of our lives together are
not only precious; the quality of the bonding between parent and
child which occurs then can affect a lifetime relationship.

Please help adoptive families become recognized as the parents
we are, with every right of every other American family.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much, Ms. Goebel.

Mr. Weeks, thank you for being with us this morning.

Mr. WeEks. Good morning. I have a brief statement to make.

My name is Jim Weeks. I am employed by the United Mine
Workers here in Washington, DC. I very much appreciate the op-
portunity to testify in support of this bill, and Senator Dodd, I ap-
preciate your efforts and the efforts of your colleagues in sponsor-
ing it.

I am the father of two children; I have a boy, age 5, and a girl,
age 2. When our daughter was born, I was granted 3 months’ pa-
rental leave by the United Mine Workers. I should also mention
that when my son was born 5 years ago, I also took some time off
at that time.

Let me give you some details about my leave. For the first
month, my health insurance coverage was provided by the Mine
Workers, and the remainder was paid for by me, at a modest cost
of about $234. This continued the same coverage that we had been
receiving before that time.

During my absence, many of my ordinary duties were taken up
by other employees at the union, but there were some that I had to
attend to myself. For this work, I was paid at an hourly rate. Doing
the work was possible because I could take it home—other workers
might not be able to do this—and relatively easy, because our
daughter was healthy and a very easy-going child. Altogether, I
worked about 20 hours during my leave.

The principai reason for taking this leave was entirely practical.
Both my wife and I work. During the pregnancy, my wife had to
remain in bed for five weeks. Although she was able to do some
work at home, her being in bed severely constrained her ability to
keep up with her work. When our daughter was born, she took an
additional month off.

At this point, not only was she behind in her work, but she was
also facing a series of deadlines. In her case, she had already had
to take considerable time away from work due to factors entirely
beyond her control.

ince it was easier for me to take time off, I spent the next 3
months with our daughter at home. Now, for us, three months was
sufficient. We were able to hire a very qualified person to look
after our two children in our home. For others, I think 6 or more
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months may be necessary to arrange satisfactory infant day-care.
Infant day-care is expensive, it is very difficult to get, and in my
opinion, it is not a terribly good idea to take very young infants
and place them in day-care outside the home.

I strongly support the bill that you are considering. It would pro-
vide families with opportunities, very important opportunities, to
provide for their children, and it would, in my opinion, reduce in-
centives to discriminate against women of childbearing age. If it is
pussible for fathers to take leave, then it is not necessary for moth-
ers to take it.

You already know the growing number of women entering the
work force, the growing number of two-wage-earner families, and
the growing number of single parents. The traditional family—with
the father the sole source of income and the mother the sole care-
taker of the children—is no longer the family for the majority of
Americans.

These jobs within the family are now shared, or they are done by
single parents, most of whom are women. This change has come
about because of women's drive for equality and out of sheer eco-
nornic necessity.

The issue is whether social policy will keep pace with social
change and whether we as a society are going to support families
as they are and provide opportunities for those families to care for
their children. For families in all their forms, I think parental
leave with job protection is a minimum essential support against
unnecessary job loss.

And while the other panelists were speaking, I was struck by one
thing. I am a white male; we have healthy children; I am a biologi-
cal parent, and I have a stable marriage—and yet, I am the one
who got the leave. I think if we just leave things to their course,
this might replicate existing patterns of inequality, which I think
we are all opposed to.

That concludes my statement, and I will be glad to respond to
questions.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much, Mr. Weeks, for your com-
ments.

We have been joined by Senator DeConcini, and I would be
remiss if I did not point out that Susan DeConcini, the Senator’s
wife, is an excellent advocate of child-care issues. In fact, she gave
one of the best presentations I have ever heard in front of my cor-
porate community in Connecticut a year or so ago, about the im-
ﬁortance of child-care. I know she is somewhere in the audience

ere this morning. Her husband, Dennis, is also a strong supporter
of these issues, and we are delighted to welcome you this morning,
Senator. If you have some comments you would like to make, we
would be glad to hear them.

Senator DEConcINI. Mr. Chairian, I will be brief, and I thank
you for those comments, particularly to my wife, who was very in-
strumental in me focusing on this issue in my capacity as a Sena-
tor from the State of Arizona.

I want to commend you, Mr. Chairman, fcr holding these hear-
ings and moving in an effort to bring attention to the plight of
American families, and especiall{ the children. You are a leader in
this body and in America, and I am glad to join you in the Chil-
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dren’s Caucus, and you are very kind to let me be with you today
in this Labor hearing.

Mr. Chairman, America’s economy requires us to find ways to
utilize the talent and energies of both men and women in order to
foster a strong and secure nation. The number of working mothers
continues to grow rapidly. Many families are without fathers to
contribute to their financial well-being. At the same time, the
modern American family cannot find nor afford the cost of child-
care.

I am pleased that this vital issue is being expeditiously addressed
by this committee and by the Children’s Caucus, and 1 appreciate
the efforts of Senator Specter, as well, in bringing S. 249 to the
Senate’s attention.

I am a strong supporter of any well-considered effort to come to
grips with this escalating threat to out nation’s children. No com-
ponent of our nation can be considered more important than those
who will provide the manpower and brain power that will guide
this country’s future.

The fact that these hearings are being held here, before a Labor
subcommittee, recognizes that the issue goes beyond one of social
welfare and includes the ability of American business to tap all
available human resources.

Mr. Chairman, while I am supportive of S. 249, I am open to con-
sider additional options to employers to offset some of the addition-
al costs of providing additional parental and medical leave benefits.
I believe the matter requires immediate implementation and that
the legislation must exprcss the Congress’ unequivocal commit-
ment to this end.

On the other hand, I am more than willing to follow up those
optionis with provisions that provide for more substantial noncom-
pliance penalties. I am currently considering amendments which
seek to increase the motivation for employers to expedite the provi-
sions of the benefits, and where the law allows, retroactive benefits
for certain parents who would need extraordinary relief prior to
the effective date of this legislation. I believe such options would
minimize the necessity of additional expenditures for enforcement
by the Secretary of Labor.

I will be exploring these and hopefully, Mr. Cuairman, I can con-
sult with you and your staff. Again I want to thank you, Senator
Dodd, for letting me be here and listen to some of this testimony,
and thank the witnesses for coming forward with their cand’d ap-
proach to the real human need that has been overlooked for a long
time.

Thenk you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dop~ Thank you very much, Senator DeConcini. That is
a very worthwhile statement, and I will be glad to work with you.
In fact, one of the things we announced this morning is that Sena-
tor Specter and I have asked the General Accounting Office to give
us an objective assessment of the cost impact of this. We are going
to hear testimony from various groups that talk about tremendous
cost or no cost, or s2vings, and i think it is important that we get
as-objective an assessment as possible of what the impact of this
proposal would be on employers. So vre hope to have some answers
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to that fairly quickly, which I think wi.. help in assessing the possi-
ble impact.

Senator DECoNCINI. 1 think that will be very helpful information.
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dobp. Let me just briefly ask, if I may, a few questions
particularly of Ms. Kamara and Ms. Goebel. Ms. Kamara, because
you work in the area as well as having gone through the personal
experience, perhaps you could answer first. On the special needs,
we are going to have legislation come up again on the special needs
adoption. Then perhaps you could comment, Ms. Goebel. What you
went through was, of course, a unique situation in that you adopt-
ed a child out of the country, a child that was being kept in an in-
stitution fairly near Chernobyl. That added an element to the adop-
tion which was certainly extraordinary.

In terms of special needs adoptions, what do parents run into
with most agencies? Are agencies requiring that prospective adop-
tive parents spend a certain amount of time at home with the child
before they would consider placing that child with those parents?
How much time, generally, do agencies talk about as a require-
ment before that special needs child can be adopted?

Ms. Kamara. The time required by agencies varies from jurisdic-
tion to jurisdiction. At the time I was in North Carolina, as I indi-
cated, they wanted a year, and they did ultimately compromise to
say that when the child was 6 months, that then I could go back, as
long as the worker came into my home e ery——

Senator Dopp. I am sorry, how much time?

Ms. KaMara. The child had to be 6 months old before I could go
back to work. She was 2 months old when we adopted her, so I
stayed at home for 4 months.

Senator Dopbp. In other words, if you would not be willing to
make that commitment, then you could not adopt the child?

Ms. KAMARA. That is what they had indicated.

Senator Dodd. And roughly how does it work in other States, in
terms of just ball park figures?

Ms. KaMara. I really do not have that information on what hap-
pens in other States. It really became a concern to us when the
first child they brought to our attention, after we found out the
child’s foot was kind of bent, and I asked that they check on the
child, and they found out that that child has cerebral palsy. Then
they withdrew that particular child from adoption. But of course
we were very concerned because we had the child’s picture and had
lots of things said, and I wondered what happened with that child,
and we were never able to find out.

But in a situation like that, had we adopted such a child with
cerebral palsy, I would be out today, waving that particular
banner, and I know that the 4 months that I stayed home definite-
ly would aot have been enough time.

Senator Dobp. Ms. Goebel, is your experience the same? I pre-
sume you were looking at other agencies for adoption? Was it your
first cgoice to go outside the country?

Ms. GoeBeL. With my second child, yes. Adoption in general is
not that easy to do, as you probably know. It takes a long time and
is exceptionally expensive. I chose the country of Poland, because
that was where my family background was from.
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With regard to what the Polish Government required from me,
they wanted me to stay home 6 months. However, at that point, I
knew that that would not be a problem since I had already lost my
job. So the first 2 months, there was intensive care, getting Jessa
adjusted, and then the following 4 months I stayed, and then I
began looking for work at that time.

With my first son, who was adopted locally in Connecticut, the
agency wanted me to be home with the child for a minimum of 3
months, which I did.

Senator Lopp. Which was a requirement for adoption?

Ms. GoegEL. Yes.

Senator Dopp. Mr. Weeks, lastly for you, did you feel that the
time you took off was adequate, those 3 months that you took off?

Mr. WEEks. In our particular case, it was adequate We were pre-
pared for a much longer period of time, because we were a high-
risk pregnancy to begin with. Our son was born premature, and
our daughter was threatening to come prematurely, also.

The other factor that made it adequate was that we were able to
hire somebody that we felt was very %ighly qualified to come to our
home and provide in-home day-care for her. We would have pre-
ferred to have it longer, and I think in many cases it would make
sense to make it longer.

Senator Dobp. And your wife had had a difficult pregnancy?

Mr. Weeks. Yes, that is correct.

Senator Dopbb. And the ability of you to come home and stay
with that child made it possible for her to get back to work, which
would have otherwise been a stress, I presume, on her and her em-
ployment situation.

Mr. WEeks. That is right.

Senator Dobp. Do any of you consider yourselves “yuppies”?
[Laughter.]

The Senator from South Carolina.

Senator THURMOND. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dobb. Senator Cochran.

Senator CocHRAN. Mr. Chairman, let me just express my appre-
ciation for these witnesses being here this morning and helping the
committee understand some of the practical problems that are en-
countered in the adoption of children and in the taking of leave
from work, in the case of either natural childbirth or adoptive situ-
ations. You have been very helpful to the committee.

Thank you.

Senator Dobp. Senator DeConcini?

Senator DeConcinNi. Mr. Chairman, if I could ask Mr. Weeks just
one question—I know you have got other panels here.

Did your employer require some proof or satisfaction that your
leave was to be for the pu.pose that you testified here, or did they
just take your word? I just wonder what the attitude is of your
company and what-have-you.

Mr. Weeks. Well, they did not require any proof, but it really
was not in doubt. I brought ner in a couple times. [Laughter.]

Senator DECoNnCINI. Well, that was the proof. I mean, if you sign
up for leave, and you bring your wife in, that is the proof.

Mr. Weeks. No, no; I brought my daughter in.
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Senator DEConciN. Yes, your daughter; you bring your daughter
in, and they see that. I Iiust wonder if there is any suspicion, or if
thish is a very acceptable procedure with the company you weie
with.

Mr. WEEKs. It was not a problem.

Senator DEConcINI. No problem?

Mr. Weeks. No, not at all.

Senator DEConcINI. And I wonder, do you have any information
that it is ever a problem, that employers have some skepticism
whether this is really what it is all about, and they are not looking
for an extra week off?

Mr. Weeks. I suspect some employers are skeptical, but I do not
know that that means it is a problem.

Senator DEConcini. Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. We thank all three of you again for being here
this maorning.

Our next panel is a panel of e—perts in the areas of child develop-
ment, the status of women in the work force, and the economics of
the labor force.

Dr. Ed Zigler is probably as well-known as any individual in this
country in terms of early childhood development. He is the Direc-
tor of the Yale Bush Center on Child Development and Social
Policy. He has one of tne rarest of combinations; he is both a schol-
ar and a policymaker, and the 64 million Americans who are chil-
dren are very lucky that he has been fighting for them for the past
two decades. Dr. Zigler is the former head of the Office of Child De-
velopment Policy at the then U.S. Department of Health, Educa-
tion and Welfare; he is now the Director, as I mentioned earlier, of
the Yale Bush Center in Child Development and Social Policy. He
is speaking this morning about the recommendations made by his
landmark Yale Bush Commission on Infant Care, a Commission
that he directed.

With him at the witness table will be Mr. James T. Bond, Direc-
tor of the Natioral Council of Jewish Women from Nev. York. He
has been involved in research on child and family issues for the
past 15 years. He is the first Director of the National Council on
Jewish Women’s new Center on the Child, and the first major re-
search project they have undertaken has focused on parental leave.
They will be releasing the results for the first time today of that
study. So we feel honored to have you with us.

And lastly, Cheryle Mitvalsky, who is a member of the Board of
Directors of the Association of Junior Leagues, from Cedar Rapids,
IA. In the past several years, the Junicr League has made a real
name for itself in policy and advocacy work on children’s issues. In
my home State of Connecticut, they did a landmark book called
“Growing Up at Risk in Connecticut”, which I sent to all 99 of my
colleagues, in fact, as a product of Connecticut. Rather than books
on submarines or nutmeg, I sent out that particular book, which
did an excellent job of demonstreting that even in a very affluent
State, just how risky it is to grow up in today’s woild.

As a member of the Board of Directors of the Association of
Junior Leagues, I know that we will be hearing informed testimony
from Cheryle, and we thank you for being here.
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We will begin with you, Dr. Zigler. I thank you once again. I
have seen you many times across the table, I think, in the last sev-
eral years, and we are honored that you could spend some time
with us this morning.

STATEMENTS OF DR. ED ZIGLER, DIRECTOR, YALE BUSH CENTER
ON CHILD DEVELOPMENT AND SOCIAL POLICY, NEW HAVEN,
CT; JAMES T. BOND, DIRECTOR, NATIONAL COUNCIL OF JEWISH
WOMEN CENTER FOR THE CHILD, NEW YORK, NY; CIIERYLE
MITVALSKY, MEMBER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE ASSO-
CIATION OF JUNIOR LEAGUES, INC., CEDAP RAPIDS, IA; AND
KAREN NUSSBAUM, PRESIDENT, DISTRICT 925, SERVICE EM-
PLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
9 TO 5, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WORKING WCOMEN, WASH-
INGTON, DC, ACCOMPANIED BY PEGGY CONNERTON, CHIEF
ECONOMIST

Dr. ZicLER. Thank you, Senator Dodd.

I testify before you today not just as a scholar who has for many
years studied child and family life, bu. a> a sort of small business-
man. ] employ a 35-meraber s.aff. Of these, five are currently on
parental leave. and my accountant will be joining them next week.
One of my other employees has taken two leaves to adopt two won-
derful children. Even one ¢f my temporary replacements has left as
a result of pregnancy.

As a result, I am most sympathetic to the plight of small busi-
ness when faced with the cost and inconvenience involved in grant-
ing parental leave, although I, like many others, including many
small businessmen, recognize the need to do so.

My siteation, though extreme, is not unique. In consequence, the
infant care leave problem in the United States is of a magnitude
and urgency that requires immediate national attention.

The work force today is comprised 63 percent of women. Eighty-
five percent of these women will become pregnant during their
working lives. Physicians have determined that women need time
to recovery physically from the stress of pregnancy, labor and
childbirth. Psychologists have cautioned that families need time to
adjust to a new child.

Despite what physicians and psychologists tell us about these im-
portant first few months Jf life, many of the women in this country
are forced, through economic necessity, to return *o work within
weeks after giving birth.

In response to this problem, the Yale Bush Center in Child De-
velopment and Social Policy convened a distinguished advisory
committee, including an ex-Secretary of HEW and an ex-Surgeon
General, to direct a 2-year study of our nation’s infant care leave
situation. Qur goal was to evaluate the impact of the changing
composition of the work force on families with infants.

Our work included the examination of research concerning the
well-being of infants and their families, and the nature and cost-
effectiveness of current parentai leave policies in the public and
private sector, small and large businesses, and in other nations. I
will summarize and give you our conclusions.
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Fifty percent of all mothers of infants under one year of age are
in the out-of-home work force. Despite changing demographics in
the workplace, the family remains the primary base for the well-
being and development of children. The majority of female parents
work because their salaries are vital to their families’ economic
survival, Families need time to adjust to the presence of a new
member. The estimates of length of time vary according to individ-
ual health and family needs.

Many American families do not have the means to finance leaves
of absence from work in order to care for their infants. More than
two-thirds of the nations in the world, including almost all indus-
trialized nations and, I might add, many Third World nations, have
some provisions for parents of infants to take paid, job-protected
leaves of absence to ensure physical recovery from labor and birth
and to care for their newborns.

In the United States, Federal policy prohibits discrimination in
employment on the basis of pregnancy. Employers are required to
grant leave to women unable to work due to pregnancy and child-
birth on the same basis that leaves are granted for short-term dis-
abilities of any kind. Federal law does not mandate, however, that
employers establish new disability benefits or provide leave to par-
ents to care for newborn infant..

The Bush committee was especially concerned about low-income
working parents and parents with premature, disabled, or severely
ill infants. These families are under the greatest financial and emo-
tional stress. Interim and partial solutions proposed by our Adviso-
ry Committee included employer implementation of such policies
as flexible work schedules, reduced work hours, job-sharing, and
child-care information and referral services.

Our primary recommendation was for an infant care leave policy
that would allow employees an adequate period of time for parents
to care for newborn or newly adopted infants and to enable moth-
ers to recover from pregnancy and childbirth. Such a leave would
ideally provide income replacement, benefit con.inuation and job
protection. The leave we recommended would be available to either
mother or father for a minimum of 6 months.

We concluded that financing a paid parental leave policy need
not be fiscally onerous. Our research indicates that employer-em-
ployee contributions toward an insurance fund to finance a leave
would serve this purpose well.

As Governor Kean of New Jersey has pointed out in a forthcom-
ing book that I edited, the maximum employer contribution of
$5§.50 per year necessary to finance the system that provides wage
replacement for all employees during a period of any physical dis-
ablement is 2 small investment that promises large returns. Fur-
ther, Governor Kean concludes that there is no evidence that such
contributions have caused significant economic strain on employ-
ers.

Families are in crisis—and I conclude on this point. Please be
aware of the magnitude of that crisis. You have heard it already
from your witnesses. And they are looking to the government for
help. Families are a bipartisan issue. I applaud the efforts of this
Congress and this committee to examine a nationwide parental
leave policy.
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While I do not feel that this bill goes fa - enough, it is an abso-
lutely necessary first step. Perhaps its greatest value may be in
sending a message to our nation’s families that indicates we recog-
nize the problems they are facing ard that our Congress is working
toward a solution.

Parental leave is critical to the healthy development of children
and families. The bill under discussion indicates that the Congress
has become attuned to the real problems facing those many fami-
lies for whom two incomes are an absolute necessity.

The sponsors of this bill have performed a great service to this
nation. As an advocate for children and families for more than 30
years, and as a scholar who has worked in both Republican and
Democratic administrations, I congratulate you on your wisdom in
designing this enlightened legislation.

Thank you.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much, Doctor, for that testimony.

[The prepared statement of Dr. Zigler follows:]

o
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E. Zigler

The infant care leave problem in the United States is of a
magnitude and urgency that requires immediate national attention.
The workforce today is comprised of 63 percent women. According
to Censts Bureau estimates, 85 percent of these women are likely
to become pregnant during their working lives. Physicians have
determined that women need time to recover physically from the
stress of pregnancy, labor, and childbirth. Psychologists have
cautioned that families need time to adjust to a new child.

Despite what physcians and psychologists tell us about these
important first few months of life, many of the women in this
country are forced--through economic necessity--to return to work
within weeks after giving nicth.

In response to this problem, the Yale Bush Center in child
Development and Social Policy convened an Advisory Committee.

Our goal was to evaluate the impact of the changing composition
of the workforce on families with infants. The Committee examined
research concerning the well-being of infants and their

families, and the nature and cost-effectiveness of current
parental leave policies in the public and private sector, small
and large businesses and in other nations.

After reviewing the research, the Advisory Committec

determined:

1. Fifty percent of all mothers of infants under one year of
age are in the out of home workforce.

2. Despite changing demographics in the workplace, the family
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E. Zigler

remains the primary base for the well-being and development of

children. 1%
3. The majority of){iients wurk because their salaries are
vital to their families' economic survival.
4. Families need time to adjust to the presence of a new member.
The estimates of length of time vary according to individual
health and family needs.
5. HMany American families do not have the means to finance
leaves of absence from work in order to care for their infants.
6. More than two-thirds of the nations a2n the world, including
almost all industrialized nations, have some provisions for
parents of infants to take paid, job protected leaves of absence
to ensure physical recovery from labor and birth, and to care
for their newborn. ,
7. In the United States, fedéral policy prohibits discrimination
in employment on the basis of pregnancy. Employers are required
to grant leaves to women unable to work due to pregnancy and
childbirth on the same basis that leaves are for (granted |short-
term disabilities of any kind. Federal law does not mandate,
however, that employers establish new disability benefits or
provide leave to parents to care for newborn infants.

our Committee is especially concerned about low income
working parents and parents with premature, disabled or severely
i11 infants. These families are under the greatest financial and
emotional stress.

Interim and partial solutions proposed by the Committee
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E. Zigler
included employers' implementation of such policies as: flexible
work schedules, reduced work hours, job sharing and child care
information and referral services.

our primary recommendation was for an infant care leave policy
that would allow employe~s an adequate poer .od of time for parents
to care for newborn or newly adopted infanis, and to enable
mothers to recover from pregnancy and childbirth. Such a leave
would provide income replacement, benefit continuation and job
protection. The leave would be available “o either mother or
father for a minimum of six months, and woula include partial
income replacement.

Families are in crisis, and they are looking to the
government for help. I applaud the efforts of this Congress to
establish a nationwide parental leave policy. While I do not feel
that this bill goes far enough, it is an absolutely necessary first
step. Perhaps its greatest value may be in sending a message to
our nation's families that indicates we recognize the problems they
are facing, and that our Congress is working toward a solution.
Parental leave is critical to the healthy development n»f children
and families. This bill indicates that the Congress has become
attuned to the real problems facing those many families for whon
two incomes are an absolute necessity. The sponsers of this bill
have performed a great service to this nation. As an advocate
for children and families for more than thirty years, I
congratulate you on your wisdom in designing this enlightened

legislation.
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Senatoir Dopp. I was remiss, and I apologize to Karen Nussbaum,
who is also on our panel. I neglected to introduce her. She is the
executive director of 9 to 5, which is the National Association of
Working Women, and president of District 925, Service Employees °
International Union, from Cleveland, OH. And she will come to us
today, I understand, with a study which will show that a national
policy on parental leave will save the business community some
money. So we will be anxious to hear that when we get to you, Ms.
Nussbaum, and I apologize for leaving you out. I just did not get to
tge second page of my introductions, and 1 apologize to you for
that.

Mr. Bond, we are delighted to receive your testimony this morn-
ing.

I should also welcome my former chairman, Senator Orrin
Hatch, from Utah. When we get through the panel, Orrin, if you
have any opening statement you would like to make, you may do it
then.

Senator HatcH. I would just put my statement in the record; I
appreciate it.

Senator Dopp. Terrific. We are delighted to have you here with
us this morning. -

[The prepared statement of Senator Hatch follows:]

81-126 - 88 - 2
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STATEMENT OF SENATOR HATCH
CHILDREN, YOUTH, & FAMILIBS SOLCOMMITTEBE HEARING:
PARENTAL AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT, S. 249

PEBRUARY 19, 1987

MR. CHAIRMAN, I CAN WELL APPRECIATE THE DIFFICULTIES
ENCOUNTERED BY MANY AMERICAN FAMILIES WHEN THEY TRY TO JUGGLE THE
DEMANDS OF BOTH A CAREER AND A FAMILY, AND I WANT TO COMMEND THE
CHAIRMAN FOR HELPING TO BRING THESE PROBLEMS TO THZ FOREFRONT.
PERHAPS IT IS TRUE THAT BUSINESS HAS NOT IN THE PAST RECOGNIZED
THE DIFFICULTIES FACED BY THEIR EMPLOYEES, OR THE UNDERLYING

REASONS FOR TWO INCOME HOUSEHOLDS.

I BELIEVE, HOWEYVER, THE PRESENCE OF SUCH EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PIONEERS AS SOUTHERN NEW ENGLAND TELEPHONE AT THIS MORNING'S
HEARING INDICATES A GROWING AWARENESS IN THE BUSINESS COMMUNITY
THAT WORK AND FAMILY WILL HAVE TO COEXIST FROM NOW ON, OR FIRMS
WILL BE FORCED TO SACRIFICE VALUABLE, EXPERIENCED EMPLOYEES.

IN FOCUSING ATTENTION ON THESE ISSUES, THE CHAIRMAN HAS PLAYED A

MAJOR ROLE IN ASSURING A CONTINUATION OF THIS TREND.

BUT, 1 MUST CONFESS TO SERIOUS RESERVATIONS ABOUT THE
PENDING LEGISLATION. FIRST, I QUESTION WHETHER GOVERNMENT CAN
APPROPRIATELY IMPOSE POLICIES AND COSTS ON FREE ENTERPRISE WHICH

INDIVIDUAL BUSINESSES CHOOSE NOT TO IMPOSE ON THEMSELVES SIMPLY

Elk\l‘c d ‘z

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



Page 2

BECAUSE WE IN CONGRESS BELIEVE A PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY IS A GOOD
THING. I PARTICULARLY QUESTION WHETHER THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT
HAS THIS RIGHT; STATES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS ARE FREE TO

LEGISLATE IN THIS AREA [F THEY SO CHOOSE.

SECOND, THIS MANDATORY APPROACH STIFLES INNOVATION AND
FLEXIBLE BENEFIT PLANS. BUSINESSES HAVE GREATLY EXPANDED THEIR
BENEFIT PACKAGES, AND MANY OF THESE PLANS HAVE BEEN NEGOTIATED BY
MANAGEMENT AND WORKER REPRESENTATIVES. THE PARENTAL AND MEDICAL
LEAVE BILL W'LL SIPHON OFF PART OF THE EMPLOYER'S BENEFIT DOLLAR
WHICH EMPLOYEES MIGHT PREFER BE SPENT ON OTHER TYPES OF BENEFITS.
ALSO, BECAUSE THE BILL SETS A FEDERAL STANDARD, IT couULD KILL
EXISTING PAREN'TAL LEAVE POLICIES NO MATTER HOW POPULAR OR

PROGRESSIVE THEY APZ.

THIRD, THIS BILL IMPOSES UNKNOWN COSTS ON THE PRIVATE
SECTOR--COSTS WHICH INCLUDE HIRING TEMPORARY HELP FOR THE LENGTH
OF TIME AN EMPLOYEE IS GONE AND CONTINUING HEALTH BENEFITS. B8UT
MOST DIPFICULT TO ESTIMATE IS THE LOSS OF PRODUCTIVITY. EVEN A
COMPETENT TEMPORARY WORKER CANNOT ADEQUATELY SUBSTITUTE FOR AN
EXPERIENCED, TRUSTED EMPLOYEE. I MIGHT ADD THAT THE COSTS OF

ENFORCING THIS LEGISLATION WOULD NOT BE INSIGNIFICANT.

FINALLY, IN ZPITE OF ITS POTENTIAL COSTS, THE BILL MAY HAVE
LITTLE BENEFIT. FIRST, ONLY THOSE FAMILIES WHO CAN AFFORD FOUR
AND A HALF MONTHS OF UNPAID LEAVE WILL TAKE IT. AND, IF WE

MANDATE PAID LEAVE, IT WILL UNDOUBTEDLY HAVE A SEVERE

EIKTC N
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DISEMPLOYMENT EFFECT, WHICH [ OO0 NOT BELIEVE ANYONE ON THIS
COMMITTEE WANTS TO SEE. SECOND, THE BILL MERELY POSTPONES THE
FAMILY'S DAY OF RECKONING FOUR AND A HALF MONTHS. THE BILL OOES
NOT ADDRESS THE FAR MORE CRITICAL [SSUE OF CHILD CARE--ACCESS TO
CHILD CARE FOR LOW AND MODERATE INCOME FAMILIES, THE NEbu FOR

GREATER CHILD CARE AVAILABILITY, AND BETTER QUALITY CHILD CARE.

1 AM VERY CONCERNED ABOUT THE PROBLEMS FACED BY NEW
PARENTS, AND I WHOLEHEARTEDLY ENCOURAGE INDIVIDUAL BUSINESSES TO
DEVELOP LEAVE AND BENEFIT POLICIES WHICH WILL TAKE THE NEEGS OF
FAMILIES INTO ACCOUNT. BUT I AM ALSO CONCERNED THAT S. 249 AND
ITS HOUSE COUNTERPART, THOUGH WELL-INTENTIONED, WILL NOT SOLVE
THE FAMILY'S GREAPEST PROBLEM--HOW TO OBTAIN AFFORDABLE, QUALITY
INFANT AND CHILD CARE--AND INSTEAD WILL IMPOSE SUBSTANTIAL
INCREASED COSTS ON BUSINESS, PARTICULARLY SMALL BUSINESS, WHICH
COULD HAVE ADVERSE EFFECTS ON THOSE WE ARE TRYING TO HELP WITH

THIS LEGISLATION.
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Senator Dobp. Mr. Bond, please proceed.

Mr. Bonbp. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the Subcom-
mittee,

The National Council of Jewish Women Center for the Child re-
cently completed a national survey of employee benefits as part of
a larger study of work and family issues called “Mothers in the
Workplace”. The survey was conducted in 100 communities around
the country, by trained volunteers, working under the suspices of
local affiliates of the National Council of Jewish Women,

We obtained information from over 2,000 employers of all sizes
in both public and private sectors, and this information describes
the fr.nge benefits available to nearly 4,000 groups of workers, rep-
reser‘liting different occupations within the organizations we sur-
veyed,

For purposes of this hearing, I will restrict my comments to what
we discovered about the leave benefits provided to working women
for maternity and parenting by employers of 20 or more workers,
which is as close as we could come to isolating the employers of 15
or more workers who would be covered by the P-.rental and Medi-
cal Leave Act. A more detailed presentation of these findings ap-
pearsdin my prepared statement which has been submitted for the
record.

I should mention that we did not examine the availability of pa-
rental leave for new fathers, for adoptive parents, or parents of se-
riously ill children.

The medical community generally considers 8 weeks to be the
minimum period of maternity-related disability, assuming no com-
plications during pregnancy or delivery. We found that women in
72 percent of the groups we surveyed currently receive a minimum
of 8 weeks of job-protected medical leave; 28 percent do not. About
half the time, medical leaves are paid, and health insurance cover-
age continues with an employer contribution.

Larger employers are somewhat more likely than smaller ones to
provide these benefits, but the differences are not great.

Some amount of parental leave is available to women in 38 per-
cent of the groups surveyed, 4 weeks being the amount most fre-
quently reported by employers. It is worth noting that small em-
ployers, including even those with fewer than 20 employees, are
Just as likely as larger employers to offer some amount of job-pro-
tected parental leave.

Moreover, we found that smaller employers are more likely to
allow reduced work schedules for women returning from childbirth.
Thus, it would not appear, based on our findings, that extended pe-
riods of employee absence necessarily pose greater difficulties for
small employers.

Finally, I would like to comment on the extent to which the spe-
cific leave components of the proposed Act are already embodied in
formal personnel policies.

Among employzrs with 20 or more workers, 44 percent of the
groups of workers that we surveyed are covered by their pre-exist-
ing health plans while on leave. And in nearly every case, employ-
ers also make some contribution to these plans.

As for other components of the act, substantially fewer groups
are guaranteed the full 26 weeks of job-protected medical leave, or

€,
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18 weeks of job-protected parental leave, or reduced work schedules
upon returning to work following childbirth. Hardly any workers,
only 1 percent of the groups we surveyed, receive all four of these
componerts currently, in the form of a leave benefit package that
is guaran.eed by standard policy.

One should not conclude on the basis of this finding, however,
that the passage of the act would require sweeping changes in the
leave benefits offered by all employers, large and small. Indeed,
available information suggests that utilization of leave benefits fol-
lowing passage of the Act would not be dramatically higher than
current levels. Probably the most significant impact of the pro-
posed Act from the perspectives of employers and employees would
be to transform informal practices into formal policies that apply
equally to all workers.

However, we can be certain that most employees will not utilize
the maximum benefits guaranteed under the act. First of all, very
few workers fortunately ever become eligible by virtue of disability
for the maximum medical leave of 26 weeks, and in the majority of
cases, at least, their needs for medical leave seem to be more or
less adequately served by current practices—though workers are
often not protected by formal policies at this point in time.

Second, it seems likely that requests for extended parental leave
will be quite modest. Research to date indicates that in organiza-
tion where parental leave is already offered to male employees, rel-
atively few take advantage of the benefit at all; and given the
growing dependence of families on the earnings of working moth-
ers, there is little reason to expect that women can afford to take
extended periods of unpaid leave for parenting.

Information jusi provided to us by a large corporation that offers
2 months of unpaid parental leave as a matter of standard rolicy
supports this conclusion. In their experience, less than one-half of
women request any parental leave at all following medical leave
for maternity, and only one in five takes the full 2 months offered.

In short, the fears of many employers as expressed in the media,
and no doubt to this subcommittee, may well be overstated. As for
the impact on workers themselves, surely any improvement in
leave benefits would help many parents, if not all, better integrate
work and family, producing benefits for children, for families and
for society, the value of which must be put in the balance when
weighing the costs.

I thank you.

Senator Dodd. Thank you very much, Mr. Bond. We will have
some questions for you shortly.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Bond follows:]

Ju
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAMES T BOND, DIRECTOR. NCIW CENTLR FOR THE CHILD.
NATIONAL COUNCIL OT JEWISH WOMEN. NEW YORK. NY
SUBMITTED TO THE US. SENATE
SUBC MMITTTE ON CHILDREN. FAMILIES, DRUGS AND ALCOHOLISM

Fcbruary 19, 1987

MEDICAL AND PARENTAL LEAVE BENEFITS CURRENTLY AVAILABLE
TO FEMALE WORKERS IN THE UNITED STATES

The NCIW Center for the Child ~ a rescarch center established by the Nauonal
Council of Jewish Women - recently completed a national survey of employce benefts.
The survey is part of a larger research Froject, Mothers in the Workplace, which 1s currently

]

nvestigating the impacts of leave policics and fringe benefits on the hves of dwidual
workers and their families. The survey was conducted 1n ncarly 110 communttics around
the country. Field rescarch was carfied out by volunteers under the auspices of local
NCIW affiliates 1n the communities stucied.

Although the broaddpurposo of the survey was to find out how well the needs of
working parents are served by tue policies, pracuces, and fringe benefits i the places
where they work, special attention was paid to the situation of working mothers, who
typically maintain primary responsibility for child-rearing in addition to their
responssoilities as wage carners. In 1950, only 12% of women with children under six years
of age were n the paid labor force. In 19y86, that proportion had grown to 54, duc
largely to the changing economic role of married women within the family. In contrast to
previous gencrations, most women now remain in the paid labor force after they marry and
after they bear children.

As family economies and th~ national economy grow increasingly dependent upon
working mothers, the difficulties they have reconciing work and family responsibilitics
become a matter of national concern. If women cannot Work and at the same time be
mothers without jeopardizing their carnings potential, their health, the well-being of their
chitdren, and the quality of family life, then we are in serious trouble as a society.

In the Jnited States, unlike other industnalized countrics, working mothers and
fathers rely on their own resources and on the good will of their employers, rather than
?ovcmmcnl regulations and programs, to obtain health insurance coverage for their
amilics, take ume away from work for maternity, arrange child care, and meet the many
other responsibilitics they have as parents.  As the number of families 1n which both
parents work, or the only parent works, grows,: the adequacy of “family policies and
benefits” 1n the workplace becomes increasingly important to workers when they cvaluate
cmploymci(nt opportunitics and to employers who must compete for working parents i the
labor market.

Although the cfforts of employers to address the special needs of working parents
have reccived growing attention over the past few years, avarlable information is quite
incomplete. Most national surveys of employee bencfits (c.g. Burcau of Labor Statistics,
1986; Catalyst, 1986; Confcrence Board, 1978) have focused on large cmployers 1n the
private scctor.  Yet, small businesses (with under 100 workers) cmFloy about 55% of
workers in the piivate sector of the U.S. economy, while federal, state, and local
governments employ about 14% of the total labor force. In order to obtamn a more
complete picture, we have madc a speaial effort to include both small businesses and public
agencies 1n our survey,
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How the Study Was Conducted

Information was obtained using a standard qucstionnairc  Each completed
questionnaire describes the pohcies and fringe benefits that apply to a speatfic group of
workers -- that is, to persons employed 1n a particular occupation in a particular company
or organization n the local economy.

Frequently, information was obtained about more than one occupational group ma
single company or organization. For cxample, a manufacturing company might have been
asked to provide information separately for admunistrative support staff (including
sccretarics and data processors) and blue-collar, production workers. A hospital, on the
other hand, might have been asked to complete scparate questionnaires for registered
nurses (who are professionals), medical techmicians (including lab tech...ctans and licensed
practical nurses), and service workers (including food service workers and nurses’ aides). It
was necessary to ask employers about specific occupational froups, rather than about
workers in general, because of the fac (Eat policies and benefits are frequently different
for workers employed in different positions with the same employer. All findings from this
survey are reported in terms of the number (or %) of groups of workers who are affected by
particular policies and benefits.

‘Who Was Surveyed

A total of 2,243 an_ organizations completed 3,892 questionnaires, each describing
a speafic group of workers. The selection of companies and orgenizations followed a
sampling plan designed to ensure diversity m botn types of employers and types of
occupations. Approximately 4,470,000 persons are emd)é(o) ed in the 3,892 occupational
groups surveyed. Of these workers, 52% for about 2,320, ;Iare women.

Of the groups surveyed, 27% represent Managerial and Professional occupations;
48%, Other White Collar occupations; and 25%, Service and Blue-Collar occupations.
This distribution of groups approximates the distribution of female workers by occupations
nationally - 24% managerial and professional, 52% other white collar, and 24% service
and blue collar (Current Population Survey, March 1986). The category Managers and
Profecs:onals is self-explanatory. The category Other White Collar combines three more
;pcciﬁc occupational groups: Techmical, Sales, 2nd Administranve Support. The catego
ervice & Blue Collar combines all remaining occupational groups. Of the groups surveyed,
20% arc represented by a union.

All levels of government and all classes of industry in the private sector except
construction, rining and agnculture/forestry/fishing are represented in the sample by 100 or
more groups of workers. The companies and organizations providing information varied
significantly in size - that is, in the number of workers they employ at all locations in the
United States. Thirty-one percent of groups surveyed work for Small Employers (less than
100 cmployees nationally); 17% for Mid-Size Employers (100-499 employees nationally),
and 52% for Large Employers (500 or more employces nationally).

Since the survey did not employ random sampling of either establishments or
workers, unqualified gencralizations from ;S:lobal sample statistics to the population of
employers or of employees in the United States are mappropriate  Nonctheless, the
sample 15 sufficiently diverse and large to illustrate the full varicty of policics and benefits
offcred by ecmployers in the United States. Morcover, the statistics presented for
subsamples of the total survey sample should closely parallcl population statistics for the
same groups.
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Medical and Parental Leave Benefits for Maternity

The survey investigated the extent to which employers have independently
implementeu various basic components of a comprehensive maternity policy.

Standard polhicies setting the penod of leave for all workers
Job-protected medical leave for maternuty, whether paid or unpaid
Employer contnbutions to health insurance plan dunng medical leave
Wage or salary replacement dunng the penod of medical leave
Parental leave subsequent to the penod of matermity-related disability
Reduced work schedule following medical leave for materty

We did not examine cave benefits for fathers, adoptive parents, or parents of seriously ;i1
children.

Standarc Leave Policies: Even mn very large companies Jeave benefits are not
always sct by standard policies; among small employers, they hardly ever are. In order to
nclude small employers in the survey it was ncccssa?’ to accommodate their less formal
personncl practices. Thus, in the absence of standard leave policies we asked emplovyers to
describe the arrangements actually made in the most recent case. Although arrangements
made in the most recent case might not characterize normal practice for a particular
employer, these data should represent normal practice in the aggregate for employers who
do not have standard leave policies.

The distinction between standard policies and informal practices is extremely
imrortant to both employecs and employers. Employers who implement standard, written
policies are essentially bound by them. ile they can offer more favorable terins of leave
15 sclected employees, they cannot offer less than policy guarantees. Employers who are
not bound by standard policy are able to sct benefit Ic <15 on a case-by-case basis, oficring
very favorable terms of leave to reward a valued empiovee or no leave at all if they want to
force an unwanted worker’s resignation. Such fiexibility 1s lighly valued by hands-on
managers, particularly owners/managers of small businesses but also supervisors/managers
n larger organizations, who are directly involved in the day-to-day :asks of traming.
motvating, supervising, evaluating, irng, and firing. As fu cmpioyces, those covered by
standard policies can be sure of certain minimum benefits; however, those not covered by
standard policics are guaranteed nothing and must negotiate whatever benefits they can.
Though the absence of mechanically implemented standards allows some workers to tailor
leave benefits to their speeinl needs, the absence of standards also introduces uncertauity
and places some workers at considerable nisk.

Job-Protected Medical Leave: The foundation of any matermty policy 1s job-
protected medical or disability leave. All women cxpenience a period of tzmporary
disability surrounding childbirth. Indeed, most physicians consider eight weeks (two weeks
prior to delivery and six weeks after) to be the minimum amount of medical/disability leave
nceded by a woman experiencing a normal pregnancy and delwery. Thus, a policy
guaranteeing cight weeks of medical Icave for maternity mught b considered munimally
responsive to the physical needs of working women. Our findings are zeported in terms of
how many groups of workers recewve eight or more weeks of job protected medical leave for
maternity by either standard policy or normal practice, with or without pay.
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Employer Contribution to Healt% Insurance During Leave: Onc of the most
valuable fringe benefits available .o employees 1s health surance pad for entircly or
partially by their employer. 1t 1s particular'y important when a worker is faced with the
substantial medical expenses associated with prenatal care, delivery, and post partum
maternal and infant care.  Our findings are renorted in terms of how man groups of
workers reccive eight or more weeks of medical leave with continuing healtz insurance
coverage paid (at least in part) by their employers.

Wage or Salary Replacement During Leave: Many women cannot afford to take full
advantage of the leave they are offered for matermty and parenting because of lost
eamings. Foregoing even eight weeks’ pay for medical leave ma&be impractical at a tme
when family expenses are extraordinarily high. Five states (New York, New Jersey, Rhode
Island, California, and Hawaii) require cmdploycr and/or cmf)loycc participation 1n
temporary disability insurance plans, which provide partial wage replacement during pcriods
of short-term disability resulting from maternity and other causes. However, only
California also requires that a voman’s job be protected during periods of maternity-
related disability. Our findings are reported in terms of how many Froups of workers
receive eight or more weeks of job-protected medical leave with (af least partial) wage
replacement.

Parental Leave: Parental or family leave (following medical leave for maternity) 1s
a fairly new concept for most employees and employers. Morcover, margmal comments on
returned questionnaires suggest that where it is offered, it 1s the leave benefit least likely to
have been formalized in standard policy. Marginal notes also indicate that leave time
offcred for parenting is frequently not called or even thought of as "parental” or "family"
leave, but falls under the rubrics of unpaid leave of absence, personal leave, and so forth.

Parental leave is intended to provide for carly infant care, the development of
healthy parent-infant relationships, and the integration of the newbormn into family Lfe.
With large numbers of women now returning to work within several weeks of chil birth,
pediatricians and psychologists have expressed growing concern about the possible
negative consequences of an early return to work for mother, infant, and the fanmly unit.
Our findings are reported in terms of how many groups of workers recewve some amount of
parental leave in addition 10 eight or more weeks of medical leave. Some amount most often
means four weeks (the mode or most frequent response).

Reduced Work Schedule: The opportunity to work less than full time for some
period following medical leave for maternity allows working mothers to be more involved
in the care of their newborns and facilitates their physical and emotional recuperation from
the experience of childbirth. Particularly for women recewing unpaid leaves who must
continue to bring home a regular paycheck (albeit smaller than usual), a temporanly
reduced work schedule allows them to return to work sooner than would otherwise be
feasible or healthy. Our findings are reported in terms of how many groups of workers are
very likely to be allowed to return to work on a part-nme basis following eight or more weeks of
wnedical leave for materruty.

Variations in the Leave Benefits Available to Different Groups of Workers

With the cxception of special statutes in scveral states and requirements of the
federal Pregnancy Discrimination Act of 1978, matermity policies i the United States are
determined by indwidual employers.  Conscquently, “they vary considerably from one
workplace to another.
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Variation by Size of Employer

Chart 1 (helow) cc mpares the leave benefits provided by larger emplovers (20 or
more cmployees) with those provided by small employers (fewer than 20 ¢mployecs).
Employers were grouped 1n these two categories in order to compare (as nearly as possible
given the way our data were collected) employers who would be exempted from the
rroposed Parental & Medical Leave Act (S. 249) with those who would not. [S. 249 would
exempt employers with fewer than 15 employeces.)

Chart 1: Groups of Workers Receiving Various Leave Benefits by Size of Employer
(Number of Groups smati employers = 640, lar * = 3.201)

Reduced Work Schedule 32% [0 Fewer than 20
Following 8 or More Weeks of Workers
Medical Leave M‘Wﬂmmmm 2a% [ 20 or More
Workers
Some Parental Leave in 26%

Additlon to 8 or More Weeks

Medical Leave Mmﬂmnﬂmm 38%

Eight or More Weeks Medical
Leave with Some Wage
Replacement

Eight or More Weeks Medical
Leave with Employer-Pald
Health Insurance

51%

wEL
g

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

Eight or More Weeks Medical
Leave

72%

D

Leave Set by Standard Policy
71%

Larger employers are far more likely than smal} employers to ensure leave b ~efits
by incorporating them n standard personnel policies. They arc more hk:  wp wde
cight or more weeks of job-protected medical leave for matermity, to m. . TIiments
toward health insurance coverage during lea‘e, and to provide at least partiai wage
replacement.

Contrary to what one might expect, hovrever, small employers are just as likely as
larger employers to offer some parental lcave to working mothers. and they are morc hihely
to aliow women to return to their job on a reduced work schedule following childbirth.
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The provision of eight or more weeks ofg'ob- rotected medical leave for maternity
15 now the norm in the American workplace: 72% of groups workng for larger emplovers
and 51% working for small employers receive at Jeast cight weeks of medical leave.
However, substantially fewer groups receive financial benefits (payments by employers to
hcalth insurance plans and wage replacement) while on lcave. Of the groups of workers
surveyed, 41% working for larger employers, but only 23% working for small cmployers,
arc covered by health insurance plans to'which their employers contribute during medacal
leave. Fewer still recewve paid medical leaves: 369 among larger cmployers, but only 116
among small empleyers. [Of course the Parental and Medical Leave Act docs not require
that Icaves be paid or that employers contribute to their cmc{aloyccs healta msurance plans.
only that the pre-existing health insurance plan be continued.)

These findings stand in sharp contrast to those reported by Catalyst (1986) from 1ts
study of medical and parental feave beneiits among Fortune 150& companics almost atl of
which employ more than 1,000 workers  Specifically, their researchers found that over
90% of the employers they surveyed (total n = 386) oﬁ’c,:r medical jeaves with full or partial
pay and full continuation of benefits. The discrepancy between their findings and ours 1s
almost certainly due to the fact that while our sample included a smattering of the ven
largest employers in the contry, their sample consisted excluswvely of a self-selected group
of such employers  Inuced, our findings are more m linc with (though not strictly
comparable to) those reported in carlier studics by Quinn and Staines (1979) and
Kamerman, Kahn, and Kingston (1983). 1t 1s important to remember that while 1 1n 6
workers in the private scctor is cmployed in a company with 1,000 or more workers, 1 1n 4
works for a company with fewer than'20 employces and 1 in 2 for a company with fewer
than 100 cmployces.

Wien it comes to non-financial leave bencfits (parental leave and reduced work
schedules following medical leae), small cmé)lo_vcrs arc as accommodating as larger
employers.  Of the groups of workers surveyed, shehtly more than 1 i 3 recewve some
parental leave following medical Ieave for maternity regardiess of employer size. The most
frequently offered amount of teave 1s four weeks. As for reduced work schedules, necarly 1
in 3 zroups working for small employers, but only 1 in 4 wvorkmng for larger employers, are
very ﬁ'kcly to be allowed to return to work on a part-time basis foliowing medica! leave.

These findings cast some doud' on widespread claims that the extended lcave
requirements of the Parental and Medical Leave Act would impose greater haraships on
small cmployers than on larger ones. In the case of parental leave, we found no
correlation between size and the provision of some unpaid parental feave benefits. In the
case of reduced work schedules following medical leave, we found a modest mnv.
correlation between size and the provsion of part-time arrangements for women returning
from childbirth. A more detaded presentation cf findings regarding reduced worh
schedules follows:

Groups of Workers Very Likely to Be
Size of Emplover Based Allowed to Keturn on Part-Time Basis

on Number of Emplovees After § or More Weeks of Medical Leave

1 -19 Workcers 32%

20 -99 Workers 235%
100 - 249 Workers 29%
250 - 499 Workers 24%¢

500 or More Workcrs 209
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Although most employers provide some of the five basic leave benefits considered
above, hardly any provide all of them whether by standard policy or practice:

|
% of Groups of Workers Receiving |

Small Employers  Larger Employers |

Number of 1 eave Benefits Provided {< 20 Worhers) {>= 20 Worhers) }

None 49% 28%
One or more 51% 2%
Two or more 49% 66%
Three or more 36% 46%
Four or five 14% 17%
All five basic leave benefits 3% 3%

Differences between small and larger employers decrease as leave benefit packages
become more generous.

Differences Between the Public and Private Sectors: Emplovers with 20 or More Workers

Public sector employers include city, county, statc, and national government as well
as public schools. Groups of workers n the public and private sectors are ¢ uatly likely to
reccive cight or more wecks of job-protected medscal leave for matermity; however, paid
medical lcaves, employer contributions to health msurance plans during leave, and reduced
work schedules following medical leave are more often available in the private scctor. In
contrast, parental leave subsequent to cight or more weeks of medical leave 1s more often
available to workers in the public sector.

Variation by Union/Non-Union Status: Employers with 20 or More Worhers

Groups of workers represented by fabor unions are somew hat more likely to recewve
job-protected medical leaves of eight ‘or more weeks (815 versus 705 for non-union
groups) and much more likely to ieceive some parental leave n addition to medscal lcave
(55 versus 33% for non-union groups). Otherwise, union and non-umon workers receive
very symilar leave benefits,

Since labor union membcership continues to deeline (currently about 18% of the
workforce nationally; 20% of our survey sample), any improvement i the leave benefit
packages available to most workers will not be the product of collective bargaining

Variation by Region: Employers with 20 or More Workers

ComFarmg the Northeast. Central, Southern, and Western regions of the United
States, we found that groups of workers i the Northeast fared consistently better and
groups in the South, consistently worse than groups in the other regions. The most stniking
vanation was the availability of paid medical leave - 48% of groups n the Northeast
recerve paid medical fcaves, while only 217 of groups surveyed i the South receive any
wage replacement during medical leave  The corresponding figure for both the Central
and Western regions was 36%.
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Variation by Industry: Employers with 20 or More Workers

Though the avaifability of cight wecks or more of job-protected medical leave di oo
not vary significantly by type of industry, othicr benefit components vary dramatically as
shown m Chart 2 (below).

Chart 2: Comparison of Leave Benefits
Received by Groups of Workers in Different Industrics
(Number of Groups Average of 1 per Industry)

Public Administration mm
(Govemment) P NEN—T- .

414

[0 Reduced Work
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Medical Leave
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During Leave

B Continuation
o! Employer's
Contribution to
Health

Wholesale & Retasl Trade

Transportation,
Communications,and Utilities

Manufacturing
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No industry offers consistently more favorable benefits than were found for the total
sample. Financial benefits (paid lcave and emplover pavments to health insurance plans
during Jeave) are most gencrous in the Transportation, Communucations, Utlities, Manufuc-
tunng, Finance and Insurance, and Business and Professional Services ndustries  They are
least gencrous i the Wholesale and Retail Trades, Personal Senices, Educational Senices
(mainly public schools), and Public Admirustration (government).

The availability of non-financial leave bencfits (parental lcave and part-ime return)
by industry 1s more difficult to characterize. Only the Personal Services industry 1s more
likely than average to offer both parental leave and reduced work schedules following
medical leave for matermity. Some parental lcave 1s most likely to be offered by the
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Transportation/Communications/Utilinies industnes (58% of groups) and Lducational Sen-
1ces (56% of groups) Parental leave is lcast likely to be offered in Manufuctunng industries
(27% of groups) Reduced woik schedules following medical leave for childbirth are most
likely to be offered by the Wholesale and Retail Trades (46% of groups) and Personal
Senvices (42% of groups). Part-ime arrangements arce least likely to be avaitable mn Public
Admuinistration (12% of groups), Manufacturing industries (14% of groups), and
Transpontation/Communications/Unlities industnies (16% of groups).

Differences Among Broad Occupational Groups: Employers with 20 or More Workers

We compared the jeave benefits received by three broad occupational groups --
Managers and Professionals, Other White Collar Workers, and Senice and Blie Collar
Workers. Though differences among these groups arc not_great, they tend to favor
managers and professionals over other occupational groups. The most notable differences
occur with respect to wage replacement during medical Jeave (47% of management and
professional groups reccive paid leaves versus 34% of service and blue collar groups, with
other white collar in the middle) and employer contributions to health insurance during
medical leave (41% of management and ﬁrofcssnonal groups reccive this benefit versus
28% of service and blue collar groups, with other white coliar m the middic). The only
exception to this pattern 1s found i the availability of part-time work upon returning from
medical Jeave: service and blue collar workers are somewhat more likely to be allowed
reduced work schedules upon returning from leave (27% of groups) than arc managers and
professionals (21% of groups).

Variation by Selected Dccupational Subgroups with High Proportions of Female Workers:
Employers with 20 or More Workers

Chart 3 (page 10) shows the variation in leave benefits for selected occupational
subgroups. All of these grou,ps have high proportions of female employees, and all but one
- Adnunistrative_Suppont Workers - arc projected to experience high rates of prowth
through 1995. The availabihity of cight or more weeks offjob-prolcclcd medical jeave
among these occupational subgroups was quite simitar to indings for the sample as a
whole, with the exception of Temporary Adminustranve Support Workers in which category
only 28% of groups surveyed received as much as eight weeks of job-protected medical
leave.

Regarding the findings presented in Chart 3, no occupational subgroup 1s
consistently above average, nor 15 any consistently below average. Groups of workers in
tWO occupalions -- Nurses and Nurses Awdes - are about as likely as the average group to
receive bencefits in all four arcas. Sales Clerks and Cashiers are about as likely as average to
receive financial benefits (paid medical leave and employer pavments to health insurance
during leave) and some parental lcave, but are much more likely to be able to arrange part-
tme work after medical leave. Administranve Support Workers who arc permancntly
employed arc about as likely as average to receive financial benefits and some parental
leave, but less likely than average to be able 1o return to work on a reduced schedule
following medical leave. Personal Service Workers are less likely to receve financial
benefits during leave, but more likelv to receive non-financial jeave benefits than the
average. Waiters/Waitresses are most likely to be able to arrange part-time work, while
Teachers are most likely to be offered parental feave (often for onc year or more).
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Chart 3: Leave Benefits Received by Selected Groups of Workers
with High Proportions of Female Workers
{(Number of Groups. Average of 262 per Category)
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Finally, Temporary Administrative Support Workers are unlikely to receive any leave
benefits for matermty, or any fringe bencfits at all for that matter. Other so-called
contingent worhers - such as persons working part-time, prnate houschold workers who are
frcgucntl_\ paid "off the books" and independent contractors like real estate sales agents --
11_'|n themselves i similar situations. The majority of employees 1n these groups too are
emale.

We found that n 31% of groups working for larger employers part-ime worhers
receive no benefits at all. The proportion of groups in which part-time workers reccive no
benefits increases to 58% among small employers {fewer than 20 cmployees) In only 11%
of groups do pari-ume workers receive the same benefits as full-ime workers. About 27%
of women compared with 10% of men 1n the labor force work part-ime, and part-ime
chﬂoymcnt 15 growing more rapldlg than full-time employment, mainly 1n the retail trade
and service industries (Nardone, 1986). The Parental and Medical Leave Act would very
s:%mﬂcantly increasc the availability of unpaid, job-protected medical and parental leaves
(1f not financial benefits) for part-time workers.
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Current Availability of Leave Benefits at the Levels Proposed
in the Parentai and Medical Leave Act (S. 249)

Chart 4 (below) presents our best estimate of how many groups of workers currently
recctve lcave benefits for maternity that meet or exceed the standards embodied in the
Parental and Medical Act recently mntroduced in the U.S. Senate (S. 249). First, it 1s
important to note that we only considered leave benefits available to female workers for
maternity and parenting of their newborns. Sccond, only employers who ensure leave
benefits by standard policies were considered to be in compliance with the proposed
requirements of the Act.

The leave components included in our analysis were: 26 or more weeks of job-
protected medical leave, whether paid or unpawd, continuanon of pre-exisnng health plans, with
or without smployer contnbution, 18 or more weeks of job-protected parental leave available to
female workers subsequent to medical leave; and reduced work schedule “very likely” available
subsequent to medical leave.

Chart 4: Groups of Workers Currently Receiving the Leave Benafits Required
by the Parental and Medical Leave Act: Employers with 20 or More Workers
(Number ot Groups = 3.201)
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A substantial number of the groups surveyed receive one or more of the component
benefits of the Parental and Medical Leave Act. 44% are covered by pre-existing health
plans, at Icast during medical leave; 27% receive 26 or more weeks of Job-protected
medical leave; and 24% are very likely to be allowed to return to their jobs on a reduced
work schedule following medical leave. However, only 12% of groups reeeive as much as
18 weeks of job-guaranteed parental feave,

When these four components are packaged as proposed i the Parental and
Medical Leave Act, we find that hardly any l{:malc workers (only 1% of groups surveyed)
arc currently guaranteed leave benefits for maternity that would satsfy the requirecments of
the Act. Had we also considered the availability of leave benefits for working fathers,
adoptive parents, and parents of scriously 1ll children, the percentage of groups whose
cmployers are already in comphance with the requirements of the Act would most likely
drop to zero.

One should not conclude on the basis of these findings, however, that passage of the
Act would have dramatic impacts on all employers. 1t 1s simnly not the case that most
workers would utilize the maximum medical and parcntai leave benefits guas2nteed under
the Act.

Indeed. job-protected medical lcave could only be taken as required for medically
verified disability, and fortunately, very few workers are ever disabled for 26 weeks. The
mean_penod of disability for maternity is about 10 wecks - 8 weeks for women
cgcricncin a normal pregnancy and vaginal delivery, 10 weeks if delivery is by C-seeton
(23% of delivenies in 1985), more if there are additional complications. The findings of
our survey strongly suggest that the majonty of employers with 20 or more cmployecs
currently provide cnough job-protected “disability leave to meet the needs of the vast
majority of their employees in cases of maternity as well as other short-term disabilitics,
Although 8 to 12 week medical Icaves for matemity arc undoubtedly disruptive of the
workplace, this disruption is apparently something with which most cmployers of all sizes
have already learned to cope effectively and economics ly, out of self-interest rather than
compliance with taw. The most significant impact of the Parental and Medical Leave Act
In this area would be to formahze the currently informal practices of about 30% of
cmployers.

Regarding continuation of pre-~xisting health plans during icave, the impact of the
Actwould be greater. Forty-four percent of groups working for employers with 20 or more
employees are currently covered by "prc-cxnstin%_':lcallh plans” (contributory and
noncontributory) at lecast during medical lcave. 15 lcaves 56% of groups whose
employers normally make some contribution to heaith insurance, but currently discontinue
their contributions during peniods of leave. The Act would guarantec all employees, who
arc covered by plans to which their cmployers make contributions, conbnuing coverage
and contributions during periods of personal medical leave when they face substantial
health carc expenses, as well as dunng parental Icaves when normal health care expenses

continue and extraordinary expenses (such as those gencrated by a seriously iii chi} “
arnse.

Impacts 1n the arca of parental leave, including reduced work schedul. ing
medical leave. are the most difficult to estimate. 1t is, of course, extremely un... |, that

most parents wili utilize the maximum unpaid leave benefit of 18 weeks. Most working
parents cannot afford to forego rcg‘l{llar carnings from their jobs. A 1983 goll of the
broadly middie-class rcadership of Working Mother magazine (October 1983) revealed
that 539 of mothers returned to work when they did following childbirth because they
“nceded the money " Another 9% said that they returned to work beecause staying out
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longer would have affected their careers. It appear; that onlf 17% ran out of leave and
retumned to save their jobs. Thirty-one percent of women polied returned to work within
six weeks; 66%, within 12 wecks. Regarding the Iikely utihization of parental lcave by
fathers, Catalyst (1986) rcported that only 9 of 114 companies offermg unpaid parental
leaves to new fathers indicated that men actually availed hemselves of this benefit.  Al-
though the attitudes of employers and working fathers toward the appropriateness of men
taking such leave may gradually change, for now new fathers seem unlikely to request any
amount of parental leave. Morcover, the fact that working fathers arc generally the
primary wage camers 1n their houscholds makes 1t afl the more difficuit for them to take
unpaid lcaves of absence from their jobs, whatever the reason  Consequently, 1t seems
lihely that requests for parental leave by new mothers and fathers will be quitc modest.

More comprehensive and empirically based estimates of the likcly smpacts of the
Parental and Medical leave Act would no doubt be weicomed by both proponents and
opponctits of the bill.  As the Center’s Mothers i the Workplace project progresscs, we
hope to learn considerably more about thic lcave-tahing preferciices and behaviors of
working parents through repeated mterviews with over 2.000 working mothers. We wil
certainiy share our findings with the Subcommuttee as they beeome available.
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Senator Dopp. Cheryle, we thank you for being here this morn-
ing and would be glad to listen to your testimony.

Ms. Mrrvaisky. Thank you. I am Cheryle Mitvalsky, a member
of the Board of the Association of Junior Leagues, and a past presi-
dent of the Junior League of Cedar Rapids, IA.

The Association of Junior Leagues is an international organiza-
tion of women committed to promoting voluntarism and to improv-
ing the community through the effective action and leadership of
trained volunteers. Today there are 258 Junior Leagues in the
United States, with approximately 165,000 members.

Junior League members are experiencing the same trends as
those reflected in national statistics. That is, many of our members
are working, and more are having to combine work and family re-
sponsibilities. Most Junior League members are married, have chil-
dren, and a substantial number are employed. In fact, our most
recent statistics indicate 42 percent of all members are employed in
full-time jobs for pay.

My own experience has contributed to my understanding of the
need for parental leave. My husband and I both worked when we
were first married. My husband, just returned from service in the
Army Reserves, was starting a law practice, and we counted on two
incomes. However, when I became pregnant, I had to leave my job
because the school system in which I was teaching did not have a
clearly-defined maternity leave policy.

Losing the second income was difficult for us. Consequently, I
was delighted wlen I was elected to the Board of the Association of
Junior Leagues last spring, to have the opportunity to work for en-
actment of parenwal and medical leave policies, and I am pleased to
have the opportunity to appcar before you today on behalf of the
Association of Junior Leagues to discuss S. 249, the Parental and
Medical Leave Act of 1987.

In particular, we want to thank you, Senator Dodd, for your lead-
ership on this important family issue. We are pleased that Anne
Sayer, former president of the Junior League of Hartford, was able
to participate in your press conference last fall to convey once
again how much the association appreciates your leadership role in
bringing the parental leave issue to the attention of legislators at
the State and national levels.

The association demonstrated its support for parental leave legis-
lation when it convened a national conference in March 1985, as a
forum for discussion of parental leave policies in the United States.
Conferees discussed the medical, psychiatric, and child develop-
ment perspectives, and the legal issues relevant to parental leave.
The conference also provided an opportunity for us to look at pa-
rental leave from the employer’s and the employee’s point of view.

The following policy statement was adopted by the conference
participants. “Employees should have the right to paid job-protect-
ed leaves with continuation of existing health benefits for tempo-
rary, non-occupational disabilities including those that are preg-
nancy- and childbirth-related; to elect a job-protected leave of ab-
sence for parenting, and methods to fund parenting leaves should
be explored.”
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The association publish:d a report on parental leave in 1985 and
has since distributed nearly 3,000 copies. I am submitting a copy
for your review today.

I am also very pleased to tell you that since holding this confer-
ence on parental leave, the Association of Junior Leagues has im-
plemented a partially-paid, job-guaranteed parental and temporary
disability leave policy for its own employees.

In California Federal Savings & Loan v. Guerra, a recent Su-
preme Court decision, the Court did not extend job-guaranteed dis-
ability benefits to all workers, as the Parental and Medical Leave
Act, S. 249, would do. We strongly support the extension of job-
guaranteed temporary leaves to all employees who need them. We
also strongly support the provision for job-guaranteed parental
leaves which will make possible a greater participation in child-
care by fathers. We are pleased that the parental leaves will be
available to parents who adopt a child or who have seriously ill
children.

It is rarely acknowledged that fathers, too, are concerned and
need time to be with their newborn children. As a recent Fortune
magazine article points out, fathers as well as mothers are experi-
encing “corporate guilt”’—they are worrying about the welfare of
their young children while they work.

As Dr. Joseph Pleck of the Wellesley College Male Roles Pro-
gram suggested at the association’s parental leave conference, fa-
thers need motivational and parenting skills as well as social sup-
ports. These are important factors to consider in developing legisla-
tion.

In 1985-86, 27 leagues supported child-care projects with nearly
500 Junior League volunteers contributing well over $571,000. A
number of these projects report a rising demand for child-care serv-
ices for infants.

A recent survey conducted by the Association documents that
both child-care and parental leave rank in the top 10 public policy
issues of concern to the majority of individual Junior Leagues and
the League’s State Piblic Affairs Committees.

Clearly, our support for S. 249 reflects the concerns of Junior
Leagues throughout the country. The association supports S. 249
because it embodies most of the objectives endorsed by the partici-
pants at the conference that I just mentioned.

Opponents of this legislation focus solely on the issue of cost. We,
too, are concerned with the cost to employers, and that is why we
support the small business exemption. However, we urge that this
exemption of employers of 15 or fewer employees not be raised. As
it is, this exemption excludes 22 percent of the work force.

We also urge that businesses recognize that in the case of preg-
nancy, the need for leave is well-known in advance and can be
planned for accordingly.

Most importantly, the history of fair labor standards is clear.
Pressing social problems can be alleviated by a Fcderal standard,
and Federal standards can be accommodated by business.

Like the Social Security Act and the child labor laws, parental
and medical leave legislation would be consistent with a long and
established history of labor relations. The cost to businesses would
be minimal, and the benefits to families would be great.

ERIC 53.
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We are pleased that S. 249 recognizes the need for paid parental
leave by mandating the establishment of an advisory panel tc rec-
ommend legislative means to provide salary replacement for em-
ployees taking parental and temporary medical leaves. A strong
consensus developed concerning the importance of providing paid
temporary disability leaves during our conference. Conference par-
ticipants agreed that low-income employees simply cannot afford to
take a desirable period cf leave from work unless they receive some
type of income replacement. Lacking that resource, low-income par-
ents may be forced to choose between staying home and relying on
public assistance or returning to work too soon for the well-being of
the mother and the child. Furthermore, most low-income parents
cannot afford the higher quality infant care, which is very expen-
sive, and thus may rely on substandard care.

This Congress has the opportunity to do something truly signifi-
cant for families. I personally appreciate the opportunity to appear
before you today and look forward tc working with you in the
coming months to ensure enactment of parental and medical leave
legislation.

Thank you.

Senator Dobp. Thank you very, very much, Ms. Mitvalsky, for
your testimony.

[The prepared statement. of Ms. Mitvalsky follows:]
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wood orning. | au Cheryle ilitvalisky, & mewber f tne soard of
the Association of Junior Leayues and past president of tne Jumior
League of Cedar Rapids, lowa. Tne association ot Junior Leagues 1s
an international organization of women comitted to prowoting
voluntarisi and to uaproving the comaunity tarouyn tne eftective
action and leadership of trained volunteers. Today, there are 258
Leayues in the United States representing approsiwately 135,U00

members .

The Association's cowartient to tne iuproverent of services for
cnildren and families 1s long-standing. Juniur Leagu2 volunteers
nave been providing such services since tne first Jumior League nas
founded in New York City in J9y0l. in tne 1970's, the Association
and indiviaual Junior Leagues expdnued tneir activities to advocate
for legislative and administrative cnanges Jirected at proving the
systeus and InStitutions #hicn provide services to chi..ren and
tnair fauilies. These advocacy activitie, have tocused on such
1ss5ues as cnild care, cnild nealtn, ¢ni1lJ aouse and neylect and
chi1ly welfare services. 1ne Associat-on's interest 1n parental
leave 15 consistent with 1ts active support for cnilu care
legislation at tne local, state and national level and 1ts role as

an 1uternational youen's urganization interested in easuring Jouwen's

eConoiniC proygress.
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Junior League members are experienciny the same trends as those
reflected in national statistics -- that 1S, many of gur wewvers are
working and iwore are having to compine work and fawnly
responsibilities . 1lost Junior League weubers are warried, have

children, and a2 substantial number are employed.

rly own experience nas contrivuted to iy understanding of tne
need for parental leave. .ly husband and | buth worked when we were
first married. rly husband, Just returned frow service in tne ATy
Keserves, was starting a law practice and we counted on two
inComes. However, wnen 1 became pregnant, [ nad to leave 1y Jop
because the school system in which 1 was teacning did not pnave a
clearly defined maternity leave policy. Losing tane se..id income
was difficult for us. Consequently, I was delignted, w. :n [ was
elected to the doard of tne Association of dunior Leagu=s Jast
spring, .» have the opportunity to work for enactuent of national
parental leave policies, and [ am pledased to nave tne opportunity to
appear before you today on behalf of the Association to discuss >.

249, tne Parental and iledical Leave Act of 1987,

In particular, we want to thdnk you >enator Uodd for your
leadership on this important fauly issue. We are pleased that Anne
Sayer, tne Association's Public Policy Liaison for Area | and a
foruer president ot tne Jumior League of Harttorya, was able to

participate in your press conference last fall to convey once again

o
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now fluch the Association appreciates your leadership role n

oringing tne parental leave 1ssue to the attention of legislators at

both tne state and national level.

Parental Leave Conference

The Association gewonstrited 1ts support for parental leave
leyislation when 1t convened a national conference in .larcn, 14dv,
as a foruw fur discussion of perental Jeave policies in the United
States. Conferees discussed tne wedical, psycniatric andg child
gevelopuient perspectives and the legal 1ssues relevant to parental
leave. Tne conference alsu provided an opportunity for for us to
Took at parental leave frou tne euployee’s and the emploger's point

of view.

The conterence was attended vy 45 representatives rrow tae
acadenic, ygovernwental, business and laour comaunities, itne
Association of Jumiur Leajues, national wuuen's organizations and
child advocacy yroups. The following policy statewent was adopted

Ly tne conference participants:

fuployees snould nave the rignt:
to paild job-protecteud ieaves with continuation of existing
nealth benefits for tewporary, non-vccupational
disapiiities including trose that are pregnancy- and
childoirth-related;
to elect a job-protecteu leave of absence for parenting.

rlethods to fund parenting leaves should be explored.

Q 67
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The rationale developed to accowpany the policy statement

points out that,

Tne time generally provided for disability 1s not sufficient
for many parents to launcn their faimilies.

Therefore, it 1s vital taat a parentiny leave pe offered wnicn
is distinct from pregnancy-related disaoi1lity. Such leave
snould be available to votn wotners and fathers and cover both
birth parents and adoptive parents.

The Association pupiisany a report on tne parental Jeave

conference. widespreaa i1nteri<t 1n tnis report has been
deronstrated by tue distripution ot nearly 3,UUU copies since 1ts

puplication. 1 ai submitting e copy of the report fur your review,

I a also pleased to tell you tnat since holding . s

conference on parental leave, tne Association nas imple wnted 4
partially paid joo-guarantees verental and teuporary disability

Jeave policy for 1ts own ewployees.

Need for Parental Leave

It 1s well docunmiented tnat uost parents tuday combine work and
family responsibilities. .wreover, by now, we all are fawiliar with
the statistics evidencing tne Jdrawatic cnanges in the workfurce aver

the past twenty years: b7 percent of wothers witn cnildren under
three years ola are In the workrorce, representing tne fastest

growiny seguent of tne worktfurce. Aluost nalf of all wotners with

Q 5(}
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children under the age of ~ae are working outside the home. It 15
very important that we acknowledye that the majority of wouen work
because of econowic need. iore and iiore woiien are tne sole source
of support and income for their cnildren, 40 percent of warried

working motners have husbands who earn less than $15,000.

sloreover, three out of four women working today wili vecoue
pregnant some time during their working lives. Tne 1increased female
labor torce participation sends riyples tnruuyn tne fawily and tne
warketplace. As women take on riore work outside the nowe, tney nave
less time for tneir traditional rule of nandying nowe and famiy.
This 15 particularly problematic arcund tne tule of cnildoirtn ang
for a period of tuve umiediateiy following cniidbirtn. Iost wouen
W0 want to maintain a career and a faunly--or are forc.! to
continue workiny out of econoumic necessity--need suue 11 uff at
and following cnildbirtn. ot to provide thaet tiue 1S to 1nvite

orobleus for women and tneir faailies. These pruvleus alsu ere

manifested on the job. In nis book, Lhild lare and Corporate

Productivity, Jonn P. Fernandez, a enayer of personnel at ATaT,
reports that /7 % of woien and 73% of .Jern surveyed take tiie away
frow work to attend to tneir catldren ¢.j., waking phone calls,
calling 1n sick when the cn*ig 1s 11i. «ne estiaates tnat tais
translates 1nto hundreds ot ai1lliuns ot Joilars n lost output for

J.>. corporations.
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A recent Supreme Court decision underscored tne fact that
tewporary job-guaranteed leaves for waternity related disapilities

are viable. In California Federal Savings & Loan v. Guerra, tne

Supreie Court ruled that under the law in California, as wel) as
several other states, job-guaranteed waternity leaves do not
conflict with tne Pregnancy viscriaination Act which amends Title
VII of the Civil Rights Act. The Suprewe Court emphasized tnat when
Congress passed the Pregnancy Jiscriwination ACt, 1t intended "to
construct a floor beneatn whicn pregnancy disability benefi1ts may

not drop - not a ceiliny apuve whicn they Jay not rise.”

The Court did not extend jodb-yuaranteed gisadility oenefits to
all workers, however, as the Parental and .edical Leave 4CT, >. 249,
would do. e strongly support the extension of job-guc: inteed
tewporary leaves to al) ewpioyees who need them. +e also strongly
support tne provision for jJob-yuaranteed parental leaves which will
make possiole a greater particiyation in cnild care py fatners. In
addition, we are pleased that tne parenta) leaves will be available
to parents who adopt a child or who have seriously 111 cniluren.
It 1s rarely acknowledged that fathers, too, are concerned and need
tine to be with their newborn cniidgren. As a recent Fortune
magazine article (Feb. 16 1947) points out, fathers as weli as
nothers are experiencing “"Curporate Julit" -- they are Worryinyg
about the weifare of their young children while they work. As ur.

Josepn Pleck of tne Wellesley Luileye siale voles Prograu suygesteu

Q (; l
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at tne Association's parental leave conference, fathers need
motivational and parenting skills as well as social supports. These

are important factors to consider 1in developing legislation.

Association's Child Care Position

The Association's interest 1n parental leave was first
demonstrated at a 1ts 1982 national conference, "Child Care:
Jptions for the 80's,". in developing an dyendd for action to make
cnild care wore affordanle and accessible, participants at tnis
conference recousiended the estao)ishaent of paid maternity/paternity
benefits as part of statewide temperary disability insurance
programs. Tnis recowktendation sas pased on cuncerns ancut infant
and toddler child care 1n the united States and the gro.ing tendency
of motners of very young cnildren tu return to work snurily after
cnildoirtn.  The cnild care conference participants pelieved that
parental leaves would offer an option for parents who would prefer
to rewain at home for a period folluwing cnildbirth or tne adoption
«f a chld, tnereby facilitating tne process of vondiny between
families and children. Employers also ultimately would benefit from
tne 1uproved productivity whicn ensues when an euplogee's famiy

problews are minimized.

B2




Previous Association Testimony on Lhild Care/Parental Leave

In testiuony before the House Select Committee on Cnildren,
Youth and Famlies, 1n Septewber 1984, tne Association recoiwiended
greater federal leadersnip to 1mprove the affordaoility and

availlability of child care. Federal leadersnip also 1s inwportant

and essential to securing parental leave coverage. wnile five
states have initiated prograws that cuver teuporary,
non-occupational disabi1lities including those related to cnmildoirtn,
most do not nave Such cuveraye and .idy o€ reluctant to initiate 1t

without a federa: directive or incentive.

In any case, tne average disapility icave related tu cnildvirtn

iiany parents want and nee. : longer

1s only six tu eight weeks.
ser1od of tiue (o get a4 yood start at parenting even 1t tmis leave

1s unpaid. Therefcre, we testified oefore tne Select Comaittee

tnat, "Ine Assovciation supporis policies which would affirit tne

rights of parents to paid and job protecte. leaves after

chiidoirth. Tnis could result i1n less need for infant care
facilities and help children get a better physical and emotional

start in the first critical montns.”

in addition, n 1985, the Assvcilation testified in Support of

the Parental and Disability Leave Act of 1485, H.h. 2020, before a

Joint hearing of the suocowniittees on Civil Service and Couwpensation
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and Employee Benefits of the House Post uffice and Civil dervice
Cormittee, and the subcomiittees on Lapbor-rianagewent Relations and

Labor Standards of the House Education and Labor Committee.

Jun1or Leagues Support Chiid Care Services in the Cotanunity

ilany Junior Leagues nave pecowe aware of tne need for parental
leave pecause of their involvement with cnild care services in their
Ccormnities. In 1935/00, <7 Leaygues repuried suppurting child care
projects with nearly 500 Junmior Leayue volunteers and contributions
of more toan $571,/00. A nuuver uf tnese projects report a ri1sing

denmand for child care services fuor ntants.

for 1nctance, the Cniid Care xesource ¢nd referrai, an
information and referral service operated cocperatively 2y the
Jun10or League of ues sio1nes and Pulk County, reports tnat requests
for infant care accounted fur 51 percent of tne .ore than 2,200
calls received in tne last six aontns ot 1¥86. dowever, only eiynt
of the 65 child care centers 1n the comunity provide infant care.
some of the children for whow care was sougnt were as youny as Six

weeks; the average maternity leave fur thne majurity of ewapioyees 1n

ves roines 1s six weeks.

ifany of the mothers seex1ny 1ntant ~re frow the project

express conflict about placing their newoorns 1n care. However, the
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project reports that the decision to return to work jeneraliy 1s not
a choice for most of the motners seeking infant care. increasingly,
families requestiny infant care are single female
heads-of-housenold. In otner cases, butn parents' incoue 15
essential to waintaining the tamily; neither parent nas tne uption
to remain at nowe to care for tpe newnorn cnild witnout

significantly lowering the faily income.

The situation 1n Ues duines 1s mirrored throughout tne
country. The Junior Leagues of Salt Lake City, uklahoma City, Ceuar
Rap1ds and other cities, report tne Same problens--the numper of
requests for infant care continues to rise while the numper of
nigh-quality jicensed care providers for infants remair ., low.
roreover, the requests for care often are accoumpanied ., 24pressions
of disaay and guilt by tme parentS 4t naving to put tiwir infants ag

care at such early ages.

Crisis in infant and Jodaler Cnila Care

Utner national groups interested in cnild care snare tne
Association's concern with tne need for a parental leave policy. As
a report "The Crisis in infant and Toduler Child Care," 1ssued by
the Ad Hoc vay Care Coalition, points out, there 1S 4 Crisis 1in
infant and toddler cnild care 1n tne Jdnited States. [wenty-six

national oraznizations, including the Association of Junior Leagues,

O
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the Hational glack Child Develosment Institute, the Hational
Association for the Education of Young Children, tne NHational center
for Clinical Infant Programs, the Children's Foundation, the
Children's vefense Fund, the Cnild selfare Leayue, tne doard of
Churcn and Society of the Jnited rletnodist Church, and the Wowen's
Equity Action League called fur a parental leave policy wnicn would
"develop metnods of support for parental ieave pulicies that make
this a realistic option for tawilies regardless of incoue or type of
enplioyment.” The report states, ".any cnild developuent specialists
and parents tnemselves bealieve tnat parental leaves to care for
infants would be of substantial venefil to poch cnild and parents.
Accordingly, 1t is desirable to expand tne cnild care options

availanie to new parents."

#hy the Associdation Supports >. 243

A recent survey conducied by la2 aSscClatien Jotumenis that
both ch1ld care and parental leave rank 1n the top ten punlic policy
issues of concern to tne majority of individual Juni1or Leagues and
the Leagues' State Public Affairs Cowmttees. Clearly, our support
for 5. 249 reflects the concerns ot Junior Leagues tnrougnout tne
country. The Association supports .. 243 because 1t ewbodies «ost
of the objectives endursey Dy purticipants at the association's
parental leave conterence, suc.. 45 Juo-protected leaves of absence

for temporary disabiiities 1ncluding tnose tnat are pregnancy- and
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childbirth-related; job-protected leaves for parents of newborn,
newly adopted, and seriously ill chilaren; tne provision of leaves
for both parents; and, the provision for flexible work schedules
when parents return to work after a parental leave, e pelieve 1t
is 1mportant to wake a start toward enacting a sensiole parental
leave policy, even if tne full scope of parental leave coverage

endorsed by the Association 15 not 1n tne final version of tne b11l.

Upponents or this legislation focus solely on tne 1ssue of
cost. we, too, are concerned with the cost to ewployers anu that is
Why we support the small pusiness exewption. Howeveg, we urye that
this exemption for employers of 15 or fewe - employees not be
raised. As 1t 1s, this exewpti1on excludes 22 percent .7 tne
workforce. e also urde that businesses recognize that, in the case
of preynancy, tne neea for leave 15 known well in auvanie and Can be
plannea for accordingly. ilost wuportant, the mistory of f.ir labor
standards 1y clear: pressing social probliems can be alleviated oy a
fedaral standard--and federal standards can be accowmiodated by
business, Like tne >ocial Security Act and cnild Jabor laws,
parental and medical leave leygisiation would be consistent with a
Tong ane established history ot lapor relations. The Custs to
business would be minmmal and the venefits to fanrlies wouid be

great.
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The Importance of Paid Leaves

Wnile S. 249 does not nclude a requirement that paid
disability or paid parental jeaves must be available, tne
Association is optimistic tnat tne need tor some form of paid leave
will become apparent during hearings on this legislation. e are
pleased tnat S. 249 recoynizes tne neeu for paid parental leave by
mandating the estanlishment of an advisory panel to recowmend
legislative peans to provide salary repiaceunent for ewployees tzking

parental and tewporary wedical leaves.

We encourage tne (ongress to do wore resedrcn on the full costs
of the temporary disability initiative {TDI) programs 1n the states
Mnich have thew and now tnose costs are distriputed. incidentally,
eiployers who attended vur parental leave conference puinted out
tnat a universal TV systeu would provige a base on waich tney could

build a parental leave poiicy.

A strony consensus developed concerning the iaportance of
providing paid temporary disability leaves during our conference.
Conference participants agreed tnat low-1ncome eaployees siply
cannot afford to take a desirable period of leave frow work unless
they receive some type of incoie replacenent. Lackiny that
resource, low-i1ncome parents imay be forced to choose between stayiny

nosie and relying on puvlic assistance, or returning to work too soon
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-14-

for the well-being of the mother and the child. Furtherwore, most
low-income parents cannot afford the higher quality infant care,

which is very expensive, and thus may rely on substandard care.

Tnis Congress has tne opportunity to do something truly

significant for families. [ appreciate the opportunity to appear
before you today and louk forward to working with you 1n the couing
month< to ensure cnactument of parental and wmedical leave

legislation.

|
|
|
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Senator Dupp. Ms. Nussbaum, again we are pleased to have you
with us this morning and will be glad to receive your testimony.

Ms. Nusssaum. Thank you, Senator Dodd.

My name is Karen Nussbaum, and I am here regresenting the
Service Employees International Union, and 9 to 5, the National
Association of Working Women.

I am accompanied by Peggy Connerton, the chief economist of
the SEIU.

I am pleased to testify in support of Senate bill 249, companion
of House bill 925, which is the fir.t bill named for us, as far as I
know, and I cannot think of a etter issue to be associated with.

The fundamental facts are these. Newborns need their parents,
and their parents need their jobs; and that is why we need this bill.

I will make three points in my testimony today: most women are
found in the workplace; our work force is becoming increasingly
marginal, with few policies responding to the needs of the working
falr)nily: and the cost to employers of implementing this bill is negli-
gible.

Women are in the paid work force in record numbers. Over half
of all women work outside the home, and in ten years, more
women will work than men. By 1990, 91 percent of women in prime
childbearing years will be working.

These women are part of a new work force which is character-
ized by lower pay and the need for two-wage families. In fact, two-
wage families are now the norm, and soon may expect to earn less
than one-wage families of the recent past.

These working parents have little support. Most companies tend
not to provide disability pay for pregnancy and childbirth, or even
unpaid leave with a job guarantee, and we can expect benefits in
small companies where a majority of Americans work, to be worse.

The new reality is that most women work; most households have
two wage-earners; and most working parents have no guaranteed
support when it comes “me to care for their newborn, newly adopt-
ed, or seriously ill chilaren, or when it comes to coping with a seri-
ous illness themselves. Legislation is acutely needed.

We are not saying S. 249 is cost-free. But we challenge the claim
that unpaid family leave would bankrupt business, with the tab
running into the tens of billions of dollars each year-.

One such study by the Chamber of Commerce grossly inflates the
cost to the tune of $16 billion. While their claims are not backed up
by supporting evidence, an imporiwant flaw shows up in their meth-
odology. Contrary to sound business practice, the Chamber assumes
in calculating their $16 billion that employers will always hire the
most costly replacement workers—agency temporary workers.

For example, the Chamber places the net cost to a Washington,
DC, business to replace a word processor on leave at $5,000, based
on a $15.50 an hour agency temporary cost. But a BNA study found
that total wage and benefit costs were lower for these workers than
for regular employees. What is expensive is the hefty mark-up
fees—often 40 percent or more—to an outside agency.

Not surprisingly, agency temps are a small fraction of the tempo-
rary work force. Most employers hire temps directly. And although
9 to 5 and SEIU would have it otherwise, the pay for temps is noto-
riously low, averaging more than $2 an hour less than pay for
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other employees, as we found in 9 to 5. report, “Working at the
Margins.”

I have provided written testimony which confirms what many of
us already know—the net payroll costs could actually drop for
many companies during the period of parental leave.

Indeed, a study by Catalyst found the vast majority of companies
routinely re-route the work of employees on leave. Eighty-six per-
cent said arvanging for leave was relatively easy, and 80 percent
cor.sidered it reasonable for women to take time off beyond the dis-
ability of childbirth.

Other factors lower the Chamber’s $16 billion estimate. For ex-
ample, many large companies already have short-term disability
policies. Small employers with less than 15 employees are not in-
cluded in the bill, thereby exempting 22 percent of the work force.
And there are 14 States with temporary disability insurance pro-
grams and/or parental leave policies which account for 35 percent
of all workers.

Finally, fuily one-third of the Chamber of Commerce costs are
what they call “low productivity”—however, the productivity costs
are higher when companies force well-trained workers to quit their
jobs t¢ be at home with their newborns. Costs of temap workers
would be more than offset by savings in recruiting, hiring and
training permanent replacement workers.

The economic and social costs to families of not having these pro-
visions is incalculable.

In conclusion, let me speak personally. As Director of 9 to 5, I too
run a small concern, one that is staffed almost entirely by women
of childbearing age. And I will admit I felt put out the first few
times someone wanted parental leave. But I have come to learn
that a good manager can manage it, and it is a relatively small dis-
ruption when it comes to years of service from trained employees.

I am also the adoptive mother of two boys. They needed tiv. e
with me and my husband as much as, if not more than, other in-
fants. Yet only 18 percent of the largest companies offer any adop-
tion leave.

Jane Pauley from the “Today Show” was on a well-publicized
maternity leave last year. She would not have wanted to choose be-
tween having her baby and keeping her job. Neither would her sec-
retary, her bank teller, or the nurse on her maternity ward.

This bill means everyone will have the same rights to bear chil-
dren and to support them.

Thank you.

Senator

Dcpp. Thank you very much for your testimony, and by the way,
I have looked at the data as well that you have in your remarks,
and that will be made a part of the record as well. It is a very good
analysis.

Ms. NussB~UM. Thank you.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Nussbaum follows:]




INTERNATIONAL UNION.—:FL-CIO. CLC
e e e e e
1313 L STREET Nw + WASHINGTON, 0 C 20005 + (202) 8983200

JOHNJ SWEENEY RICHAR
INTERNATIONAL PRESIOENT mmmmmn&a&&gégggg

TESTIMONY OF

SERVICE EMPLOYFES INTERNATIONAL UNION, AFL-CIO, CLC AND
9 to 5, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WORKING WOMEN
BEFORE

THE HONORABLE CHRISTOPHE« J. DODD
CHAIR

SUBCOMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, FAMILY, DRUGS & ALCOHOLISM
COMMITTEE ON LABOR & HUMAN RESOURCES
U.S. SENATE
February 19, 1987

"Parental and Medical Leave Act of 1987"

SUBMITTED BY:

Karen Nusskaun

President, District 925, Service Er-luyees International Unior
Executive Director, 9 to 5, National Association of Working womer

Q 74
ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



67

THANK YOU, SENATOR DODD AND THE COMMITTEE, FOR THE

OPPORTUNITY TO APPEAR BEFORE YOU TODAY. MY NAME IS KAREN

NUSSBAUM, AND I AM HERE REPRESENTING 9 TO 5, THE NATIONAL

ASSOCIATION OF WORKING WOMEN; AND THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES

INTERNATIONAL UNION, WITH 850,000 MEMBERS IN THE SERVICE SECTIOR,

OVER HALF OF WHOM ARE WOMEN. I AM ACCOMPANIED BY PEGGY

CONNERTON, CHIEF ECONOMIST OF THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL

UNION.

SEIU AND 9 TO 5 HAVE A LONG HISTORY OF INTEREST AND ACTIVISX

ON ISSUES OF CONCERN TO WORKING FAMILIES. JOHN SWEENEY,

PRESIDENT OF THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION, WAS MOST

RECENTLY CO-CHAIR OF THE FAMILY POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE ECONOMIC

POLICY COUNCIL OF THE UNITED NATION'S ASSOCIATION OF THE U.S.A.

UNDER HIS LEADERSHIP, A MAJOR REPORT " ISSUED WHICH ADDRESSED

THE NEED FOR A COMPREHENSIVE FAMILY POLICY. SENATE BILL S. 249,

A BILL WHICH WILL PROVIDE UP TO 18 WEFXS OF UNPATD PARENTA. LEAVE

~3
o
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AND UP TO 26 WEEKS FOR A SERIOUS ILLNESS, IS JUST ONE PIECE QF

SUCH A POLICY. I AM PLEASED TO TESTIFY IN SUPPORT OF T..IS BILL.

THE FUNDAMENTAL FACTS ARE THESE: NEWBORNS NEED THEIR

PARENTS, AND PARENTS NEED THEIR JOBS. THAT'S WHY WE NEED THIS

BILL.

I WILL MAKE THREE POINTS IN MY TESTIMONY:

1) TODAY, MOST WOMEN ARE FOUND IN THE WORKPLACE;

2) OUR WORKFORCE IS BECOMING INCREASINGLY MARGINAL IN ITS

CHARACTERISTICS, WHICH MEANS THAT WORKING FAMILIES HAVE LESS

ACCESS TO EITHER PAY OR SUPPORT SYSTEMS THAT ALLOW THEM TO BOTH

BEAR CHILDREN AND SUPPORT THEM; AND

3) UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE WILL NOT BANKRUPT AMERICAN

BUSINESSES.

WOMEN IN THE WORKFOPCE
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WOMEN ARE IN THE PAID WORKFORCE IN RECORD NUM3ERS. OVER
HALF OF ALL WOMEN WORK OUTSIDE THE HOME, ACCOUNTING FOR 44% OF
THE WORKFORCE. 1IN TEN YEARS, WOMEN WILL BE IN THE MAJORITY. AN
EVEN MORE STARTLING TREND IS THE INFLUX OF MOTHERS WITH YOUNG
CHILDREN INTO THE LABOR FORCE. 1IN 1985, 54% OF THE WOMEN WITH

CHILDREN UNDER 6 WERE WORKING -- FOUR TIMES THE 1950 LEVEL.

MOST WOMEN WORK OUT OF ECONOMIC NECESSITY. FORTY-OKE
PERCENT OF MARRIED WORKING WOMEN HAVE HUSBANDS WHO EARN LESS THAN
$15,000 PER YEAR. OVER TEN MILLION WOMEN ARE HEADS OF
HOUSEHOLDS. AND THE CONCLUSION OF MOST ECONOMISTS IS THAT BY FAR

THE GREATEST GROWTH IN JOBS WILL BE IN LOW-PAID SERVICE SECTOR

JOBS, REINFORCING THESE TRENDS.

MORE WOMEN IR THE WORKFORCE MEANS WORKING PARENTS -- MEN AND

WOMEN -- NEED SUPPORT STRUCTURES FOR COPING WITH THE DUAL DEMANDS

OF WORK AND FAMILY ON AN UNPRECEDERTED SCALE.
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WORK IS MORE MARGINAL

THE INFLUX OF WOMEN INTO THE WORKFORCE CORRESPONDS WITH THE
SHIFT FROM MANUFACTURING TO THE SERVICE SECTOR. 1IN OUR RECENT
REPORT, WORKING AT THE MARGINS: PART-TIME AND TEMPORARY WORKERS
IN THE U.S., 9 TO 5 FOUND THAT WORK IN AMERICA IS IN AN UPHEAVAL.
A PATTERN OF WORK NEARLY A CENTURY OLD IS CHANGING IN THE SPAN OF

A FEW SHORT DECADES.

ONE MAJOR RESULT IS THE PUSH OF AMERICAN WORKERS TO TEE
MARGINS OF THE WORKFORCE, WHERE WORK IS CHARACTERIZED BY LOWER
PAY AND THE NEED FOR TWO PAYCHECKS. 1IN FACT, DUAL-EARNER
FAMILIES ARE NOW THE NORM, AND SOCN CAN EXPECT TO EARN LESS THAY

THE ONE~-WAGE FAMILIES OF THE RECENT PAST.
THE "NEW WORKFORCE" IS ALSO CHARACTERIZED BY THE LACK OfF JC3

SECURITY AND HEALTH AND WELFARE BENEFITS. MOST IMPORTIANT FOR CLR

CONSIDERATION HERE ARE TFE FOLLOWING FACTS:
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-- ONLY 40% OF WORKING WOMEN IN SMALL AND MEDIUM SIZE FIRMS
ARE COVERED BY DISABILITY PLANS THAT DEAL WITH THE TIME OF
CHILDBIRTH AND RECOVERY: COMPARED TO 95% OF LARGE

BUSINESSES.

-~ A RECENT ST DY BY THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE FOUND THAT ONLY
50% OF THE 700 FIRMS SURVEYED HAD EITHER A PARENTAL OR
DISABILITY LEAVE PLAN. OF THESE, ONLY 31% ROUTINELY GRANTED

8 WEEKS OR MORE LEAVE.

-- ONLY HALF OF THE LARGEST (FORTUNE 1500) COMPANIES ALSO
OFFER UNPAID LEAVEZ WITH A JOB _GUARANTEE. BY CONTRAST, ALL
OTHER INDUSTRIALIZED COUNTRIES PROVIDE PAID PARENTAL LEAVE,

UP TO 14 WEEKS OR MORE, WITH FULL JOB RIGHTS.

-- PARENTAL AND ADOPTION LIAVE POLICIES ARE PELATIVELY RARE.

O
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FOR EXAMPLE, ONLY ABOUT 18% OF THE IARGEST U.S. COMPANIES

OFFER ANY ADOPTION LEAVE, USUALLY 30 DAYS OR LESS.

~= AS WE ALL KNOW, BENEFITS IN SMALL COMPANIES, WHERE A
MAJORITY OF AMERICANS WORK, ARE FAR WORSE THAN THOSE STATED

ABOVE.

THE NEW WORKFORCE REALITY IS THAT A MAJORITY OF WOMEN WORK.
A MAJORITY OF HOUSEHOLDS HAVE TIWO WAGE-EARNERS. AND A MAJORITY
OF WORKING PARENTS MAY HAVE (ROUBLE GETTING THEIR JOBS BACK --
WHEN IT'S TIME TO CARE FOR THEIR NEWBORN, NEWLY ADOPTED, OR
SERIOUSLY ILL CHILDREN, OR WHEN IT COMES TO COPING WITH A SERIOUS

ILLNESS THEMSELVES.

BUSINESS HAS NOT XEPT PACE WIZH THE NEW REALITY, AND THL

RESULT HAS BEEN AN ECONOMIC CATASTROPHE FOR WORKERS.

ERIC /8
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CONSIDER THE EXECUTIVE SECRETARY IN GEORGIA WHO WAS FIRED

FROM HER JOB THREE DAYS BEFORE SHE RETURNED FROM MATERNITY LEAVE.

SHE TOOK OFF ONLY SIX WEEKS, BUT HER RETURN TO WORK STILL WASH'T

QUICK ENOUGH TO SATISFY HER BOSS.

OR TAKE THE CASE RECENTLY DECIDED BY THE SUPREME COURT

CONCERNIKG MISSOURI'S RIGHMT TO DENY UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE TO A

WORKER DENIED REINSTATEMENT WHEN SHE SOUGHT TO RETURN TO WORK

AFTER THE BIRTH OF HER CHILD., LINDA WIMBERLY, A CASHIER AT J.C.

PENNY, WAS WILLING TO RETURN TO WORK ONLY THREE WEEKS AFTER THE

BABY WAS BORN.,

THE_COST TO EMPLOYFRS WILL BE NEGLIGIBLE

NEITHER THE SERVICE EMPLOYEES INTERNATIONAL UNION NOR OTHZ

PROPONENTS OF S,249 HAVE SAID TEAT UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE IS COST-

FREE. ON THE OTHER HAND, WE STRONGLY CHALLENGE THE CLaIM THAT

UNPAID FAMILY LEAVE WOULD BANKRUPT BUSINESS -~ WITE THE TAB

RUNNING INTO THE TEINS OF BITLIONS OF DOLLARS EACH YEAR.

~3
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ONE SUCH STUDY BY THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE GROSSLY INFLATES
THE COST TO THE SCARY TUNE OF $16 BILLION A YEAR FOR UNPAID
FAMILY LEAVE ALONE. WHILE THESE CLAIMS ARE NOT BACKED-UP BY
SUPPORTING EVIDENCE, AN IMPORTANT FATAL FLAW SHOWS UP IN THE
METHODOLOGY. CONTRARY TO SOUND BUSINESS PRACTICE, THE CHAMBER
ASSUMES THAT EMPLOYERS WILL ALWAYS HIRE THE MOST COSTLY

REPLACEMENT WORKERS ~--AGENCY TEMPS.

FCR EXAMPLE, THE CHAMBER PLACES THE NET COST TO A BUSINESS
IN THE WASHINGTON D.C. AREA TO REPLACE A WORD PROCESSOR WHO TAKES
18 WZEKS AND THEN RETURNS TO THE JOB AT $5,000, BASED ON A $135.5¢C

AGENCY TEMP cosT.l

YET, ALTHOUGH 9 TO 5 AHD SEIU WOULD HAVE IT OTHERWISE, THE
PAY FOR TEMPORARY WORKERS IS NOTORIOUSLY LOW, AVERAGING MORE THAN

TWO DOLLARS AN HOUR LESS IN PAY THAN FOR OTHER EMPLOYEES. (THE

1 THE cosT OF AP AGENCY TEMP TS OVFRSTATED BY
%+ SINCE 18 WEEKS DOESN'T EQUAL THE 4.5 MONTHS USED
11 THEIR CALCULATIONS.
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AVERAGE IN 1985 WAS $6.38 AN HOUR FOR TEMPS COMPARED TO $8.54 FOR

ALL NON-FARM WORKERS.) AND ACTUALLY THE COST OF TEMPORARY

WORKERS IS EVEN LESS ~-- FEW RECEIVE ANY BENEFITS AT ALL.

IN THE BUREAU OF NATIONAL AFFAIRS SURVEY ON TEMPORARY WORK,

59% OF COMPANIES WHO HIRED SHORT-TERM TEMPORARIES REPORTED THAT

TOTAL WAGES AND BENEFITS COSTS WERE LOWER FOR THESE WORKERS THAN

FOR REGULAR EMPLOYEES.

WHAT IS EXPENSIVE IS THE HEFTY MARK-UP FEES -- OFTEN 40% OR

MORE =-- TO AN OUTSIDE AGENCY.

A GROWING NUMBER OF COMPANRIES ARE DIRECTLY RECRUITING SHORT-

TERM WORKERS TO AVOID THESE COSTS. AFTER PAYING THE DIRECT

RECRUITMENT COSTS, THE "DIRECT HIRE" TEMPS OFTEN WORK AT THE

ENTRY LEVEL PAY WITHOUT MOST BENEFITS EXCEDPT FOR LEGALLY-MAKDATED

UI, SOCIAL SECURITY AND OTHER TAXES. THE ATTACHED TABLE LOOKS AT

TUE PAYROLL COSTS OF "DIRECT HIRE" TEMPNRARTES IN 20 CITIFS WHEN

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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SECRETARIES TAKE PARENTAL LEAVE, BASED ON THE CHAMBER'S METHODS . 2

THIS TABLE CONFIRMS WHAT MANY OF US KNOW ALREADY -~ THFT NET

PA COUL COMPANIES DURING E
PERIOD OF UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE.

SOME MAY ARGUE THAT THIS IS OVERLY SIMPLISTIC. IN REALITY,

SOME COMPANIES MAY ACTUALLY EMPLOY WORKERS FROM TEMPORARY

AGENCIES; BUT MORE COMMONLY, EMPLOYERS WILL SIMPLY RE-ROUTE WCRK

AND HIRE NO TEMPORARY HELP AT ALL. THE CATALYST, CAREER AND

FAMILY CENTER IN 1986 FOUND THAT THE OVERWHEIMING MAJORITY OF THE

COMPANIES SURVEYED ROUTINELY RE-ROUTED THE WORK OF EMPLOYEES QY

LEAVE.

MEARLY 80% RE-DIRECTED MANAGERIAL WORK, AKD 73.8% SPREAD

AROUND NONMANAGERIAL WORK. AN OVERWHEIMING 86.4% SAID THAT

2 THE CHAMBER'S METHODOLOGY HAS BEEN MODIFIED
7o TAKE INTO ACCOUNT THE SAVINGS IN VACATION AND
L ICK LEAVE ACCPUALS ANL OTHER DIRECT RENEFTT
3 "'INGS WHEN AN INDIVIDJAL TAKES AN UNPAID LEAVE OF
> SENCE
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SETTING UP A LEAVE PERIOD AND ARRANGING TO CONTINUE BENEFITS WAS_
RELATIVELY EASY. AND 80% CONSIDERED IT REASONABLE FOR N TC
TAKE TIME OFF BEYOND THE DISABILITY OF CHILDBIRTH. WHAT THIS

TELLS US IS THAT COSTS W1LL BE MODEST.

A8 ¥ ASIDE, THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE WILL ADMIT THAT THERE

|
\
|
|
|
ARE ALSO "OFFSETS" WHICH WORK TO LOWER THEIR COST ESTIMATES
BECAUSE INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYER POLICIES AND STATE PCLICIES INCLUDE

1
PARENTAL LEAVE PRACTICES. HOWEVER, THESE COST OFFSETS ARE NOT
SMALL CHANGE. FOR EXAMPLE, COSTS MUST BE LOWERED TO REFLECT THE

95% OF LARGE COMPANIES THAT HAVE SHORT-TERM DISABILITY POLICIES

PROVIDING AN AVERAGE 6-8 WEEKS OF LEAVE.

ALSO, S. 249 DOES NOT COVER SMALL EMPLOYERS (THOSE WITH

FEWER THMAN 15 EMPLOYEES), THEREBY EXEMPTING 22% OF THE WORKFORCE.

Q 83 !
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WHAT'S MORE, THIS FIGURE SHOULD BE ADJUSTED TO REFLECT THE

POLICIES OF THE 5 STATES WITH TEMPORARY DISABILITY INSURANCE

PROGRAMS AND THE 9 STATES WITH OTHER PARENTAL LEAVE POLICIES.

TOGETHER, THESE STATES HAVE 35 % OF ALL WORKERS.

FINALLY, FULLY ONE-THIRD OF THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE COSTS

ARE FOR "LOST PRODUCTIVITY".

THIS ADJUSTMENT PRESUMABLY RESULTS FROM HIRING TEMPORARY

WORKERS FOR THE PERIOD OF FAMILY LEAVE. HOWEVER, THE

PRODUCTIVITY COSTS ARE SURELY HIGHER WHEN COMPANIES FORCE WELL-

TRAINED WORKERS TO QUIT THEIR JOBS TO BE AT HOME WITH THEIR

NEWBORNS.

BUSINESSES ALREADY GO TO GREAT LENGTHS TO REDUCE EMPLOYEE

TURNOVER -~ WHICH CURRENTLY AVERAGES ABOUT 15% IN THE NON-

MANUFACTURING SECTOR. THE COST OF HIRING TEMPORARY WORKERS WILL

BE MORE THAMN OFFSET BY SAVINGS IN RECPUITING, HIRTING, AND

ERIC 34
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TRAINING IF NEW PARENTS ARE ALLOWED TO RETURN TO THE SAME

EMPLOYER. ALSO, 1 1Y TEMPS WILL BE CONVERTED TO PERMANENT STATUS

WHEN THE NEW PARENT RETURNS BECAUSE OF NORMAL TURNOVER.

CURRENTLY, BUSINESS SPENDS $44 BILLION AND $180 BILLION A

YEAR RESPECTIVELY ON FORMAL AND INFORMAL TRAINING. IT WOULD BE

FAR MORE COSTLY IN THE LONG-RUN -- AND A WASTE OF HUMAN CAPITAL

== IF HAVING CHILDREN FORCES WORKERS AND BUSLNESSES TO LOSE THE

VALUE OF SKILLS AND KNOWLEDGE ACQUIRED ON THE JOB.

HIGH TURNOVER OF WOMEN EMPLOYEES IS ALSO A SHORT-SIGHTED

LABOR MARKET POLICY. A 1987 STUDY BY THE POPULATION REFERENCE

BUREAU REVEALS THAT PROJECTED LABOR SHORTAGES IN THE 1990'S WILL

MAKE IT HARDER TO REPLACE EXPERIENCED FEMALE WORKERS WHO LEAVE

WORK TO START A FAMILY.

8o
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IN GENERAL, JUGGLING WORK AND BABIES TAKES A TOLL ON

PRODUCTIVITY. FORTUNE'S RECENT SURVEY OF 400 WORKING PARENTS

REVEALED THAT NEARLY 70% OF MOTHERS FEEL STRESS. SOME 41% OF

PARENTS LOSE AN AVERAGE ONE DAY'S WORK IN 3 MONTHS TO TEND FOR A

SICK CHILD OR OTHER FAMILY MATTERS.

FINALLY, THE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE MUST FACTOR IN THE BENEFIT

SIDE OF THE PROPOSED FAMILY LEAVE POLICY. DEPRIVING FAMILIES OF

THEIR ABILITY TO CARE FOR NEWBORNS AND SERIOUSLY SICK CHILDREN

UNDERMINES THE STABILITY OF FAMILIES, WITH " TH ECONOMIC AND

SOCIAL COSTS. FOR EXAMPLE, FAMILIES HEA®DED BY WOMEN FORCED TO

QUIT THEIR JOBS END UP ON THE WELFARE ROLLS.

IN THE AGGREGATE, THE GOVERNMENT COULD SAVE MONEY BY BETTEtr

SUPPORTING THE FAMILY UNIT. THE POPULATION REFERENCE BUREAU

SHOWED THAT THE POTENTIAL LABOR MARKET PARTICIPATION OF WOMEN

WITH A HIGH SCHOOL EDUCATION OR LESS COULD INCREASE BY OVER 13%

IF AFFORDABLE CHILD CARE WAS FOUND.
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SOME FINAL NOTES: FIRST, IT IS CRITICAL THAT LEAVE BE

AVAILABLE TO BOTH MOTHERS AND FATHERS. WHEN MOTHERS ARE FORCED

TO LEAVE THE WORKFORCE, IT WORSENS EXISTING INEQUALITIES BETWLEN

MALE AND FEMALE PAY, AND IT RAISES THE INCIDENCE OF UNEMPLOYMENT

AMONG WOMEN. IT IS IN EFFECT ANTI-FAMILY, BECAUSE WOMEN WILL

ALL. THESE CONCERNS GROW GREATER AS MORE WOMEN MUST WORK OUT OF

ECONOMIC NECESSITY, AND MORE FAMILIES DEPEND ON WOMEN'S INCOME.

SECONDLY, WE VIEW THIS UNPAID LEAVE AS A MINIMUM STANDARD T0O
ADDRESS PARENTAL NEEDS. BECAUSE IT IS NOT COSTLY, IT DOESH'T
TAKE-AWAY FROM OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS. EMPLOYERS STILL HAVE TrZ
FLEXIBILITY TO PROVIDE AN ARRAY OF OTHER COST-EFFECTIVE BENEFiITS

THAT HELP AMERICA'S FAMILIES -~ FLEXITIME, PARENTING LEAVES,

CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE.

RESPOND BY HAVING FEWER CHILDREN OR DECIDE NOT TO HAVE THEM AT
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|



82

WHILE THERE'S MUCH TALK TODAY OF “CAFETERIA-STYLE" FLEXIBLE
BENEFIT PLANS, WE'VE NOT RUN INTO UNPAID PARENTAL LEAVE AMONG THE

BENEFITS OPTIONS OFFERED IN SUCH PLANS.

THANK YOU, SENATOR.
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107AL AVERAGE TEXPORARY  PERMANENT  TEMPORARY PEYMANENT OTHER FRINGE TEMPORARY PEMUNERT NET
cay SECPETARIAL WEEKLY  WVEEKLY WAGE WOPKERS WEALTY L £GAL LEGAL COS1S FOR PAIO REST PAID REST PAYPOXL
EMPLOYMERT  WAGE RATE RATE (1) COST (2)  CUSTS (3) COSTS (3) PERMAKENT (&)  BREAKS (5) BREAKS ($) SAVINGS (6)

ATLANTA 5,026 $377.00 $307.50 327,14 $29.21  $35.82 $£9.39 $10.76 $13 N {$100.80)
BAL TIWORE 3,152 $377.50 $310.00 $20.39 $29.45  $35.86 $50.21 $10.35 $13.21 (3106.10)
BOSTON 8,551 $385.00 $326.50 $20.79 $3i w2 $36.58 $51.21 $11.43 $13.48 ($96.52)
CHICAGD 15,225 33%.00 $330.00 $21.01 $31.35  336.96 $51.74 $11.55 $13.62 (397.40)
CLEVELAND 2,791 $371.00 $307.50 $20.03 $29.40  $35.25 $49.3¢ $10.83 $12.99 (398.20)
DALLAS 9,535 $381.00 $320.60 $20,57 $30.40 $36.20 $50.67 $11.20 $13.3¢ ($99.03)
DEXVER 3,407 $381.00 $322.50 $20.57 330 66  $36.20 350.67 311.29 $13.34 (3$96.20)
DETROIT 9,002 $470.00 $372.00 $25.3¢ 3 3 k.65 $62.51 $13.02 $16 45 (3147.87)
KANSAS ClTY 2,51 3369.50 $308.50 $19.95 $29.31  $35.10 $49.3¢% $10.20 $12.93 (398.12)
105 ANIELES 26,418 $445.00 $373.00 $24.03 $35.91  $2.28 $59.19 $13.23 $15.58 ($110.87)
LIl 3.319 $353.00 $299.50 $19.06 $28.45  $33.5¢ $46.95 $10.48 $12.36 (388.34)
MILVAUKEE 2,2¢8 $366.50 $299.00 $19.79 $28.41  $34.82 $%8.7¢ 310 &7 s$12.83 ($105.23) o0
NEY YORK 30,196 $405 00 $341.00 $21.87 $32.40 $38.48 $53.87 $11.9¢ $14.18 ($104,32) ]
OHILADELPHIA 8,144 $364.50 $294.00 $19.68 $27.93  $34.63 $%8.48 $10.29 $12.76 (3103.46)
1182096y 3,902 $367.00 $301.00 $19.82 328.60 334.27 $48.81 $10.54 $12.85 (3103.57)
AN FRANCISCO 6,431 $423,00 $357.50 $22.84 $33.96  $40.19 $56.26 $12.9% $14.81 ($107.43)

ve LOUIS 5.218 $359.00 $228.00 $19.39 $27.36 3.1 $®1.7S $10,08 $12.57 (3108.59)
ASHINGION 0.C 9,319 $392.50 $338.00 $21.20 $32.11  $37.29 $52.20 $11.83 $13.74 ($92.59)
TOTAL SECRETAPIAL 154, 355

EXPLOTHENT
AVERACE WEEXLY SAVINGS PER PARENTAL (34

(EAVE WITH DIRECT WIRE SENPORARIES  £59 07

Source 1985 U S, Charber of Comerce
Employee Brnetity Survey

Burrws of L toe Statastic, arc)

W Sarveys 19%, 1084

ERIC n 8y

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




84

FOOTNOTES FOR TABLE It

(1) Average Weekly wage Rate-Temporary Weckly Wage Rate Burcau of Labor
Statistics Arca Wage Survevs December 1985-December 1986 The Average Weekly
Rate for secretaries 1s computed by totaling carnings of all workers and divicd.ng by
the number of workers It was assumed that temporary secretaries would receive 2
starting ratc of pay. Howecver, the Burcau of Labor Statistics does not provide a
starting rate for cach job classification. The BLS defines 2 "middle range” of pay.
The middle range 1s defined as two rates of pay; onc-fourth of the workers carn the
same as or less than the lower of these rates and one-fourth carn the same as or
more than the higher. Therefore, we have conservatively estimated the eatry
temporary weekly wage as the rate of pay which onc-fourth of all sceretaries earn
less than.

(2) Permancent Workers Health Cost The 1985 U.S. Chamber of Commcrce report on
Employce Benefats surveyed 1,000 companies nationwide  According to the survey, in
1985 average health benefits were 72% of total payroll  This was used to calculate a
wecckly health insurance cost for the permancnt worker on parcntal leave in cach
city. (7.2% x Average Weekly Wage Rate)

(3) Temporary Legal Costs and Permanent Legal Costs US Chamber of Commerce
report on Employee Benefiis Legally required payments for the temporary secretar,.
including FICA, Unemployment Compensation, and Workers Compensation  (9.5% «
Temporary Weekly Wage) The permanent legal costs will not be paid during the
period of parcntal leave (95% x Average Weekly Wage Rate)

(4) Other Fringe Costs for Peamanent: U.S. Chamber of Commerce Report on
Employece Benefits Total of 1 .13% additional costs of benefits not paid while
pcrmanents are on parcntal icave. (Payments for time not worked ic vacations.
personal leave. sick leave (9.4%). Profit Shaning, thrift plans, Christmas bonus

{2 5%y 3hort tcrin disability, Long Term D.sabiudity, miscellancous pasments (i 27,
Total of 13.13% x Avcrage Weekly Wage Rate)

(5) Temporary and Permancnt Paid Rest Brecaks US Chamber of Commerce Report
Paid rest perrods include lunch, breaks, wash-up time, trasel time and get ready
time. (3.5% x temporary wcckly wage rate) (3 5% x average wechly wage)

(6) Nect Payroll Savings On a weckly basis, by hiring a replacement secretary
companies can be cxpected to save this amount in cach of the 20 citics surveyed
This net doss not snclude the cost of recrusting and hiring a temporary replacement

Example of Net Payroll Savings-- Atlanta, GE
Cost for replacement Temporary Weckly Wage Rates $307 50
Temporary Legal Costs= $29 21
Temporary Paid Rest Breaks=S10 76
Pcrmancent Workers Health Costs=$27 14
Total Weekly Remlacement Cost=$374 61

Savings for worker on parcntal fcave
Permancnt Weckly Wage Rate=$37700
Pzrmzncnt Legal Costs=S55 87
Other Fringe Costs for Permancert=849 3¢
Pcrmancnt Paid Rest Breaks=S13 20
Total Weenly Parental Leave Savings=“475 41

Net Payroll Savings per weck for Atanta (5374 61-S47541 = -S100 80)
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(7) Average Weekly Savings Per Parental Leave with Direct Hire Temporaries A
weighted average of net payroll savings was obtained for the 20 cities in the survey
This savings totaled $105.51 per week. From these savings, an average cost G.

$16 42 per week for recruiting and hiring the temporary replacement worher was
subtracted to obtain a total savings figure of $89.09 per week

Recruiting Costs:

Employment Interviewer Hourly Wages$21.12 (Source Executive Compensation
Service, Inc. Professional and Scientific Personnel Report)

Total Hours For Recruiting (2 days x 7 hours) 14 Hours

Wage costs for employment interviewer= $295.68

Advertising Costs» $100

Tetal Recruitment Costs=$395.68

Total Recruitment Costs per week=$1642 ($39568/18 weeks)

Recruitment costs can vary widely between jobs For example, more technical jobs
may require greater search and interviewing costs to find a qualified temporary
worker In 1985, for example, a survey done by the Journal of Nursing
Administration reported hiring costs for new nurses to be $1,500 per posstion. This
included trairing costs, which presumably would be lower for temporary posstions
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Senator Dobp. I thank all of you for being here.

We have been joined by Senator Harkin of Iowa. Tom, do you
have an opening statement you would like to make? If not, we will
go to some questions.

Senator Harkin. I have no opening statement, thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

Senator Dobb. Fine.

Dr. Zigler, I will start with you if I can. Ms. Goebel, who was one
of the witnesses in our first panel, mentioned that she, in addition
to her other difficulties, is going through a divorce. Have you ex-
amined at all, or do you have any information—and maybe if you
do not, some of the others do—but is this an uncommon experience
in the adoption process?

Dr. ZigLERr. No, it is not uncommon at all, Senator Dodd. The
fact is that the two great demographic changes of our time are the
entry of women in the out-of-home workplace in such large num-
bers, and the fantastic increase in the divorce rate. It seems to
have leveled off, but it is still at about 50 percent. It is not uncom-
mon for a very stressful situation to pull the seams of a marrirze
apart. That is what it sounds like happened in this case.

Senator Dopp. In the research you have been able to do—you
mentioned New Jersey, and there has been some done in other
States like New York, Rhode Island, Hawaii, and California, that
have State temporary disability programs? Can you give us any in-
dication of the kind of cost involved with those programs in the
studies that you have done?

Dr. ZicLeER. We have not examined the disability costs. The quote
was from Governor Kean, who has. We have done a survey of some
200 mothers in the State of Connecticut, with which you are very
familiar.

What struck me about these people who spoke to this issue was
their reasonableness. They are aware tnat they have very little.
This hearing must be put into the framework of the new demo-
graphics today in the United States, 40 percent of working women
have absolutely no benefits; 60 percent have benefits ranging from
satisfactory to wholly inadequate.

If you ask women what they want, they could write your bill for
you. In our survey with Connectic it mothers we found women
asking for a time out to care for their new born or newly adopted
infants, something on the order of 3 to 3%2 months. Those of us
who are in child develcpment wish they realized that they could
benefit frora more, but they are in very desperate circumstances.
They cannot take long leaves. They have to get back to work to
support their families.

nator Dopp. There is a frequently quoted comment from some
of the business groups that “Better laws do not make better par-
ents.” How important do you rate the parental leave issue on the
scale of all the other questions thal come up—child abuse, for in-
stance, day-care, and the like? The.e are a whole host of issues we
have to deal with. Where would you place this issue in the context
of those other ones?

Dr. ZiGLER. You are correct, Senator, that all of these issues are
related. One reason I convened the Committee on Infant Care
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Leaves was the terrible situation in this country in rega~d to ob-
taining good-quality infant care.

Psychologists differ on the effects of infant care, but there is
total agreement that the best caretaker for the child in the first
few months of life, for a variety of reasons, is that child’s parents.
Trying to determine which of the problems you mention is the
most deleteries to children’s welfare is difficult for me, because I
know the serious, even tragic consciences of each of them.

I, and I'm sure I speak for the majority of social scientists, would
agree that in order to solve the problems American families face,
we will have to set priorities. Our top priority at present is the
infant care leave, in part because you have given us an opportunity
to do something about a pressing issue.

The politics and logistics aside, the fact is that in this legislation
you are dealing with a constant. The demographics make it clear
that this problem is inevitable. The workforce today is comprised of
63 percent of women eighty-five percent of them will become preg-
nant in the course of their working lives. You are talking about the
great mass of America’s women who are going to be confronted
with this problem.

When I emphasize women, I would also like to endorse the state-
ment by another witness about how important it is for men to
become much more involved, to begin sharing more time with their
wives and children. Your bill is an extraordinarly enlightened one,
in the sense that it makes provisions for others as well as mothers
to spend time with their newborn or newly adopted infants. Our re-
search has demonstrated that others are increasingly involved with
childraising, and would like to be still more so, but are constrained
by the intransigence of most businesses, which make no provision
for parental leaves for men.

Senator Dopp. Well, you anticipated my last question. We have
the chicken and egg question with respect to fathers. Some are sug-
gesting, well, if we have parental leave, then there will be men
who will take advantage of it but really, not necessarily to get in-
volved in child rearing. Rather, they suggest fathers would merely
take advantage of some time off, albeit without pay. In the absence
of this, are you finding in your studies that men are exgr%sing a
greater interest in the possibility of taking parental leave?

Dr. ZiGLER. Senator Dodd, it is .10l the case that men have no
desire to spend time with their children, and would use parental
leave as a sort of unpaid vacation. The fact of the matter is, in the
last 15 or 20 years men have gained a deepened understanding of
their role as nurturers. I refer you to an excellen! new book by one
of your constituents, Dr. Kyle Pruett, at the Yale Child Study
Center, which has just been rebased. It is very reassuring to me—
and your witness from the Mine Wecricers Union is an example—
men do care; fathers love their children just as much as mothers.
We are seeing the initial phase of a quiet revolution in which men
will begin to take on nurturant roles that will enrich not only their
children’s lives but their own.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very, very much.

I think my time has expired. Let me turn to Senator Cochran
and I will come back to some further questions.

Senator CocHraN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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I am curious whether any member of the panel knows the
answer to this question. Are there other benefits for employees
that are mandated under Federal law? I have been trying to find
the answer to that in the testimony, and I just cannot find it. It
may be obvious. Is there any benefit plan that is mandated under
current Federal law for employees?

Ms. Nusssaum. Well, there is minimum wage, of course. And I
think at the State level, you will find other benefits.

Pegggbdo you have something you want to add?

Ms. ConNERTON. Well, there are a series of laws which fall into
that category. There is the Occupational Safety and Health Act,
which requires a minimum set of working conditions which are
considered to be safe and healthy. ERISA set certain conditions
which pension plans much meet, they cannot be top heavy. There
are a number of benefits that fall into this category.

Senator HarkiN. OSHA.

Senator CocHraAN. Well, I know that there are a lot of programs,
such as employee stock ownership plans, where the Federal govern-
ment has designed safeguards and has actually written into the
law enabling legislation so that employers can make available
those benefits, and that there are certain standards—vesting rights
for pension benefits; and you mentioned ERISA.

Mr. Bonb. We of course have the Social Security system, we have
workers’ compensation and unemployment insurance.

Senator CocHrAN. Well, Social Security is a Federal program,
and workmen’s compensation is basically a State program.

Mr. Bonb. Yes, but these are benefits which are guaranteed.

Senator CocHRAN. Among the other lists, I know that Ms. Nuss-
baum in her statement referred to cafeteria-style benefits from
which one could choose as being urged by some on this issue, make
ic a part of the cafeteria selection. And I understand the arguments
against that, but I wonder if there are any other of those benefits
that are actually directed by the Federal Government to be made
available to employees—sick pay, vacation. Is it required by the
Federal Government, for instance, for employees to be given 30
da&sspaid vacation each year?

. NusseauMm. No, but let me comment on it. What we have
come to expect in the way of a benefits package largely arose out of
the industrial unionism that grew in the Thirties and Forties. Non-
union employers began to adopt the standards that were set by
unionized employers, which included at least 5 days sick pay, at
least 5 days vacation, some health insurance, and so on.

What we are finding today is a ratcheting down of those expecta-
tions, that employers are choosing to divest themselves of responsi-
bility for providing any benefits. And this is what we talk about in
our report, “Working at the Margins’—that we are finding a trend
toward a declining pay and benefits, at the very time when there is
no one at home to take ap the slack. That is why it is so important
that the Federal Government do step in and set a floor on what
can be considered reasonable living standards.

And I would add to our list of mandated benefits in fact a 40-
hour work week. The Federal Government does take action in re-
sponse to working conditions when it feels pressed to, and I would
recommend that this be one of those times.

94




89

Senator CocHRAN. I know that there are a lot of employers now
who are becoming more conscious of the need for employees to ex-
ercise and have time off. There was something on television the
other night about one of the favorites for bigger businesses now to
encourage people to stay employed with companies, they provide
gymnasiums, running tracks, and all the rest. And none of this is
required by anybody, but employees are demanding this. One
Jerson was interviewed, and he said that he was stayirg with .is
company even though he was offered a better job with more pay by
another company because that other company did not provide a
gym or time off to exercise during the day, and he just knew that if
he did not have that access, he was going to be overweight and not
healthy, and he preferred to stay where he was because of that
benefit.

I wonder whether or not pressure from employees in the work
force, not just executives, but hourly wage-earners as well, is going
to bring about some of this change that we are seeking now.

Dr. ZiGLER. Senator, we have been examining this, and the
answer to your question is yes. Employers are under much greater
pressure than they have ever been before because of the problems
we have been discussing. The line that used to exist between the
workplace and the home is disappearing. Employers understand
that their policies affect the quality of their employees lives; that
their programs can aid or injure their employees health, and the
functioning of their families.

So yes, I think that the pressure on employers will increase. But
there is one aspect of the question that should be on the table, and
that is this. I talk to businessmen all over this country. Those who
provide good benefits gain in increased productivity and reduced
turnover. The same employers they complain that increased em-
ployee benefits adds to the cost of their product, and that compa-
nies that do not provide benefits gain an unfair competitive edge.

Interestingly, when you talk to businessmen who do provide good
benefits, they are furious at the companies that do. The, claim
they hire the best employees, and it is unfair.

€5 what I hear from the business world is not the position of the
Chamber of Commerce; it would be ideal for all companies to be
held to a single standard, a sufficient reason for business to sup-
port this bill.

Senator CocHrAN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. Thank you, Senator.

Senator Harkin?

Senator HARKIN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I want to congratulate you, Mr. Chairman, for your intense inter-
est in this area, for introducing the bill, S. 249, and for holding
these hearings.

I have not yet become a cosponsor of S. 249, not that I disagree
with it, but I have some questions that I have to resolve for myself
in this whole area.

I especially want to welcome Cheryle here from my home State
of JTowa, where 1 know this is an issue that has been debated a lot,
and where there is great support for some form of child-care in the
early stages.

Q
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I just want to add also to wha:i Senator Cochran just said, that
there are other Federal laws, too, child labor laws and things like
that, that protect health and safety, OSHA safety laws, that you
might subsume something like this unuer.

But I guess my real question goes to whether or not we want to
just focus on parental leave. In other words, saying to a woman
that if you are pregnant, then you get some time off—I think the
bill says 18 weeks—and then you have to come back to work.
Should that really be the focus, or should the focus be more flexible
than that?

I am informed, for example, that the city of San Francisco within
the last few years passed a city ordinance that mandated tnat any
building, any commercial building built within the city of San
Francisco that employs more than x number of individuals has to
have on its premises, in its plan, in its design, an operating day-
care center. I think that might be a way to go.

From my own experience, ! think individuals are quite capable of
working—depending upon the job, of course—full-term pregnancy,
taking a minimum amount of time off, and coming back to work.

I am wondering if we might not also consider proposing that
businesses provide on their premises some form of support for
mothers who want to bring infant children, especially if they are
nursing them—I happen to be a big sroponent of nursing and not
bottle-feeding, into the workplace, to scre form of a nursery, per-
mitting them to nurse those children during the work day, and
then go ahead and do their jobs and take their children home with
them in the evening.

Take the school system, for example—Cheryle, you were a teach-
er. If your school system had had a provision or had a room, a sep-
arate room or someplace set up where you could have brought your
infant child in and nursed that child during the day and taken
care of that child during the day, but still teach classes, would that
have been beneficial to have that kind of a system?

Ms. MitvaLsky. For me personally, I taughi kindergarten. That
might have been a little awkward. They need supervizion constunrt-
ly. So, to be able to pick up and leave and walk out of the room to
take care of the baby would have been a little difficult.

I also nursed my baby so I know that that schedule can be a bit
erratic. It is not on-the-hour or on any given 3-hour period of time;
it gets kind of demanding at times, especially at the very begin-
ning.

Also, there are some very strong statistics, I believe, saying that
for those first several months, say, the first 6 months, that the
newborn infant runs & higher risk of catching another illness that
might be going arourd among young babies. So not only for the
bonding, but also for the health of the baby, there are a lot that it
is really wise to have the baby in the home with the mother and
the father, if at all possible.

That is what I would desire, personally. I think it woulé have
been very awkward to bring the child tc work in my situation.

Ms. NussBauM. I think those are excellent recommendations in
some cases. I would like to draw to your attention a wonderful
report published by the Economic Polic; Council on the wide range
of working family policies that are needed. It was co-chaired by
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John Sweeney, president of the Service Employees International
Union, and suggests many of those kinds of policies which I think
need to be considered in addition to S. 249 and not in any way as a
substitute for this vitallyneeded piece of legislation.

Sﬁnator HarxkiIN. But it could be something that could go along
with it. )

Ms. NussBauM. I think it could be considered, absolutely.

Senator HARKIN. It could be an option, right?

Ms. NussBaum. Sure.

Senator HARKIN. I mean, there may be women who would like to
return to work right away after bearing a child, being able to
nurse——

Senator Dopp. Well, this bill is not mandatory, Tom.

Senator HArkIN. No, but I am saying it only speaks to one ele-
ment.

Ms. Nusseaum. But I think it gets to Mr. Bond’s comments that
very few people actually take advantage of the full provisions that
are available and could choose ainong some possibilities.

Dr. ZicLER. Senator, there is a problem of which you should be
aware. I am sorry Senator Hatch left, because Senator Hatch had
an absolutely wonderful women’s conference in Utah at which I |
had the privilege of speaking. There is a phenomenon that really |
worries those of us interested in the healtﬁ of mothers today, and
the depth of everything you have outlined.

What we are now seeing is something that I find very frighten-
ing. There was a very distinguished iatrician from the State of
Utah who said, as one of the witnesses said, mothers need two
months of leave to recover from the physical trauma of pregnancy
and childbirth. That has been the conventional wisdom tEroughout
my thirty years in this field. Women are no longer taking that es-
sential time to recover. Instead, as you point out, women are re-
turning to work 3 weeks after their children are born. Those
women are neither physically nor psychologically capable, really,
of being very good employees.

If you work with those women who return to the workplace im-
mediately &)u find that they are depressed, that they would like to
be home. When we first started talking about infant care leave,
there was no bill supporting the proposed, and a reporter from the
Salt Leke City paper came up to me after a conference and I think
Mrs. Hatch vas beside me—and she said, “Do you think there is a
possibility of ever having infant care leave?”’ And as she is asking
me the question—we all know reporters are supposed to be tough—
tears started rolling down this woman’s cheeks.

And, being a psychologist, I said, “You are very upset. What is
the matter?

And she said, “Well, this is my first day back on the job, and I do
not know how my baby is doing, and T am worried.”

This is why tzis leave is so important. Wnat we need in this
country is not just an infant care leave bill; we need a major suf»
port system pieced together so that the life of parents as family
members andp workers are possible.

I will add one thing to my testimony, and that is this. American
families are revealed in every survey to be under terrible stress. It
is not accidental that political leaders are making speeches about
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the family. The cost of this bill is less than the cost to families to
endure our present system. I think that in terms of its value to this
country, it will act as a signal to families that are at their wits’ end
that somebody here cares, and that is why I endorse it so strongly.

Senator HARKIN. Well, again, do not get me wrong. I believe in
parental leave, and I like what the bill speaks of, and I think it is
something that is long overdue. But again, I caution against getting
a fixation on this idea that there has to be a set limit of time for a
woman to take off when she is pregnant and then to be offered a
certain length of time of 18 weeks or whatever afterward. There
may be jobs, there may be situations in which women can return to
work much eerlier than that if in fact there is a support systemn in
that place of work that will allow that mother to bring the child to
.worlé, nurse the child, and take care of that child during the work-
ing day.

I can only tell you—we are all products of our personal experi-
ence—when my wife and I had our first child, my wife worked
right up until the last day—in fact, she was working when she
went into labor. She had the child, was out for less than a month,
maybe 2% to 3 weeks, and then went back to work, but insisted on
taking the child to work with her and nursed the child right at
work, much to the consternation of many men around her. But I
am saying that it can be done.

I had an employee on the House side who was pregnant and had
a child, and I simply made provisions for a small nursery in my
office. She tovk maybe 3 weeks off, brought the child into work,
nursed the child during the day, and was a very productive worker
in my office.

Now, I am not saying you can do that on every jobsite, but I am
saying there ought to be some flexibility that would allow for that
kind of thing to happen, and that employers and businesses ought
to be sensitized to the fact that women should be allowed to bring
those children in and take care of them at the workplace and still
be productive workers.

I said, it cannot take place, obviously, in every work situation,
but in some work situations, it can happen. I know from my own
experience it can happen that way. You do not have to give 4 or 5
months off. The point I am making, is that there has got to be
room for different methods of letting families be together and have
this kind of bonding in support of the children, rather than just
iooking at some set amount of time oif.

Ms. MitvaLsky. May I comment on that? I think you are abso-
lutely right. But this policy is not mandating that every woman
must take that maximum amount of time. In some cases, you are
absolutely right, it will work, and your wife was very, very fortu-
nate. But in some cases, it simply will not. And we have to have
sume policy in effect so the women have the option of taking time
off. And I think we are talking about options right now; we are not
talking about mandat‘ng. We are talking about flexibility.

Senator Dopp. Yes. This is a choice. And what we have now is
parents do not have any choice if they want to stay home. And we
i)ave only some 2,000 employers out of 6 million that have invested
in any child-care programs at all, let alone programs on the job
site. To have a business with 20 employees, like Ms. Specter’s pie
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business, put a chil¢-care center in a bakery is probably not very
likely—whereas IMB could.

Senator HARkIN. That is right. There are some that will permit
it and some that will not, and I am looking for the maximum
amount of flexibility that would provide a variety of options in that
regard. Whatever support we on the Federal level can give to
States or local communities that would do what San Francisco has
done, I think that is a definite step in the right direction.

Senator Dopp. Another problem, too, and I do not know if any of
the witnesses would care to comment on this, but many child-care
centers prohibit infants of under three months from coming in.
There is a real problem with that. So even in San Francisco, child
care centers do not cover the parental leave period of time. You are
not allowed to have your new-born infant in that child-care center.

Senator HARkIN. There should be nursing facilities; it should
allow for nursing facilities.

Ms. CoNNERTON. I would like to make a quick comment on that,
since our union was one of the big supporters of the San Francisco
bill which passed. )

Many of our workers in low-wage jobs, typically, clerical, build-
ing service, nursing home workers, hospital workers, have man-
aged over the years to get some degree of maternity leave. Howev-
er, it took—and we fully support the idea of more options out
there, and we had them working at the collective bargaining table
for a number of years to try to get such things as child-care centers
and so forth—and I have to say that it took, in one case, to get an
on-site child-care center, ten years in a big Boston city hospital.

Senator Dopp. By the way, in the Senate, the child-care facility
here, the minimum age is 18 months before a child can come in.

The other point I would make is that we are talking here not
only about pregnancy, but adoption and serious illness. In the case
of &doption, the problems are not just nursing; they are far more
serious, I think, in many cases, and you could argue at least as se-
rious as the problems of caring for a newborn. And serious illness,
obviously, makes parents want to be with the child. Take the
Ronald McDonald facilities, which have been a tremendous asset to
families, with seriously ill children. The problem is as the parent of
a seriously ill child, you can have access to a Ronald McDonald
House, but if you cannot get the leave to be with your child, what
good is the Ronald McDonald House if you are going to lose your
job in the process?

So our bill tries to encompass those serious situations. How well
can an employee perform if he has a child who is dying, but he is
sitting at work because he cannot get the time off to be with his
child? To me, that is just common sense. 1 do not understand why
there is objection to that notion, frankly. And you cannot put up a
fhild-care center anywhere that is going to take care of that prob-
em.

Senator HARKIN. That is right.

Senator Dopp. Just a few more things, if I may. Costs, Karen.
Your study looked at the agency costs. I was intrigued. I think I
heard you, but I would like to understand it better.

The studies that have been done on the temporary hires.
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As you said in your testimony, leave out the agency fee in the
calculation of the temporary hires’ costs. If an employer hires the
temp directly, it averages $2 less, whereas if you hire through an
agency, you would be paying a higher rate. But 40 percent of that
cost would be the agen.y fee, not the wage the temporary hire
would be receiving. Do I understand that correctly?

Ms. Nusspaum. That is right.

Ms. ConNERTON. Well, the wage paid the temporary is $2 less. In
addition to that, most temps unfortunately do not have benefits. So
you have savings in terms of benefit costs, and in addition to that,
on top, you save the agency mark-up fee. So there is a considerable
savings by hiring directly temporary workers. And as Karen's
report mentions, many companies are directly hiring temps.

nator HARKIN. I just want to ask one other question. In review-

ing this bill the other day, someone mentioned to me—not my staff,

glﬁ someone else—mentioned to me that this is really a “yuppie”
ill.

Senator Dopp. I wish you could have seen our first panel of wit-
nesses when I asked them whether or not they thought they were
“yuppies”.

Senator ZARkIN. I am sorry I was not here. The point being that
it is unpaid leave, and many women who are in lowpaid jobs
simply cannot afford to take that much unpaid leave, and it puts
them in a heck of a bind. Otherwise, women who are in higher paid
jobs, maybe with a better family income, certainly could afford to
take that time off. But those women who are in lower paid clerical
jobs and things like that, it would be very tough on thewn, perhaps,
to take that kind of unpaid leave.

Ms. NussBauM. We would endorse paid leave; we think that is
what is needed. [Laughter.]

But we also believe that any working family—and 9 to 5 and
SEIU do represent those low-wage workers—can far more easily ac-
commodate being out 2, 3 months by getting some support from
their family members, by planning ahead and so on, than they can
handle being thrown out of their jobs entirely.

We think it is an important first step. We think that it does not
go far enough, but we think that it is a significant gain for low-
wage workers. And that is why we support it sc strongly.

nator HARKIN. What is your own Union’s policy?

Ms. NussBauMm. On parental leave?

Senator HAKKIN. Yes, on this issue of parental leave.

Ms. NussBaum. I know within 9 to 5, we have a parental leave
policy that is 8 weeks paid leave; 8 weeks for the prime caregiver
and 4 weeks paid leave to the secondary caregiver; and up to $
months unpaid leave total if you want to, with the option of
coming back at reduced work time. And Service Employees Union,
I think, allows for temporary disability for up to 6 or 8 weeks, and
up to 6 months unpaid leave.

Senator HARKIN. How about the Junior League, Cheryle, the em-
ployees the Junior League? Do you have paid employees?

Ms. Mrrvaisky. Yes. We are a small business. We have a staff of
50, and we have a parental policy in place. Interestingly enough,
while we were drafting the policy, one of our professional staff
members became pregnant, and so she was able to utilize this.
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Senator HARKIN. It is an unpaid leave policy?

Ms. Mitvalsky. No. New York is one of the States that has tem-
p}c:rary disability insurance, so there is partial reimbursement on
that.

Senator HARKIN. I much more prefer that kind of an approach.

Ms. MrrvaLsky. It works. I mean, the whole parental policy
works. We are living proof.

Senator HARKIN. But I mean, they do not give up their tetal
wages and so on while they are off.

Ms. Mirvaisky. The employee receives her full salary from the
Association for the duration of accrued sick leave. The state reim-
burses the Association up to the maximum provided by its tempo-
rary disability insurance program.

Senator HARKIN. Eighty percent or something like that.

‘ Ms. Mirvaisky. Yes, whatever the—I am not certain of that
ormat.

Ms. ConNerTON. However, in many States, these temporary dis-
ability insurance programs are financed solely by employee contri-
butions; there is some sort of pay -oll tax that is used.

Senator Dopp. And it is usually just birth.

Ms. ConNERTON. Right.

Senator Dopp. It does not cover adoption, and it does not cover
serious illness of the child.

I might also point out that Lillian Garland in the Cal-Fed case
was a receptionist, and her annual income was about $12,000. And
in her case, as in many others involving birth in families at even
lower income levels, parents know, obviously, that at the end of 9
months they are going to need some leave time. So with childbirth,
families plan in anticipation of the child, so they can take some
time off work without pay. Now, illness is obviously the unexpected
kind of occurrence, and that is more difficult. Certainly, with adop-
tion as well, parents know it is going to take time so families begin
to save, to prepare for that time when they are off work.

So the idea that somehow the fact that this leave would be
unpaid is going to be unfair is inaccurate in many cases for fami-
lies are actually preparing for that situation. And as you point out
with 18 weeks leave time, in many cases people do not want to
spend that much time without pay, or cannot spend that much
time. But this legislation gives leave for fathers, which Cal-Fed did
not take into consideration. And Dr. Zigler, I think, accurately
points out that more and more fathers of our generation are anx-
ious to play a greater role in parenting. This bill provides for pater-
nity leaves as well, not just maternity leave.

Anything further, Senator Harkin?

Senator HarkIN. No. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Senator Dopp. Thark you all very, very much. We appreciate
your testimony and we are sorry for keeping you here so long.

Senator Dopp. Qur next panel of witnesses comes from the busi-
ness community. Frances Shaine is from the U.S. Chamber of Com-
merce. She is from Holyoke, MA, and is the chairman, I might add,
of the SPM Manufacturing Co., a manufacturing firm employing
between 300 and 500 workers in Holyoke, MA. In fact, Frances and
I know each other; we dealt in a constituent problem dealing with

Q : 1’}1
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an antidumping provision ard Korean competition, going back a
few years ago.

Mary De! Brady, our second witness, is from the National Asso-
ciation of Women Business Owners, from Pittsburgh, PA. She is
the president of the National Association. This association reore-
sents almost 3,000 women-owned businesses nationwide. She is .Iso
a small business owner in her own right, in Pittsburgh. She is ac-
companied by Laura Henderson, another small business owner; she
is president of Prospect Associates, a biomedical research company.
We are very pleased to have both of you with us here today.

And lastly, we have Jay Wilson, for the National Association of
Manufacturers. In addition to representing the NAM, Jay Wilson is
also the president of Steeltin Can Corp. in Baltimore, where he em-
ploys some 150 workers.

We are delighted that all four of you are here with us this morn-
ing. Sorry about the little delay that we have had; I hope it has not
been an inconvenience.

Frances, we will begin with you if we can. Your prepared state-
ments will be included in the record. You can abbreviate them,
however you want to present your case to us this morning, but
again, I thank you, all three of you, for being here and for taking
time out to discuss this legislation.

Frances.

STATEMENTS OF FRANCES SHAINE, CHAIRMAN, SPM MANUFAC-
TURING, HOLYOKE, MA, ON BEHALF OF U.S. CHAMBER OF COM-
MERCE; MARY DEL BRADY, PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ASSOCIA-
TION OF WOMEN BUSINESS OWNERS, PITTSBURGH, PA, ACCOM-
PANIED BY LAURA HENDERSON, PRESIDENT, PROSPECT ASSO-
CIATES; AND JAY M. WILSON, PRESiDENT, STEELTIN CAN
CORP., BALTIMORE, MD, ON BEHALF OF NATIONAL ASSOCIA-
TION OF MANUFACTURERS

Ms. SHAINE. Thank you, Senator.

I am Frances Shaine, chairman of SPM Manufacturing Corp. in
Holyoke, MA. I am a member of the Board of Directors of the U.S.
Chamber of Commerce, and I chair its Council on Small Business. I
am very pleased to have this opportunity to testify on this impor-
tant issue, and thank you, Senator, for permitting us to have our
written statement entered into the record.

As a small business owner and as the mother of three, I am sen-
sitive to the issue of parental leave. I should state that I spent 20
years of my working life as an employee, not an employer. As you
said, our company now employs between 300 and 500 people de-
pending on the season, manufacturing photo albums, scrapbooks,
other paper items.

Senator, it is not a simple issue, and I do not mean to make it
one. The focus of this bill is on the issue of parental care. I would
ngture to say that that is the reason that this room is so crowded

ay.

For me, however, the thrust of this legislation goes far beyond
the issue of parental leave, because the bill includes four months’
time off for the illness of a child and further, up to six months for
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the illness of the employee, with the additional requirement that
the job be held open.

For business, and for small business particularly, these are very
serious issues indeed. Many—perhaps most—companies, even small
business, already have short-term disability programs generally fi-
nanced through insurance payments. In addition, many have exist-
ing sick leave programs. In Massachusetts where my company is,
pregnancy and childbirth are already covered whenever a company
has short-term disability programs. The period of time is eight
weeks. There is pay, but it is low. And there is no requirement for
return to the same or a similar position as that which is vacated.

Further, what is really important here is that the time off is far
less than the proposal put forth by this bill. Frankly, this program
is not onerous for my company. That is because we are insured,
and because most women cannot afford to stay off the job. Further,
we are in a very tight labor market, und we are delighted to wel-
come people back, although not necessarily to the position which
they left.

I am not opposed to babies or mothers or fathers. The real issue
hez:d is whether the programs describe.i should be federally man-
dated.

I firmly believe that flexibility is the most appropriate answer to
the work-family concerns in the workplace. First and foremost, the
most profamily action that Congress can take is to create an envi-
ronment that encourages job creation. The business community
faces serious competitive challenges, both internationally and do-
mestically. Currently, there are numerous proposals that would
mandate employers to provide new benefits.

“Let us simply require the employer to provide this benefit”
seems to be the commonly accepted approach to any real or per-
ceived social need. Unfortunately, this approach undermines a suc-
cessful, voluntary, private sector employee benefit system that is
already responsive to the needs and capabilities of both employers
and employees.

Our concern with Federal mandated benefits generally and the
parental and sickness leave proposals specifically is not the worthi-
ness of the benefit, but rather, the inflexible, costly Federal man-
date.

Our written statement provides a detailed analysis of Senate bill
249, which I commend to your attention.

There are, however, a few points which 1 wish to emphasize.
First, opposition to mandated benefits was the number two concern
at last summer’s White House Conference on Small Business.

Second, mandated benefits will probably not increase the employ-
ee benefits pie. They will simply divide the money available in a
manner dictated by a special group, not necessarily the desires and
needs of a specific employer’s work force.

Third, mandated benefits are not cost-free. When mandated ben-
efits do add to the cost of doing business, they will be passed on to
the consumer wherever that is possible. That is not possible when
the competition stems from low-labor-cost nations which are al-
ready creating extraordinary competitive demands and contribut-
ing to a huge trade deficit.

1 I Q)
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Fourth, there is no threshold of eligibility in this bill. That is, we
have the question of how long an employee must have been an em-
ployee of my firm before he or she can take 6 months off or 4
months off; and then, after the leave is over, what is my assurance
that ‘,the employee will return to the position which we have held
open?

Last, employers are already responding to a changing work force.
Flexible benefit plans, parental leave and day-care are becoming
increasingly popular. Over the past 10 years, we have made sub-
stantial progress in this area, mostly in response to the labor
market. What recruitment requires in times of full employment is
added to the benefit package.

The husiness community is responding to the changing demogra-
phy of our work force. Flexible benefits and innovative solutions to
the demands of w.rking parents are being developed and are pref-
erable to rigid, inflexible, costly and counterproductive Federal
mandates.

For these reasons, the U.S. Chamber strongly opposes Senate bill
249,

We thank you for this opportunity, and I will be happy to answer
aay questions.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Shaine on behalf of the U.S.
Chamber of Commerce follows:]
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STATEMENT
on
S. 249, THE "PARENTAL AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1987"
before the
SUBCOMMITTEE CN CHILUREN, FAMILY, DRUGS, AND ALCCHOLISM
of the
SENATE COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND HUMAN RESOURCES
for the
Y.S5. CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
by

Fracces Shaine
February 19, 1987

I. ILTRODUCTION

I az Frances Shaine, Chairman of SPM Nanufacturing, a family-owned
soall business in Holyoke, Massachusetts. I am Chairman of the UL.S. Chamber's
Council of Swiall Business and serve on the U.S. Chamber's Foard of Directors.
SPN Manufacturing Corporation employs between 300 and 500 persons (depending
upoa the season) and zanufactures photograph albums, scrapbooks, acd other
paper items. As a business owner and mother of four, I am sensitive to all
sides of the national debate over parental leave. My testimony on behalf of
the U.S. Chamber will sake the case for wny flexibility -— aot aew, rigid
goverazent pandates -— is the zost appropriate anmswer to the work-family life
concerns in today's workplace.

The Chamber curzently is arfiliated with a broad, un“ted, and growing
coalition of trade associations and companies opposed to this lezislation.
This coalition supports parental and disabiiity leave as benmefits that could
be pade available ==~ on a voluntsry basis -— by employers to employees.
However, they oppose federally mandated benmefits, eves if the benefit alreaay
is being offered by their company or organization.

Mr. Chairuan, the legislation you have introduced, S. 24Y, the
“Farental and hedical leave Act of 1987, would provide benefits to wcrking
wozen and gen far in excess of the pregnancy disability becefits sanctioned by
the Suprece Court on January 13, 1987, and provided in =any other countries
and in soce states. S. 249 would require exzployers with 15 ur more ecployees

to provide a job guarantee and unpaid leave when the following occurs:

. tne bizth or adoption of a child or the placezeat of a foster cnild
(four sonths);




e a serious sardian

(fcur amont

e a personal {x mouths).

While the eatire philosophy behind the bill is troublesome, acong the

a0st troublesome provisions of S. 249 ave that:

¢ An ecployer must, despite mitigating economic or business
circusstances, return the "leave-taker™ to the same or similar job
upon return;

The legislation establishes a commission designed to recotmend

legislative means to mandate paid leave in the future;

e Permaneat, part-time employees would be elfgible for all "leaves™;

¢ An employer would be required to contiaue paying for health
benefits while an employee takes leave;

o The terp “serious health condition” is loosely and broadly defined
so as to invite abuse of the leave “entitlemzeats;” and,

o Congress bas exempted itself from these requirements.

The Chamber does not wisih to give the impvessiou that, if the
above-mentioned items were modified, the U.S. “hamber would support this

legislation. In fact, modifications along these lines only could be viewed as
"rearranging the deck chairs on boazd the Titanic” to most of our members. We
urge Congress to address the fundamental and often overlooked questica with
which Congress must begin -- IS A FEDERAL UOVERNMENT MANDATE THE MOST
CONSTRUCTIVE RESPONSE TO THE PROBLEM?

1I. REASCNS FOR CHANBEK OPPOSITION 10 S. 249

A. Putting The Legislation In Perspective

The American business couzunity today faces new challenges of achieving
2 balance between work and family life — between increasing our productivity
and meetiny the huuan resource needs of any par:jicular work force and between
enhancing our international competitiveness in world markets and p.acing new
social responsibilities and financial burdens on ezpioyers by goverament at
all levels. Flexibility is the key for businesses facing pressure from

inzeruational cocpetition.

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




E

O

RIC

101

-3-

On its surface, mandating unpaid, job-protected leave for disability or
the care of a child or parent appears to be a simple way to guarantee equal
treatzent, wiile according special priority to family responsibilities.
However, the American business community views such an approach as simplistic,
when one stops to counsider the cooplexity and diversity of work-family

problens.

B. Laws Cannot Lake Us Good Parents

1f parental "boading™ or nurturing aiter the birth or adoption of a
child is the desired goal, it will not result from government ccarcion.
Federal legislation siaply cannot make us “"bond™ with our childrea.
Legislation will not credte responsible, caring parents. Ultimatel, family
responsitility is individual responsibility. Balancing a family and career is
a challenge each of us confronts at the most personal level. One working
parent cay desire time off to bond after birtn or adoption; another pareat zay
prefer dental benefits for teemagers, or core flexible work schedules to aveid
having a "latch key” child, or vouchers for day-care or sick-child services,
or increased pPay, or a host of other "fasily” bemefits. Each of us kanows of
pavents who spead a zreat deal of time with their children but, yet, appear to
do a poor job of pareuting. ¥Nany hard-working people, on the other haad, have

becoue successful pareats without genmerous leave periogs.

C. handated Benefits Reduce Other Preferred Bemefits

Any single mandated benefit is iikely to lead tco a reduction in other
-- sozetimes zore preferred — employee benefits. A zandated benefit,
regaraless of hot worthy, does not increase the ezployee ben:fits “pie.” Iz
serely divides it in a manner dictaced by a powerful special interest group or
a nuzber of special interest groups. If one employee uenefit is required,
then another tenefit -- perhaps one zore desired by the employees of a
particular cocpany ~- nust be eiisinated or recuced sc as to offset tne costs
associzted with the new wandated benefit. Un the average, exployers spend

nearly 40 percent of thear payroll on ewmployee benefits.

| RN
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PIE

Taken from Annual Eaployee Benefits Survey, 1985,

U.S. Chaaber of Cocmerce

25%

LEGALLY [AIIDATID BENEFITS

16%

25%

MISCEILLANECUS

VACATICNS; SICK LEZAVE

4s discussed below, parental leave (evea unpaid leave) laposes a
substantial cost on exployers. As a result, other benefits or coapensatioa --
such as those shown above -- nust be reduced necessarily in orger to absord

the cost.

ERIC 108

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:




Vas

103

-5-

D. Most Benefits Are lot Macdated

A growing, healthy economy has led over the years to an extensive
system of employer-spoasored employee benefits. These benefits not only
include the obvious =~ vacation time, sick leave, Social Security, workers'
compensation and unemployment insurance — but also benefits ranging from
group health care and life insurance roverage (both of which are provided to

cercent of the workers in large and medium~size firms) to the pensions and
stirezent plans offered to 79 percent of that work force., Of course, the
rate of coverage among smaller firms is less extensive, often because of their
inability to atfford to provide even these core benefits. 1The adverse impact
of S. 249 on szall business must be considered by Congress.

A vast array of other benmefits also are part of the employee benefits
"pie,” including disability pay, education assistance, child-dependent care,
pareatal leave, legal services coverage and even pay for time devoted to jury
duty or service in the National Guard. All cold, the employee benefits .ie
accounted for 37.7 perceat :f all payroll costs in 1985, up from i8.7 percent
in 1951, according to the U.S. Chamber of Commerce’s Annual Euployce Benefits

Survey. American firus are paying more money for bemefits as a portion ot
total payroll than they have at any time since the Chamber instituted its
survey in 1951. Last year, employee benefits cost employers 48,166 per
employee, or $3.95 per hour. This was an increase of $324, or 4.1 percent.
The 4.1 percent increase in benefits is significantly more than the

2.4 perceat increase in average weekly earnings reportea for 1985.

Despite the absence of mandated benefits, employers spend between 18
and 65 percent of their payrolls on employee benefits. Employee benefit
packages, by necessity, must ditfer according to an eaployer's ability to
afford generous benefit packages, the competition existing for a qualified,
dedicated work force, and the desires of the employees in the company.

Not every employer can afford to give the benefits that a large company
gives to its employees. For large businesses, this legislation is redundant
since studies indicate that 95 percest of the Fcrtuue 1500 companies already
provide parental and disability leave. However, the dynamic, growing sector

of our economy is domirated by small businesses struggling to survive. These
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small businesses will be the prime targets of S. 249, During 1981 ana 1982,
large companies laid off on: million workers; small businesses hired

2.6 million. In 1983 and 1964, large companies created about 1.5 million new
Jobs; s221l businesses created nearly four million. It would be ironic if the
mandated parental leave legislation winds up destroying the very jobs that
have helped to assimilate second-income wage earners into the labor force --
the very jobs that the sponsors of S. 249 seek to protect. The small business
impact of such a law is what led more than 1800 small business delegates to
petition the "1986 White House Conference on Small Business" to cake
opposition to this legislation a priority issue. It is noteworthy that over
600 of those delegates were women business owners. Opposition to this
legislation became the Number Iwo priority (second only to the liability
crisis) of the Conference.

E, How Employers Are Responding to Workers with Family Responsibilities

The most "pro-family"” policy is ome that encourages job creation, not
one that discourages it. Ip addition, advocates of a new federal interveation
in employee benefits have ignored employers' efforts to accommodate employees
with conflicting fzmily responsibilities. A survey of 700 firms by the
National Chamber Foundation disclosed that 77 percent have rmal or informal
policies that address the "parental leave” needs of worker:. Of the remaining
23 percent, 17 percent responded that their employees preferred other benefits.

Firms cited multiple reasons for offering parental leave prograas.
"Recruitnent and retention” was the single most cited reason, and “union
negotiation” was the least cited factor. The most significant reasons cited

by firms that had parental leave plans for adopting these plans were:

Reason Parental Leave Offered Percentage of Firms with Parental
Leave Policy Citing keason

Recruitment and retention 61
Soclal responsibility 57
Maintain stabllity in the work force 48
Requestea by employees 36
Competitive reasons 34
Union negotiation 11

lote: The percentage of firms citing reasons for having a parentali leave
plan exceeds 100 percent because surveyed firas could cite zore than one reason.

ERI
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Furtheraure, private ecployers iancreasingly are changing their policies aad

environments to meet the needs of working pareats. A range of solutions exists

for the needs uvf working pareats in any one workpldce. any one soluzion is not

necessarily the best solution. Employers and ezployees can assess their needs and

their capability of providing particular benmefits. Then the appropriate,

affordable ewmployer response can be instituted. The policies that best address

the facily needs could include such benetits or programs as: parental leave,

day-care centers, sick-child vouchers, ianforzation and referral prograams,

"flex time,” job sharing, part-time work, noce-based work, compressed work

schedules . drug and alcohol abuse assistance, flexible benefits, or increased

pay. Obviously, eaployers are going to be restricted by cost considerations in

tailoring specific responses.

F. Parental leave in Other Natioams

Maternity leave fs frequently a state-granted leave in other industrialized

countries. Iaterestingly enough, tnose European countries with the most geaercus

paternity leaves are the same nations with tne highest rates of unemploymeat for

women of child-bearing age. And, few countries can boast of a higher perceantage

of women ia its work force than the L.5. Younger women, in particular, are making

tremendous strides in climbing corporate ladders in this country and eat..izg iato

fielas such as law, medicine, and engineering. In those countries with gemerous

oaternity leaves, women are resaining, for the most part, in menial low-skilled

jobs or are unecployed.

But, more important in comparing the U.S. to other nations is the fact that

our free market approach to business has eacouraged job creatiom, econozic growth,

and entrepreneurial activity -- the likes of which are virtually nonexisteat in

countries where business 1s over-regulated by governmeat-wandated bemefits. Our

governzent aand the American people -—- more than otner pations == have recognized

the energy, vitality and flexibility of the private sector.
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G. legislation Is Not Cost Frec

The conteation that "unpaid leave” wouid not cost anything is not true.
The costs are substantial, as the following estizates of both the overalli cost, as

well as the cost in one specific instance, demonstrate.

The following cost analysis is a conservative esticate prepared by the
U.S. Chamber's Economic Policy staff:

COST OF S. 249 TO EMPLGYERS AND ECONOMY

EENEFIT CGST
(nillfons)

Parental Leave:

- continued health iosurance $ 1,235.2

~ higher cost of replaciag workers 4 9,431.9
on uanpaid leave

federal governmeant cost to 40.2

administer new law

regulatory ccst to employers of (cannot be
administration and paperwork deternoined at
this time)

- lost productivity resulting from 45,507.5
suift from experienced help

Potential Cost of Parental Leave $16,214.8
Portion of S. 249

Short-Term Disability Benefits:

continued health insurance $
-~ pet cost of replacexeat personael 4
- lost proauctivity rasulting from 3$
fonexperieanced persomnel

Potential Cost of Short-Term Disatility $10,957.0
Portion of S. 249

Total Potential Coots of S. 249 ag
Currently Writtea $27,171.8

.
¢
Lo *3
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ADDITIONAL COSTS FRCM POTENTIAL EXPANSION OF BELEFITS

BENEFIT CesT
(zfllions)
Paid benefits for parental leave — at full pay $29,311.2
Paid penefits for short-term disability benefits -- $19,118.1
at full pay
Paid benefits for parentsl leave -~ at unemployment $10,100.0

insurance rates

Paid benefits for temporary disability -- $ 6,858.5
at unepployment insurance rates

The cost of S+ 249, as currently written, would result in a cost to the
economy and to employers of $27.2 billion. This does not include an offset
tor benefits that curreatly are being furnished by employers. The largest
costs incurred by employers would be the cost of hiring temporary replacements
for workers who are on leave and the lower productivity that would result from
rteplacing regular esployees with tecporary replacemeants. The $27.2 billion
would add 1.4 percent to tne nation’s eaploytent costs ana about 0.7 percent
to the general price level of goods and services sold in order to pay for
these benefits.

Expansion of the benefits to include full pay for workers on parental
leave and short-term disability benefits could raise the cust to employers to
$75.6 billion. This would raise the wage bill for the nation by 3.7 percent.

The treatment of the "parental” and the “"temporary disability” parts of
S. 249 as insurable risks -- treated tne same way as we treat unemployweant and
using the same tax base as the unemployment insurance tax base == would have
tesulted in a more than doubling of the unegployzent insurance tax on
eoployers in 1984 (from an average rate of 2.8 percent to an average rate of
5.7 percent). The cost of the "cnild care” provision of 5. 249 could add as
osuch as 1.7 percent to the tax rate and the cost of the “disability”™ part of
S. 249 would add 1.2 percent to the payroll tax. The total cost would be
reduced by the cost of temporary disability benefits that curreatiy are being
provided by eoployers.

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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A MICRO LEVEL COST ASSESSMENT

Tne example below is based upon a word processiang ezployee in
Lashington, b.C. The assupption is that the employes will take 4.5 =zgzths of
leave for parenting purposes.

average pay for word processors ™ $315.25 per weex for & 39.5 hour
week, based on U.S. Department of Labor Area Wage Survey, Bulletin 3030-7.
The cost of 4.5 months of pay would be 36,147.37.

In addition, the direct cost to the employer of legally required
benefits, such as Social Security ana workers' compensation amount to 9.6
perceat of payroll. Other benefits azount to 2.4 percent of direct pay (froa

U.S. Chapber of (ommerce's Annual Employee Benefits Survey). This leads to a

total of 12 percent of direct pay linked costs, adding $735.28.
Total pay and cirect pay linked costs = $6,147.37 + $735.2% = $6,862.65.
Cost of employee benefits to be continued for employees on pald or
unpaid leave, for life, health, disability, and dental bezefits to an empioyer
is $148.17 per month (based on the U.S. Chamber of Cozzerce's Acnual Esployee
Benefits Survey 1984). 1dhe cost of these employee benefits for 4.5 months
would be $666.76.

Cost of a replacesment, based on a survey of temporary employment

agencies in Washington, D.C., is $14.00 to $17.00 per hour —- an average of
$15.50 per hour. The cost of the replacement for 39.> aours per week would be
$612.25 per week or $11,938.87 for 4.5 wonths.

CCST OF REPLACING WORD PRCCESSING EMPLOYEE FCR 4.5 MOnIHS
OF UNPAID PARENTAL "AVL IN LASHINGTCL, D.C.

Cost of trained replacement $ 11,93..87

+ Cost of benefits paid for employee on 3 666.76
either paid or unpaid leave

less: Savings from employee on unpaid leave -5 6,852.65

Equals: Net additional cost for unpaid parental leave ;:—2& 22.98

COS. GF RELPLACING AN EMPLCYEL ON PALD PARENTAL LEAVE

et cost of replacing employee on unpaid pareatal leave $ 5,722.98

Plus: Pay and pay-linked costs of employee oa paid leave $ 6,882.65

Zquals: Net additional cost for paid parental leave
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SEVEN-CITY SURVEY OF NET ADDI1IONAL COST GF PARENTAL LEAVE
EOR ON: WORD EROCESSING EMPLCTEE FOR 18 WEEKS

CITY ESTIMATED (GST
UMYAID LEAVE PAID LEAVE
CHICAGO $3,910.47 $10,687.23
HOUSTON 43,363.21 $11,114.75
LOS ANGELES 41,802.97 4 9,352.89
MIKNEAPOLIS - 705,19 $ 6,088.73
NEW YORK $3,175.65 $10,030.05
ST. LOVIS $1,747.17 $ 7,916.13
VASHIKGTON $5,722.98 412,605.563
SEVER-CITY AVERAGE 42,717.18 $ 9,685.39

Less: (Cost of benefits

calculated above ~ 3 666,76 -$  666.76
Equals: Net additional cost $2,950.42 4 9,018.63
per_worker A

A seven-city survey conducted oy the U.S. Chamber of the additional
costs related to the replacement of one word processing employee indicates
that the average additional cost to an employer would be $2,717.18 1z order to
glve that one employee 18 weeks of unpaid leave. This would include the cost
of the meaical benefit calculated above separately. After deducting the cost
of medical benefits calculated above, the net cost to the employer for each
employee taking off the maxiaum 18 weeks of leave would be $2,050.42. It ¢s
gore difficult to determine the cost for other less—defined jobs because of

the difficulty of finding replacecents as easily as word processors.

H. Existing Law Is Fair And Effective

The Pregnancy Discrimization Act of 1978 already recuires all ezployers
to treat pregnancy and childbirth the saze as any other tecporary meaical
cond{tion. If an employer pemnits employees to take leave with or without pay
or guarantees the job upon return {or any short-terz disability (i.e., broken
les or hepatitis), the saze type of leave must be available to pregnant
enployees. Equality of treatcent for working wozen {s preferable to szandating
special treatzent for wocen with family responsibilities -- the latter being
what California law anc rost other nations czcst often provide. Altaough

technically tnis legislation applies to zen axd women, we all realize that

L
L
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women have tended to assume the vast majority of family responsibilities.
This ctersotype is likely to have an adverse impact on working women if this
legislation becomes law.

1. MNandated bBenefits Stifle 1rend Toward Plexible Benefits

Kandated benefits st’<le the trend toward flexible benefits. "Flexible
benefits” or "cafeteria pl " are the curremt trend that works well for both
the ecployer and the emplc .e. with benefit costs curreatly near 40 perceat
of payroll, employers simply canmnot afford to keep expanding their esployee
benefits "pie.” Employers inmitfally may hesitate to offer child-care services
as a fixed benefit because only a small proportion of employees would use the
services each year. But, an esployer can add chilg-care gervices to a
flexible benefit package without concern over its seeming unfairmess to those
other employees who do not need suca a benefit. A variety of bemefits may be
offered to employees — acjwhere from two benmefits to several. We encourage
employers to provide these benefits, to the extent that the work force desires

then and employers afford them. They may include:

child care services

educational assistance
relocation assistance
physical fitaess programs
additional vacation days
health insurance

1ife insurance

retirement benefits

111, SUIMARY

The business conunity is respoading to the cnangiog deuograpny of our
work force. TFlexible bemefits and inmovative solutfions to the demands of
working parents are being developed and arc preferable to rigid, inflexible,
costly, and probably counterproductive federal zaczdates.

Ultizately, a healthy ecomosy -- fostering job creation and a
cooperative labor-manageuent eavironmment == caa offer the basic financial and

personal support that facilies zust nave to survive.

1i6

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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Gur pottom line is laws cannoc make us good parents, and government

involvement may hurt as much 88 == or more tham —— it helps in this case.

If (ongress {s intent on legislating in this area, the Chamber would

recozaend comzissioning extensive studies of other nations' experieaces with

uandated leave —- how often men take such leave, any adverse impact i{n terms

of employment opportunities for women of child-bearing age, any adverse iopact

on small business activity, and any adverse impact oa job creation statistics,

as well as on other leading economic fndicators.

Thank you for inviting us to testify. I will be happy to respoad to

any questions.

i
Aruitoxt provided by Eic: ‘
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APPENDIX

BUSINESS SPEARS GUT AGAINST [H.R. 925 (and S. 249]
“Federally-Mandated Parental, Disability acd Eldercare Leave™

{Note: The fcllowing excerpts are froc copies of letters
received by the Chamber from businesses around the couatry
last year on H.R. 4300 and S. 2278. All references to
d.R. 525 and S. 249 have been inserted by Chamber staff
this year.)

“Since we are such a small company, we are not in 8 position to pass any increased
costs along to the customer as a medium—sized or large company might. Specifically,
if ve were subject to the proposed law, we would have to hire somebcdy to replace
the person oc leave since we do not have people on our payroll who have time on
their hands and nothing to do. It has been our experience that it takes seversl
meatas to fully train a new employee and the cost iS not winuscule.”

— Female President, Management Company, Holliston, Massachugetts

X k Xk x Xk X+ %k X X

"We estimate that this legislation will “cost™ us approximately $2.5 millfon for the
following anticfpated changes:

a) $783,750.00 for providing benefit (disability and leave) coverage for our 660
part-time employees. (Average benefit expense = $3,187.50 per euployee.) We
are under the assuzptioL that benefits must be provaded for part-tize ezployees.

41 nfllion to hire texporary help for a period of 4.5 ponths to “save™ the
positions of the 149 people who took a leave of absence last year.

litscellaneous expenses for the following changes we would have to make from an
operational standpoint:

- legal Fees: Benefit plaa gocument must be azenced. The new plan pust be
filed with the U.S. Departzent of labor.

Increased Auditing Costs: Larger number of plan participants to be audited
by an ou.side auditing fira.

Programning Costs: Part-ticers must be agc:d o cocputer print-outs which
track benefit expense.

Enpioyee Education Expense: Benefit handbook gust be revised to reflect
Plan changes. Hucan Resource personnel would have to organize inforaation
sessions to explain plan changes to ezployees.

Salary Expense: Cost of auditing additional personnel to sonitor izcreased
uudber of leaves and t2nefit participants which chis bill will encourage.”

= Official, Mid-size Reglonal Bankholding Compamy, Pennsylvania

X X X XX X X X %X X
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“We would hope that you would understand that while meny employera may be in a
position curren”ly to provide such benefits, many others siwply could not and, if
required, would suffer severe operational difficulties and financial haraship. hhen
that occurs the interests of all of the employees of that employer are going to
suffer.” ¢

~ President, Trade Association, Annapolis, Maryland

X% X kKX KK KKK

“Small businesses are least able to afford the cost of holding a job open for 4-6
months, retraining a replacement worker, or any of the other costs associated with
pandated leave. At the same time, snmall business in New Jersey is the driving force
for economic growth and job creation being responsible for over 374 thousand new
Jjots siace 1982.7

= Vice President, Trade Association, New Jersey

“hlthough it would appear that the social benefits of these bills would be
tremendous to employees, somehow the financial and practical aspects for esployers
has been conpletely overlookzd. This year alone we have been faced with insurance
costs that are tremendous and we are gtill reeling from these blcws. This type of
legislation ag proposed could cause a large problem for us and it would be
izpossible to pass on these additional costs to the consumer. With such legislation
as propesed we could face the possibility of being forced cut of business and eight
more esployees will be out on the gtreet looking fcr a job.”

= Pemale Executive, Upholstery Manufacturing Company, Portiand, O:egon

X PR RKERKRRKR

“We are a business of less than 20 employees. Each employee has a responsibility
all his own, together we are a working entity. Each is a vital and productive part
of this business. I don't know how we could cope with ome who 1s absent for 26
weeks. We barely get by now by scheduling our vacation times to avoid having nore
than one man out at one time and then only for one week at a time.”

~ President, Plumbing Supply Coapany, Tulsa, Oklahoma

R R R R KKK KKK

“One instance like this would force a shutdown. Ve cannot lose one member of a two
or three meober crew for six conths and make a place for that ezployee when he/sae
decides to come back to work. 50% of total exzployment {s small business. This bill
alony with others will arive szall businesses out of business.”

- Executive, Rental Company, Vamcouver, Washingtor

X K K & K K K &2 kK K
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“My business {s not large enough to nire two people for every one job.

I'n in business for a protit. Lho is going to insure 2y business when 1 am disabled
or desire to create a fanily. My business will not survive a twenty-~six week
absence.

I am not against a reasonable maternity or sick leave £ r employees of good merit.
I want good employees back, but three to six montlis absence creates a financial
burden.”

- Owner, Dry Clesani gy Company, Lubbock, Texas

X X X KX £ X X XXX

"1 recognize that an employee is a valuable asset. When I have an eaployee that
needs an extended absence, I try to work out am acceptable solution with that
person. However, not all cases allow a pos'tion to be open tor an extended period
of time, and not always can I offer that person the same position or amy position
upon return.

We pust quickly replace lost employees because of the significart gap that naturslly
occurs in a small business ~ many areas of responsibility are manned with oze or two
enployees. These bills appear to assume that ewmployera are magiciana, taat they can
£ind employees with sufficient skills to work for a few weeks. This assumption is
unrealistic. Our company has spent maay thousands of dollars recruiting ana
relocating eoployees.”

~ President, Photographic Equipsent Manufacturers, Wichita, Kansas

LR SN Sk B % 2E 2% 2% 2 1

“Ezployers dcn't have the capacity, as goverameat does, to just reach deeper into
tne pocket by raising taxes in order to offset the expense of operating. It either
has to come out of their pocket {sometime there is nothing there) or be passed oa to
the consumer.

The assumption that every employer in this country has unlimited funas and a
bottomless pocket in which to dip to support their eaployees from cradle to grave,
ucder any contingency, shows how ignoraat some people are about where aoney cozes
froo.”

-~ Chairman of the Board & Chief Executive Officer, Bank, Florida

LR I 2 % 2 N S 2% 2

“All of this is av effort to reduce government speanding by passing the expease on to
business. That 1s an additional form of indirect taxation wnich i{s politically
expedient but morally wrong.”

- President. Construction Company, Barrisonmburg, Virginia

R XX X XX X XXX

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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"A small coupany cannot leave a key job open for 18 weeks. I have a situation right
now with our lead billing clerk on materaity leave. he camnmot hold that Jjob open
for 6 weeks. The job {s too vital to the company. (onsequently, i{f she coces back
to work, which I suspect she will, she will come back to tnis coopany in a different
Job. There is no other way tnat I can handle 1t. She's an extremely fine employee
and I'm going to do as much as I can to accommodate her, but this bill is
unreasonable ... I can just visualize one or my male ezployees taking an 18 week
leave because his wife hid a baby and I'v paying for his leave, paying for his
health insurance and hiring somebody else to do his job for the 18 week period.
Somebody in Congres< must hate this small business compunity.”

— Corporate President, Equipment Manufacturer, Minneapolia, Minnesota

L 2 BE B SR B N B B

"The intent of this legislation is literally like motherhood ana apple pie.

Bowever, what will be the human and social costs of 1t? As you well know, employee
benefits dc not draw from a bottonless pit of money from plan sponsors. Whetner
collectively-baz,ained or set by an employer based on local personnel competition

«+. oniy a certain amount of money will be spent on emplcyee benefit~. Thus, if you
dictate that parental leave must be provided ... what will be dropped or diminished?”

- President, Trade Association, Washington, D.C.

LR A B B BN B R BE B 2

"At the present time, the business conmunity provides various foroms of disability
income programs for employees ranging from short-term policies that cover 13 weeks
of disability to long-term poiicies that cover disability to age 65. In most cases,
the employe» provides disability income to employees in a direct relationship to
what his company can aiford to pay. It appear:. that Congress with its great wisdom
is golng to determine that the employer can afford to pay disability income whether
the profit-abllity of the coopany dictates it can or it canmnot.”

- Corporate Executive, Insurance Company, Minpneapolis, Minnesota

L B B B B BN BE B B 1

"American employers paid benpefits averaging $7842 per hourly employee in 19%4, an
astounding figure. Benefits have risen at a double~di,.t rate since 19%1. %e
aaintain that American business is presently at a critical point: 4f wandated
parental and disability leave benefits are given, other benefits will have to be
taken away, particularly {o light of the soaring cost of iosurance. The increased
cost of doing b.siness has alrcady p' shed some of our szall member coupanies over
the brink.”

= Vice President, Trade Assoziation, Bedford, New Hampshire

XX X K X K K X XX
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“lhe present voluntary nature of euployee benefits in this country gives eaployers
the flexibility needed to cffer diversified bemefit plans from which employees may
choose, to bargain collectively over benefits, and to address the needs of
individuals if special situations imvolving the need for extended leave may arise.
having a requirecent such as that proposed by [h.R. 925 and S. 249) reduces not only
the freedom of businesses to offer a variety of benmefits to employees, but reduces
the amount of dollars employers have available for all types of employee benefics.”

- Public Affairs Director, Grocery Chain, Washington, D.C.

“Parental leave is certainly a wortiwhile employee bemefit, and there is a trend
agong private employers to provide this berefit voluntarily ro.ever, we ace
opposed to efforts by the federal government to sandate the particular types and
levels of fringe benefits offered to employees. This type of legislation interferes
with the flexibility exployers need to determine what bemefit structure fits their
business needs and best meets the needs of their particular work force. hLandated
benefits ara particularly burdensome for small employers, who lack the resources to
fund these expensive programs.”

-~ Female Director, Small Company, Brattleboro, Virginia

"Enployee benefits, that are normally discretiomary, would be coasidered
"entitlements.” In today's legal systeam, entitlements arte Lrequently the subject of
litigation which clog the legal process, creating a liability crisis.”

~ Vice President, Trade Association, Trenton, New Jersey

X X X X X X X xX %X %X

"The bill raises again the question of just how much nore dead weight the economy
can take without withering away. The money to underwrite such a widespread leave
program will be speat at the expense of productivity at a time when high
productivity is the best defense against imports of foreigm-made goods.”

-~ Newspaper Editorial, Birmioghsa, Alabama

"Allowing an employee to take 26 weeks of unpaid disability leave would have a

severe izpact on our ability to meet our production schedules. As we are a

government contractor, this could impede shipments for strategic defense systems.”
~ Public Affairs Coordinator, Defense Contractor, Rockford, Illimois

"1 would not hire a young woman if this legislation tecczes law. I can't a:ztord the
benefits.”

- President, Small Company, San Bermardino, California

A X X K X kK kK X kX %
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"Some of my contacts in Sacramento tell me that legislators who contest "pro-family”
legislation find themselves dubbed "male chauvinists”. I have pointed out that the
ones doing the nawing are actually “female chauvinists” with no understanding of
business, economics, genmeral or tax accounting, and with no insight or foresight

into the long-tern ramifications of picking businesses' “deep pockets ‘' for family
support issues,

As the owner of a very small conpany, I have some very strong concerns to express.
First of all, I do support the U.S. Chamber's opposition to additional zandato.y
benefits. Another such bill represents one more intraction of our liberties and
Constitutional rignts as citizens and employers to do what we know 1S best for our
businesses and for the collective good of all our employees. Having previously
managed personmnel for larger coopanies than the ome I presently own, I find ¢t
painful that Congress seems to presurpose that employers do not alreacy do their
best to hang on to their good enployees. The potential for legal liability of
epployers increases .ith each one inevitably "breakable™ law =- {.e. to guarantee
Jobs for child-bearing women is discriminatory to non-child-bearing employees, whose
Jjobs are not so guaranteed, or leaves mandated for any reason, or who may in lieu of

their child-bearing co-workers, be fired or laid off for purposes of fiscal or
organizational adjustment.”

= Female Chief Executive Officer, Small Company, Chadsworth, Califormia

X kX X kX X kX Xk X X X

"This 1s a case where the grassroots folks are going to wake us up rather than vice
versa. I would urge you to use your big-picture perspective and understaading of
euployee benefits to explain to your colleagues that no matter now good this
legislation nmight seem on the surface, it has terrible pitfalls for other benefits
... DOt to mention the problems it causes for upwardly mobile workers of
child-bearing years. It was this latter reason alome which defeated this
legislation when it was proposed in the Minnesota State Legislature (which is famous
for mandated benefits). The legislators did not want the backlash of young adult
voters whose careers were thwarted.”

- President, Trade Association, Washington, D.C.

X X X X £ X X kX K K
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Frances Shaine, Chairman
U.S. Chamber
Council on Small Business

Chairman,
SPM Manuracturing Corporation

March 10, 1987

The Honorahle Christopher J. Dodd, Chairman
Subcormittee on Children, Family, Drugs and Alcobolism
Committee on Labor and Human Resources

United States Senate

Washinaton, D.C. 20510

Dear Senator Dodd:

This letter is in response to your recuest for clarification of the
cost {'aures cited in the Chamber's testimony on S. 249 before your
Subcummittee on February 19, 1987.

Specifically, you sugeested that newspaper advertisements botn for
erployment and for temporary services indicated different figures from those
used in our testimony.

Enclosed you will see the Bureau of Lahor Statistics' description of a
word processor, which delineates differences in grade and pay depending on
experience, responsibility, and skills. The newspaper advertisements
generally do not make these distinctions.

In our testimony, the Chamher cited the typical wage for a word
processor employee in the Washir ton area from the Bureau of Labor Statistics,

Area Wage Survey, from last fall. That wage, $315.25 per week, was based on

the Area Wage Survey, (see enclosed photocopy of the relevant pages from an

updated version of the Area Wage Survey, which show a higher averade of

$323.70). Th. Area Wagé Survey documents the fact that weekly wages for this
$268 to 336

position range from 8. Accordingly, for 18 weeks of leave, the
average wages for such an employee is estimated at $5,673.78.

On the other hand, as cited in our testimony, to hire through a
temporary erployment service, the averace hourly wage for such a service is
betweer $14.C0 and $17.0C. Clearly, this is a rore costly proposition than
hiring replacement employees. To update our telephone survey of temporary
erployment agencies cencucted last fall that was cited in our testimony, we
rade a further inouiry this weet that indicates that our cost estimates were
low. Manpower, Inc., 3 leacer in the temporary emplovee industry, infermed us
that:

o 3 wide rance of word processors is availakle, with disparate
Tevels of skills; and,

¢ the Pourly wages of terporary ocency werd precessors in the
Vashinaton area range from $15.14 t¢ $1¢.00.

1615 H Street, NW ) Washington. DC 20062 C 202/463 5503
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If we take an average hourly wage of $17.07 (based on the Manpowe: figures),
the cost to the employer to retain such services is estimated at $12,136.86€
for an 18-week period (as compared to the $11,938.87 fi..re cited on page 10
of our statement, and utilized in the cost estimates).

Employers are 1ikely to use temporary services rather than to hire a
"permanent" employee for only 18 weeks. This results fror:

o the fact that the legislation mandates an employer te hold the joh
open until the leave-taker returns;

the fact that agency tempcraries are trained and experienced, and
work for a firm that pays for tbeir benefits,

the fact that hiring and discharging a "permanent" employee will
trigger t! . application of Consolicated Cmnibus Budoef
ReconciTiation Act nealth benefits, affect adversely an erployer's
unemployment insurance experience rating, recuire costly and
time-consuming administrative details (such as withkolding fer
FICR, unemployment compensation, and other benefits), and resvlt in
the trauma of terminating an indivicual; and, -

the fact that it is difficult to find qualified workers who will
take short-term jobs.

In addition, we have reexamined the data relating to the "macro cost
analysis" presented in our testimony. Enclosed is the methodology used te
estahlish the "worst-case scenario” which was inclvded in the testimony on
February 19. He also have included a "refined cost estimate” which includes
figures based on alternative assumptions.

I hope this information is responsive to yocur reauest. If we can
provide any further clarification, I hope your staff will be in touch with re.

Again, thank youv for the opportunity to testify hefore your
Subcommi ttee.

Sincerely,

Franas

Frances Shaine

Enclosures

ERI
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Uses this & ledge 1n perfoeming stenog: dutses and responsible clerscal tashs

such 23 mamizining foflow up files sssembling maternal fos reports, memorands and

Jetters somposing simple betters from genersl instroctions  reading and fouting
mail, g Toutine etc

TYPIST
(8624 Typst)

Uses a manusl, clectric, of sutomstc Lypewniter 1o type varous materials Included
arc sutomanc typewtiters that are used only to record text and update and reproduce
peeviously typed items fcaom magnetic cards or tape May tnclude typing of stencils
mats, or similar materials for use in duplcating processes May do cleral waork
involving hittle specual training, such as keeping umple records filirg records and
1eports, of sorting snd distriduting incoming mad

Excluded from this definiton 18 work thatinvolves

3 Typing direcily from spoken materal that his been recorded on disks
cylinders, belts, Tapes, of other similar media

b The use of vantype machi posing equip ot cquip
ment in preparing matcral for printing, and

< Familurty with specialized terminology 14 vanous keyboard (ommends to

pulate or edif the d text (0 h revisions, or 10 pesform

tasks such as extracting and Insting items from the text, or transmitting text
to other terminsls of using w1t commands 1o has ¢ the machine reorder
msterial Typcally requires the use of sutomatic equipment which may be
either computer linked of have a programmable memory so that material
can be organized 1n tegularly used formats o preformed parsgraphs which
can then be coded and stored fot future use 1n letters ar documents

Typisti

Performs one or more of the following Copy typing from rough or clear drafts or
routine typing of forms, 1nsutance policwcs. ete, of wtting up sumple sandard
tabulations or copying mare complen tahles slieady <et up and spaced properly

Typist i

Petfotms one or more of the following Typing matenialin final form when it irsolses
combining material from several wources or responubibiy far corredt spefling
syllabicaton, punciuation, efc, of technial ar unususl wards of fareign Isngusge
matet1a) or planning layout and fyping of complk sied statisik al 1ables 10 manian
umformity snd nce 1n spacing May type rovtine form letters, varying detals to suit
ctreumsances

WORD PROCESSOR
(4624 Typu)

Primary duty 13 to opetate word prowesung equIpment ta enfef siode selfieve
change, and present test or tabultions Produces # santety of printed copy swh as
fetters documents of reports May enter regularly used formats nr stored paragraphs
that are organized and cnded for future uwe Recorded texis can be changed by
reatsanging paragraphs replacing words shifting hnes etc

SOURCF

of Labor, BLS, Bulletin 3035-8
(Word procesung equipment 1yprally hava full or partisf papt sidess dinplas wieen
(CRT) and s wepaiste punter The equipmem mas be inlogsated with o dignat
computer have telovommuni ations s apshilities and st hasc Capabilies o adtding
0 or upgeading festures Automatic or elecitonn 1spewfiters with hnnted te o editing
capabilities and often with ungle linc electronk displas windows  are ool conuderod
word provesung equipment )
Exdluded from shidefininon ate

a Waorkers whne primars functrion is to enter o data base tor purpeses othur
than compaouition (vee Ley enirs npcratorn)
h  Workers who uwe equipment and dats base for fruspones sch av 1 ount
Ing ety onnirod ales or onigaal woniog s adimeg
v Warkers responsble for preparation of publntied ropons i lading parc
bayout ur selection of diffetent type sres
Positron are clasafied into les els on the base of the faltow g & finihe na

Word Processor |

Petforms tasks requinng 8 hnowledge of the word procosng vguipment and
famihary with the formats and forms used 0 the establnbment Proticicns 0
grammar, spelling and pundiuation s alwr requited i pridsce prinnd nyocnal
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Washington, DC 20062

SUMMARY OF THE ESTIMATED COST OF S. 249 TO EMPLOYERS AND THE ECGNOMY
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COST OF

PARENTAL TEAVE BENEFI 'S

continued health insurance

higher cost of re' facing workers

on unpaid leave

federal government ¢oy. of
adninistering new law

regulatory cost to ewployers of
administration and paperwork

Tost productivitv resulting from
a shift away from experienced help

Potential cost of parental
Teavé portion of biTT

Worst-Case Scenario

Refined Cost

COST OF SHORT-TERM DISABILITY BEHEFITS

continued health insurance

net cost of replacerent
personnel

lost productivity resulting
from inexperienced personnel

Potential cost of short-term
15abiTity part of BiT1

TOTAL POTENTIAL COST OF
L CUPRENTLY

Additional cost to the economy
for sick child bepefits

12d

Estimate Based on
ize o

™m
ExcTusion In 3. 249

—— e

COST oSt
(MILLIONS $) (V> ...ONS $)
1,235.2 963.5
0,431,9 7,35¢€.2
4C.? 40.?
{unable to b.
estimated)
£,507.5 4,295,8
16,214.8 12,655.7
(5,200.0)*
(2,600.0)**
825,% 403,86
6,278.2 4,751
3,743.7 2,920.1
10,957.5 8,299.0
27,172.3 20,954,7

(13,499.0)*
(10,899.0)**

12,856.0%x*
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*If we were to incorporate the hational Chainber roundation's (hCF)
1965 Ewployee Benef its Survey, which found that, of weuiuw- anu larye-size
¥irms, /7% of those companies already proviaed parental leave benefits, we
could estinate that the parental leave portion of the legisleticn would cost
$2.9 billion when applied to those who do not currently offer these benefits.
Our survey data alsc reveal that 27.% percent ot those whou do ofter parental
leave do not offer the scope of coverage riandated in the legislatisn. Yo fill
that deficit, we woula estimate an adaitional cost of $2.3 billwon. In sui,
when incorporating the NCF's survey results on parental leave into our cost
estimate, the parental Teave costs of the legislation would be
35.2 bi'Tion annually.

**These figures assutwe a 50% actual utilization rate.

**xAccording to Employee Benefits i1n Neaium and Large Firms, 1985
(Lepartuent of Labor Bulletin zz6z), an average of 15.9 udys uf annual sick
leave at full pay is available to 60.5% of the surveyed workforce after one
year of service. {The survey referred to coupanies with as few as 100-¢50
employees, depending on the industry). In 1982, the average utilization of
sick leave plans was 4.6 cays per year. Accorainy tu the U.S. hational Lenter
for Health Statistics, children under the age of 14 riss an averaye of five
days per year of school. Accoraingly, we conservatively estimate that
enactment of S. 249 would result in one parent per child taking an aaaitional
five days of sick leave per year to care for a sich child. 1his, 1n turn,
would result in lost national output of $21 billion, or if computed using the
60.5% figute above, $12.8 bi1llion. loreover, since an average of 15.Y aays uf
annual sick leave at full pay is available to 60.5% of the workforce after one
year of service, we sugyest that, in these cases, an auditional five days ot
sick leave per year for care of a sick child not only will be used, but will
bt used as paid leave (since these employees will have not yel exhausted the
sick leave benefits with which tney are provided).

Q
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SUPPORTING DUCUMENTATION FOR NATIONAL COST ESTIMATE
PRESENTED IN U.S. CHAMBER TESTIMONY

SUMMARY OF LEGISLATION

Leyislation has peen introduces n the 1tltn Longress (5. zey) to
require employers with 15 or nore enployees to provide a job guarantee ang
unpaia leave upon the following occasiunss

0 4 onths leave for tre birth or adoption of a child or the placeuent
ot a foster chilg;

0 4 uouths leave tor the sericus 111ness or a chila, step=chlu, leyal
waru; and/or,

0 6 nonths leave tor pregnancy, sickness or gisability of an euploy.e.
TUTAL AOUNT OF LEAVE AN ENPLOYEE CULLD TAKE = 9 honths/Year

bplugers woule be requirea to continue payiluy tor health benetits
while an employee took leave.

The erployer just return the icave-taker to the sawe or sualar Juu
upon return.

Tne legislation establishes a Conenssion to recorseny WdyS to
reguire PAlD leave in the future.

* Permanent part-tie employees would be eligible for these leaves.

GENERAL COST CONSIDERATIONS

This legislation would apply to erployers of 15 or jore persons. ihe
data available frow the Small Business Adwinistration shows firms with less
than 20 employees. Therefore, for purposes ot this calculation, we will use a
break point of 19 employees rather than the 15 contained in the legislation.
That assunption woula niake the leyislation applicable to 46b, 00U t1rus which
enploy 67,660,000 persons (774 of the U.S. labor force).

ENPLOYHENT bY SIZE OF FIkh IN 1952*

Firn Size (employees
Total Erploynent 87,532,000

0to 1y 20,172,000
20 to 99 14,510, (00
100 and rore 53,151,000

*Source: U.S. Sriall Business Adinmistration, utfice ot
Advocacy, Small Business Data Base
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The costs associatea with this legislation are as tollows:
0 the cost ot proviuing heslth 1nsurance for the periou of unpaia leave;
0 the cost to the tederal government of aduinistering the new law;

0 the auaninistrative costs for waintaining recoros ana f11Iny reports
with the Departwent of Labor to prove compliance with the law;

0 the eatra cost of hiriny trained replaceient personnel tor those
persons taking temporary leave; ana,

0 the effect on total output due to the replacenent ot experienceo
personnel with inexperienced personnel for a specitied period of tiwe.

It 15 assuned that enployers woulu have to fina tenporary workers tu
replace those workers who would be returning to their jobs. An enployer's
av1lity to nire traineu personnel, depenaing upon the position, riay be 1uiitea
severely since a person with a perianent job will not leave one Job for one
tuat is only tenporary. The result 1s that enployers rost i1hely «11] have to
resort to replacing workers on temporary leave with workers touna by tenporary
enployuent services that specialize in providing such workers.

Additionally, ~stential costs ray be greater than those based on
current practices, s .ce institutionalizing leave policies would provide
incentives for workers to rewain in the labor force and, therefore, be
eligible tor these greater penefits than the ones currentl) veiny otterea.

THE COST OF PARENTAL LEAVE TO EMPLOYERS

We have assuted that the leyislation woula result in thuse haviny s1.all
children below the age of one taking the greatest auvantage of the
leyislation. 7The bill includes a piovision tor alluwiny parents to care tor
children who are i1l. The sick child leave has been estimated separately as
is indicatea on pages one and two.

In harcn 1585, accoraing to the Current Population Survey, there were
3.7 million children belou the age of one in the country. These chilaren haa
a total ot 6.1 willion parents liviny 1n thewr household with thew. Tmis
included ©52,000 single-parent households. Uf the 6.1 muillion parents of
children below the aye ot one, 4.6 w1l1l10n had workea in the past year.

HWorking parents with children below the age of one = 4.6 million.

Comprises: M11lions of working adults
Sinyle parents W3
Working mothers 1.8
working tathers ¢.5

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:
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hote that the percentage of the labor force that would benefit from
parantal Teave following a birth or adoption is about four percent of the
110 milTion employed persons in any one year.

HEALTH BENEFITS COSTS

The total nuuber of potential weeks of unpaio leave to be yseu under
the proposal arounts to 82.4 million work-weeks. however, because of the
etployent size exclusion, (employers ot 15 or less are not subject to the
requirenents), this could bring the total work-weeks lost down to
63.8 illion. uwenerally, as a result of conpetitive pressure, it 1s not
feasible for srall employers not to give benefits of this nature to their
enployees if larger employers ofter them. A siwilar situation exists with
small employers being exempt from the minimum wage, but they cannot hire
workers at below the federal standara.

bBased on the U.S. Chamber's 1964 Employee benef1ts Survey, the cos( of
the employer's share of health insurance premiums was $26.08 per week per
ewployee. In yranting enployees extenaea bealth care coverage €or 18 weeks
per emplnyee, the potential cost woula be $26.08 x 82.8 million weeks,
resulting in a waximun potential cost related to parental leave of
$2,159,424,000. On the average, 57.2 percent of the working population were
cuvered by health insurance proyraus paid tor (all or in part; by employers.
The direct cost to employers for this benefit would have been $1,235,190,528
in 1984, 1nis woulc have adeeu .3 percent to the $Y2.6 billion 1n health
msurance costs reported by employers in 1984.

FEUERAL GUVEkREWT CUSTS

The second yroup ot econowic costs relate to the federal goveriment's
direct cost of administeriny the prograti. This ircludes an office within the
bepartiuent of Labor that woula have the responsibility for enforcing the
rules, requiring reports to be filed, writing specitic rules ana regulations,
hiring inspectors ana aeveloping an oftice and proyram. Baseo onh o Lepartwent
of Labor estimate based on the 15-employee threshold of coverage, the cost of
enforcenent, legal support, and aduinistrative law Juayes could cost as much
as 340,157,500, and could require the employment of an aaditional Y46
full-tine tegeral workers.

PRIVATE SECTOR REGULATURY BURULEN

The thira yroup ot costs relates to the regulatory buraen createa by
the legislation. The legislation woulad require that records be kept that
would prove coupliance with the regulations, that legal counsel Le used 1n
cases where enployees feel that they have not been treated in accoraance with
the provisions ot the law, ang that an internal syster within cuipanics be
developed to administer these new benefits.
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THE COST OF REPLACING PLKSUNNEL

The fourth group of costs asseciated with these regulations are the
direct costs of hirinyg replaceent personnei 6i: 2 telporary basis to replace
people on leave. This is a burdensome proposition, since an enployer woulg
have to attract a trained person tor a Job that they will be leaviny in 16
weeks, and employers could not ¢ffer the replacement a pernianent job.
uttentines, this leaves the enployer with one option -- to rely on vither
temporary agencies or lease employuent agencius that seek to furnish employers
with trained enployees.

As indicateg in our testilony, d Seven-City Survey conducted by the
U.S. Chamber of Cotrerce found that the average cust ot replacing one wora
processing enployee would be $¢,717. 16 (in order to yive that one eployee 18
weeks of unpaid leave). While it is more difficult to deterwine the cost tor
other less-det ined jobs (because ut the ditticulty or findiny replacerents as
easily as word processors), if one were to use this as an average cost, it
would have auded $9,431,932,00u to the national wage b111 in 1vbb, had each ot
the 4.6 million working parents been permitted to take the 16 weeks of unpaid
leave provides for in the legislation  This woula have acaed 0.6 percent to
wage and salary costs for American employers, anu G.3 percent to domestic
prices.

Tak CUST UF LOST PRULLCTEVLYY

The fifth category ot costs an enployer ncurs 1s the lust proauctivity
that results from the constant prospect of an employer losing enployees for an
Ingetinite perioa ot tue. Productivity ditterentials between new workers dnu
experienced workers were arrived at by using the pay difterential for workers
with yreater senlority as an ndicator of prosuctivity ditferentials. This 1s
based on the assumption that the seniority pay scales retlect learning curves
of worhers in relatien to their gobs.

In this exanple, we are using the tederal govermuent pay scales dna the
seniority pay steps as indicators of difrerentials 1n productivity levels.
The tederal guvernment pays worners about three percent per year wnore n edch
of the first three years. This means that basea on our assuuptiuns, the
annual Increw&nt 1n proguctivity 1s three percent per vear the tarst three
years of a worker's tenure. 1lhe parental leave portion of the leyislation
would result 1n replacing experienced wurkers tor 1o weeks with less
experienced workers.

The niearan chila-bearing age for wonen and nen 1s in the zb-to-34 year
age group. In that age group, the average enployient tenure for wonen 1s
about 3.2 yedrs, anc the average enpluynent tenure for nen woula be 3.6 years.
Thus, the average tenure for all workers between 25 and 35 would be ahout
threc anu one-halt years. 1h1s woulae mean that the averaye worker In tnat age
group vould be about 1¢ percent piore productive than his or her replacerent .
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In 1984, the per capita "gross douestic pruduct per ewployed person” in
the United States was $34,756. The substitution of inexperienced for
experienced personnel coula result in a productivity loss ot $3,476 at an
annual rate, or a loss of output of about 1203 tor each worker who elects to
take otf tor an 18-week perioa.

The difterential in output between the average worker 1n the 25-to-34
age group who would have about 3.5 years of experience and the new workers
vould be about 10 percent, or an average ot $6b.83 1n lost vutput per week.

<"PPE = Gross donestic prouuct per employed person. This equals
$34,7ub per year. (based on Lepartrent of Labor unpublished data.)

GDPPE/S52 = Weekly proauction = $668.38
T = Total work-eeks lost = 82.4 m11lion
Lp = Lower productivity resulting from inexperienced workers

replacing wurkers with an average tenure of

3.5 years = 10 percent of output. - .1 * GUPPE/52
TLP = Total lost production
Tw * (GUPPE/DZ * 1) = jLP
£¢,400,000 * (34,756/52 * .1) - 5,507,489,230

Potential lost production woulu total $5.5 billion.

THE COST OF SHURT-TERM DISABILITY BENEFITS TO EMPLOYERS

The provisions of the legislation permitting workers to take up to 26
veeks of leave aue to a “"serious health conaition," ana requiring an employer
to provide health insurance for these employees, is wore difficult to
calculate.  The gefinition of "serious health condition® 1n the bi11 15 likely
to result in tar greater utilization of this benefit than can be estimated at
this tue.

At the present tiwe, soue private sector ewployers do furnish their
enployees with short-term disability insurance. The 1984 Employee Benefits
Survey of the L.S. (hauber ut Conrerce indicatea that 3b percent of the
enployers who participated in the Survey provided employees with short-term
uisab1lity insurance. The cost ot these programs amounteo to 0.3 percent of
total payroll for all the firms in the survey, and about (.8 percent for the
tirus that actually provived the benefit. The average annuai cost to
enployers that furnished this type of insurance to their employees in 1984 was
3171 per year.

The vepartment ot Labor household survey for the first quarter of 1986
indicates there were a total of 5,042,000 adults that were not in the labor
torce due to bLeing eitier sick or giseblea. According to the Social Security
Adninistration, there were 3,925,000 people that were collecting disability
benet its unaer Uld Age Survivers and Lisability Insurance (uASLI). 1his would
leave 1,077,000 who are 111 or disabled and who are not eligible for
disabil1ty benetits uncer that prograu, ana are, therefore, only temporarily
i1l or disabled. If each of these workers is granted up to 26 weeks of leave
per year, we coulu assue that at any point 1n tiue there coula be
approximetely 1,077,000 workers eligible tor extendged sick leave.

O
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Assuming that 1,077,000 workers is the averaye weehly figure tor the
number of persons that would be on unpaia disability leave on a year-round
basis, this would result 1n 56,004,000 lost work-weeks.

The cost of providing heaith care to employees according to the

benefits Survey was $26.U8 per week.

TLW =
thi =
THI =

AChl =

(TLW * EHI) *
(56,004, GUL *

ERIC

1

Y
K

13,

Total lost work -weeks per year = 56,004,000
Ermployer cost of health insurance = $zb.0b per week
Percentage of working population that actually have
policies paid for (in whole or in part) by their
erployers = 57.2

hctual total cost ot health nsurance providea

THI = ACHI
$26.U8) * 57.2 = 363,454,231

The additional emplioyer cost of providinyg health insurance benefits to
a rotating pool of 1,077,000 persouns, while payiny for replacenent personnel,
would add an additional $835,454,231 ‘o0 employer health insurance costs.
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_ Senator Dopp. Mary Del Brady, we welcome you here this morn-
ing.

Ms. DeL Brapy. Thank you, Senator Dodd. We appreciate this op-
portunity to be here today to testify.

I would also like to thank you and Senator Specter for indicating
this morning that you will have a review done by GAQ. These are
very, very complex issues that we are dealing with, and there is no
doubt in my mind that we need the data that that study will pro-
vide, and it will help us to come up with a win-win solution.

Senator Dopp. I think so, too.

Ms. DEL Brapy. I would hope that in that review, that all sectors
of the economy would be studied, particularly the growing service
sector and the high-technology sector.

I am, as you said, a small business owner. I am also President of
the National Association of Women Business Owners and the
mother of two children. Accompanying me today is also a mother,
Laura Henderson, who is a business owner from Maryland, whose
company includes 110 employees, and who has included some very
innovative, family-oriented policies, and who is a member of the
National Board of our National Association of Women Business
Owners.

Our prepared statement is, in fact, more complete, and I will at-
tempt to summarize my comments.

Senator Doop. Thank you.

Ms. DeL Brabpy. NAWBO, as an organization of women business
owners, has a unique perspective which should be heard in this
particular debate.

As women, many of us have had children and we have sought to
work at the same time, and some of us have faced discrimination
because we were of childbearing age.

As employers, we have reached out to create human environ-
ments for our employees and tend to employ larger percentages of
women than other businesses do as a whole. As business owners,
we understand the issue involved in trying to build strong business-
es. It has been a painful process for both our leaders and our mem-
bers to search for a position on legislation in this area whic.. will
offer an economically viable way of meeting our employees’ needs.
We believe we have done so.

The key elements of NAWBO’s position include: first, that
NAWBO does believe that every parent should be able to take time
off work to have or to adopt children or care for seriously sick chil-
dren without the fear of losing his or her job and without facing
discrimination in the hiring and the promotion of women of child-
bearing age; second, that any government requirements in this
area should be limited to a very basic benefit, such as a six-week
unpaid leave for the above events with the right to return to that
job; third, that such basic benefits could even be extended to busi-
nesses with fewer than 15 employees; fourth, that Congress and the
States should identify mechanisms to spread the cost and to pro-
vide effective incentives which encourage private industry to
expand the benefits that they offer beyond these very basic ones
that are mandated by law and which do not disproportionately
impact small business; and finally, that Congress should not
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exempt itself from requirements that it imposes on private employ-
ers.

Senator Dopp. We love doing that, you know. [Laughter.]

Ms. DeL Brapy. The businesses which are represented by
NAWBO are by and large small businesses, and as small businesses
headed by women, we are sensitive to the needs of our employees
who have obligations to their families. At the same time, we face
the everyday reality of running businesses in an increasingly com-
petitive environment, nationally and internationally, = 1 we have
struggled to identify a balance which is true to the values of our
members and also makes sense in economic terms.

On the one side, the balance arises from the changing nature of
family and work in the United States, and I believe that these con-
cerns have been eloquently expressed by those who preceded me on
the earlier panels.

On the other side, small business employs half of this nation’s
work force and is the major employer of women. Almost 60 percent
of employed women work for firms of 500 or fewer employees, and
approximately 40 percent of employed women work in firms of 100
employees or fewer.

Small business provides most of the first employment opportuni-
ties for this nation’s workers, and small firms generated most of
the new jobs in the economy from 1979 until 1983. As a major em-
ployer of women and creator of jobs, small business is a central
part of the solution to the conflicts that are faced by employees
trying to fulfill their responsibilities at work and at home.

At the same time, the economic realities of small business are
far different from large business. According to three recent studies
commissioned by the Small Business Association, small business
wages and fringe benefi:*s are lower than in big business. Further,
the training costs for new employees are significant expenditures
for small business both in terms of on-the-job training time re-
quired of each new employee before he or she is fully productive
anq also the time lost by supervisory and other employees in train-
ing those new employees.

Lastly, much of the benefit of the training is actually enjoyed by
our larger businesses, since employees tend to move relatively
quickly to large businesses at higher salaries, reflecting in part the
training received at that small business.

It cannot be assumed that what is feasible in large businesses
can simply be required of small businesses as well.

Our members are concerned about the impact of the current pro-
posed legislation on the day-to-day operation of their businesses.
There are real training costs and productivity losses which ex-
tended leaves impose. In a small business, the loss of supervisors,
the difficulty of attracting high-quality people for temporary jobs,
the disruption caused by having to stretch other supervisors to
cover their work, the inability to replace them cost effectively for
temporary periods, the training costs for replacing employees at all
levels, the overall productivity losses arising from having to substi-
tute temporary workers for trained ones, and the squeeze which
such mandates put on a company’s ability to provide other fringe
benefits sought by other empfoyees and still remain competitive—
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these are all very real to the women operating small, labor-inten-
sive busiziesses.

In the last analysis, the real concern that we have is not in
giving lecve, but the length of the leave which has been preposed.

So for these reasons, NAWBO believes that any legislation in
this area should one, provide a floor of 6 weeks’ mandated leave for
birth or adoption and 6 weeks over a 2-year period for the care of .
sick children; two, could be extended to businesses employing fewer
than 15 employees, possibly as few as 5 employees, in order to
make a basic benefit more widely available to more employees;
and, beyond these minimums, should contain congressionally fa-
vored incentives that will encourage employers to experiment with
and to provide more extensive benefit packages for employed par-
ents.

NAWBO believes that the overall answer lies in a widely avail-
able minimum guaranteed leave and a voluntary flexible system
which gives employers and employees more and varied minimum
guaranteed leave applicable to as many employees as possible, and
voluntary options from which to choose—options which will take
into account the different sizes of business, their varying dependen-
cy on employees, their mix of supervisory and nonsupervisory em-
ployees, the varying needs of employees at different stages of their
careers or in different kinds of jobs, and the needs of those with
family responsibilities which shift over time.

We believe the Congress must shift some of its focus from simple
mandates to a tough look at who should bear the costs and how to
encourage employers to provide broader family-oriented benefits.
We urge you to look closely at the existing legal barriers to family-
oriented benefits and at such ways to encourage such approaches
as the flexitime, the part-time work, the flexible benefit plans
which allow employees to bank their benefits in exchange for
others; the use of temporary disability insurance to fund maternity
leave; the utilization of other insurance to fund leave economically,
and improve childcare options for both healthy and sick children.

We urge you to examine, for example, Federal unemployment
tax or other credits, the feasibility of spreading the benefit costs be-
tween employers and employees, and ‘he removal of existing bar-
riers to effective use of cafeteria plans and dependent care credits
and assistance programs.

We do not have all the answers, Senator, but we would very
much like to work with you and your staff in finding the right so-
lution.

Thank you.

Senator Dopp. Thank you very much.

IThe prepared statement of Ms. Del Brady follows:]
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STATEMENT
OF
MARY DEL BRADY
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF WOMEN BUSINESS OWNERS
before the

Subcommittee on Children, Family, Drugs
and Alcoholism

Committee on Labor and Human Resources
United States Senate

February 19, 1987

My name is Mary Del Brady. I am a small business owner 1n
pirttsburg, Pennsylvania. I am the President of the National
Association of Women Business Owners, a trade association
representing more than 2700 women-owned businesses around the
country, with active chapters in 40 cities. NAWBO :1s affiliated
with the Small Business Legislative Council, the Federation of
Organizations for Professional Women, and with an international
group of women business owners, Les Femmes Chefs d'Entreprises
Mondiales.

We appreciate the opportunity to testify on S. 249. NAWBO,
as an organization of women business owners, has a unique
perspective wh ch should be heard in this debate. As women, many
of us have had children and sought to work at the same time.
s.ome of us have faced discrimination because we were of
child-bearing age. As empl , rs, we have reached out to create
humane environments for our employees and tend to employ larger

percentages of women than businesses as a whole. As business
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owners, we understand the issues involved in trying to build
strong busineges. It has been a painful process for our leaders
and members to search for a position on legislation in this area
which offers an economically viable way of meeting our employees'
needs. We believe we have done so.

Before tracing the history of NAWBO'sS involvement and
thinking on this issue, I would like to identify the key elements
of our position.

[¢] NAWBO believes that every parent should be able to
take time off work to have or adopt children or care
for seriously sick children without the fear of
losing his or her job and without facing discrimination
against women of child-bearing age;

o Any government requirements in this area should be
limited to very basic benefits, such as a six week
unpaid leave for the above events with the right to
return to the job;

[¢) Such basic benefits could even be extended to
businesses with fewer than 15 employees;

) Congress and the states should idencify mechanisms to
spread the cost and effective incentives which
encourage private industry to expand the benefits
they offer beyond the very basic ones mandated by law
and which do not disproportionately impact small
busiress; and

[¢) Congress should not exempt i1tself from requirements
it imposes on private employers.

The businesses represented by NAWBO are, by and large, small
businesses. As small bucinesses headed by women, we are
sensitive to the needs of our employees who have obligations to

their families. At the same time we face the every-day reality

of running businesses in an increasingly competitive environment
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~- nationally and internationally. We have struggled to identify
a balance which is true to the values of our members and makes
sense in economic terms.

One side of the balance arises from the changing nature of
family and work in the United States. For generations, the
public policy of the United States and the employment practices
of the nation's businesses, large and small, have presumed a
worker with a spouse at home to raise and care for children.
However, America is not the land of the traditional family -~ the
married male breadwinner with a wife at home. Fewer than 10
percent of American households fit the tralitional mold. Women
with children have moved into the work force in enormous numbers
and the number of single or divorced parents -- both male and
female -- has increasad dramatically. More than half of the 45.6
million children in two-parent families have both parents in the
work force. Single-parent households have increased to the point
where over half of the Nation's children will spend some of theair
lives as members of a single-parent household. At the same time,
the role of men 1is changing, as more men chocse to be more
involved 1n their children's upbring:ing. The majority of
American parents work and raise children. Despite these changes,
maternity leave with a guaranteed right to return to the job is

not universally available, 1in either the public or privat:

sectors.
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Small business is the major employer of these women. Aimost
60 percent of employed women work for firms of 500 or less;
approximately 40 percent of employed women work in firms of 100
employees or less. Small business provides most of the first
employment opportunities for the nation's workers. Small firms
generated most of the net new jobs in the economy from 1979 to
1983. As a major employer of women and creator of jobs, small
business s a central part of the solution to the conflicts faced
by employees trying to fulfill their responsibilities at work and
at home.

At the same time, the economic realities of small business
¢re far different from large business. According to three recent
studies commissioned by the Small Business Association, small
business wages and fringe benefits are lower than big business.
Further, training costs for new employees are significant
expenditures for small businesses, both in terms of on-the-job
training time required of each new employee before he or she 1s
fully productive and the time 1lost by supervisory and other
employees in traininjd new employees. Lastly, much of the benefit
of the training is actually enjoyed by the larger businesses,
since employees tend to move relatively gquickly to large
businesses at higher salaries, reflecting in part the training
received in the small business. The Sate of Srall Business: _ A

Report of the President at 226-227 {1986). It cannot be assumed

that what 1s feasible in large businesses can simply be required

of small businesses as well.
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As a participant in the White House Conference on Small
Business, NAWBO entered the controversy over proposed federal
legislation to require all employers of more than 15 employees to
provide up to 18 weeks of unpaid parental leave with a guaranteed
comparable job on return.

Throughout the 50 state conferences which preceded the
August 1986 white House Conference, small business opposition to
mandated parental leave emerged as a key issue. Nowhere was
there any statement that business had a responsibility to its
employees and to society to participate in the effort to find
ways for employees to be productive and promotable and still
fuifill their family responsibilities.

As an organization of women business owners, NAWBO believed
it had a unigue opportunity to encourage the business community
to make it clear that opposition to federally mandated benefits
di1d not equal opposition to participation in the effort to find
better ways for employees to balance their work and family
responsibilities. NAWBO therefore successfully urged the
delegates to amend a recommendation which simply opposed mandated
benefits to 1include as well a small business call for "creative
approaches 1n the private sector to identify new and voluntary
approaches to enable working parents to fulfill their job and
family responsibilities.” This two-pronged resolution was the
Conference's number two priority, coming 1in behind only a call

for broad reforms in the area of liability 1nsurance.
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Following the White House Conference, NAWBO established a
task force to identify creative new approaches to help small
business employers accommodate the needs of employees with family
responsibilities in ways which do not jeopardize the productiviiy
and survival of the small business sector of our economy. The
goal of the NAWBO task force will be to help small business f£ind
the creative approaches called for by the white House Conference
resolution, bring those options to tae business community, and
encourage their widespread adoption. We will 1look at the
companies who are solving the problem successfully and seek to
extend their models throughout the country.

Over the months, we have struggled to find the proper
balance between public and private sector involvement and to
determine exactly what parts of the proposed legislation cause
the most concern among our members. Among some, thecre 1S a sense
that the government should not be in the business of mandating
benefits at all. There is a sense that business should take on
these responsibilities but without government 1nvolvement.
However, concern about mandating benefits is outweighted by the
very strong conviction that people in companies of all sizes
should be able to have children and care for very si1ck childrer
without having to face 1oss of their jobs. 3As business owners,
we are concerned about the human and social 1ssues, value our
employees, and want to do what we can to attract and keep them.
We also believe that working with employees to ease the conflicts

between work and home will make them more, not less, productave.
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At the same time, our members are concerned about the impact
of the current proposed legislation on the day-to-day operation
of their businesses. There are real training costs and
productivity losses which extended leaves impose. In a sma’l
business, loss of supervisors, the difficulty of attracting high
quality people for temporary jobs, the disruption caused by
having to stretch other supervicors to cover their work, the
inability to replace them cost-effectively for temporary periods,
the training costs for replacing employees at all 1levels, the
overall productivity losses arising from having to substitute
temporary workers for trained ones, and the squeeze which such
mandates put on the company's ability to provide other fringe
benefits sought by other employers and still remain competetive
—- these are all very real to women operating small labor-
intensive businesses. 1In the last analysis, the real concern is
not giving leave, but the length of the leaves proposed.

For these reasons, NAWBO believes that any legislation in
this area (1) should provide a floor of six weeks mandated leave
for birth or adoption and six weeks over a two year period for
the care of sick children, (2) could be extended to businesses
employing fewer than 15 employees to make a basic benefit more
widely available, and (3) beyond these minimums should contain
Congressionally-favored 1incentives to encourage employers to
experiwvent with and provide more extensive benefit packages for

employed parents.
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NAWBO believes the overall answer lies in a widely available
minimum guaranteed 1leave and a voluntary flexible system which
gives employers and employees more and varied minimum guaranteed
leave applicable to as many employees as possible and voluntary
options from which to choose -- options which will take into
account the different sizes of businesses, their varying
dependency on employees, their mix of supervisory and
nonsupervisory employees, the varying needs of employees at
different stages of their careers or in different kinds of jobs,
and the needs of those with family responsibilities which shift
over time.

We believe that Congress, must shift some of its focus from
simple mandates to a tough look at who should bear the costs and
how to encourage employers to provide broader family-oriented
benefits. We urge you to look closely at existing legal barriers
to family-oriented benefits and at ways to encourage such

approaches as flex-time and part-time work, flexible benefit

plans which allow employees to "bank" benefits in excnange for
others, the use of temporary disability insurance to fund leave,
the utilization of other insurance to fun® 1leave economically,
and improved child care options for both healthy and sick
children. We wurge you to examine, for example, federal
unemployment tax or other credits, the fe -1lity of spreading
the benefit costs between employers ployees, &-.¢ the

removal of existing barriers to effectav >e of cafeteria plans
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and dependent care credits and assistance programs. We do not
have all the answers, but would very much like to work with you

and your staffs to find them.

In conclusion, we urge you to measure the legislation you

pursue against these standards. poes 1t fulfill the needs of the

employee who wants to be both productive and promotable at work

and to nurture and rear children successfully? Dpoes it fulfill

society's interest in our children, the future citizens and

employees on which our nation's future depends? And does 1t

further the interest of our society in strong businesses able to
create 3jobs and to compete successfully in an increasingly

competitive business climate?
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Senator Dopp. Ms. Henderson, do you want to make a comment
simultaneously? Do you have a statement or shall I just come back
to you during questions?

Ms. HenpersoN. You may com. back to me for questions.

Senator Dopp. All right.

We are delighted to have you with us, Mr. Wilson.

Mr. WiLsoN. Thank you, Senator.

Mr. Chairman, my name is Jay Wilson. I am president of Steel-
tin Can Corp., which is a manufacturing firm in Baltimore, MD.
We employ 150 people. I am testifying today on behalf of the Na-
tional Rssociation of Manufacturers, and I am a member of its
Board of Directors.

NAM, as you may know, is an organization of 13,500 corpora-
tions, 80 percent of which are small business, defined as less than
500 employees. We are located in every State and involved in the
total spectrum of manufactur.ng enterprises.

NAM members employ 85 percent of the nation’s industrial
workers and produce more than 80 percent of the nation’s manu-
factured goods.

First of all, I want to say that it is the policy of NAM to strongly
support company programs which assist workers in meeting their
dual work-family responsibilities.

I want to simply read a small excerpt from the official NAM
policy.

Employers must actively seek innovative solutions to the problems of working
parents. All avenues of change and possibilities of accommodation should be ex-
plored to allow workin%lparents to remain on the job. Many employers have already
instituted vrograms to help working parents. Among such programs are: altcrnative
work schedules, such as flexitime; child and dependent care programs including on-

site and nearsite daycare; employee assistance programs, and flexible benefit pro-
grams which might include such benefits as parental leave.

I think it might be helpful if I limited my remarks in the inter-
est of time simply to talking about our company and how we ad-
dress this critical issue of the responsibilities of employers toward
the dual work-family responsibilities of parents.

We were founded 75 years ago, and our company, as the name
Steeltin might imply, manufactures metal containers, primarily for
the specialty food, seafood, and paint and coatings industries.

The competitive pressures upon our company have intensified
enormously over the last 5 years and have in fact reached crisis
proportions. People turn to me very frequently and say, “Jay, how
do you compete with the larger companies?”’ As you may know, the
can industry is dominated by large manufacturers. And all I do is
look at them and say, “It is tough.” And it really is.

To give you some idea, a gallon paint can which sold for 70 cents
in 1979 now sells for about 50 cents. Now, that is a 30 percent de-
cline, and prices continue to weaken. What is causing the price de-
cline? A combination of forces including foreign imports, excess do-
mestic capacity, and encroaching substitute materials such as plas-
tics.

Unfortunately, despite successful cost reduction and productivity
improvement programs, our overall costs, particularly labor costs,
have continued to rise over the last five years, and the net effect
on our profitability, as you might imagine, has been devastating.
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And we are not unique. I do not mean to paint a picture of our
company as unique. We are not alone. There are thousands of com-
panies fighting for survival in this new age of competition.

Let me outline our employee benefits program. Our total labor
costs, including employee benefits, represented approximately 20
cents of every sales dollar in 1985. That is second only to materials
as a component of cost. Our employee benefit costs accounted for
about 38 cents on every payroll dollar in 1985, and this is typical of
American industry. The industry average for this country is also
approximately that same figure of 38 cents on every payroll
dollar—that is on top of every payroll dollar, in addition to a dollar
of payroll.

Indeed, we have an excellent employee benefit program with not
only the common benefits like vacation, group health insurance,
life, disability income—both short- and long-term—pension plan,
but also recently-offered employee benefits such as a 401(k) profit-
sharing plan, an in-house credit union, Christmas bonus, and other
benefits which are—and let me emphasize this—tailored to our
particular employee needs.

With respect to parental leave, our company offers up to 26
weeks disability leave for pregnancy at 70 percent of pay, with job
guarantee upon return to work, and treats any absence from work
to care for a dependent as an excused absence, with an overall ab-
sence limitation of 18 days per year.

But let me return to those statistics on employee benefits. For
the last 5 years, the Chamber of Commerce figure for employee
benefits per payroll dollar has remained essentially flat at 38 cents
on every payroll dollar. Our own figure has in fact declined from
42 cents per payroll dollar in 1980 to the present 38 cents. Now,
that has not been a natural decline. It has been the result of a con-
scious program to reduce costs in order to ensure our survival as a
company.

Now, what story do these numbers tell? They indicate that
American industry, and our company included, has hit the wall of
tolerance in the level of e